
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Tuesday, 4th October, 2022 
     at 2.30 pm (Drawing Room) 

 
 

Site Visits 
 

Proposed University Campus at Buccleuch Dock Road (2002/0263) 
 

Depart Town Hall Courtyard at 1.15p.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 

 



 

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 
 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th September, 2022. 
 
 

5 - 28 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 12 noon, three working days 
before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  Information on 
how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning 
Business Support Team at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by 
telephone on 01229 876405. 
 
(1) Planning Applications – for which requests to speak have been 

made; and 
 
(2) Agenda Items – for which requests to speak have been made. 
 
 

 

8.   Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached) 
 
To note the delegated approvals. 
 
 

29 - 36 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

9.   Planning Applications (Booklets attached). 
 
To determine the following planning applications:- 
 
Book 1 
 
Barrow Island Rugby Club – Extension to existing gym and sports 
club. 
 
152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness – Change of use from 
Use Class E (Commercial, Business and Services) to Sui Generis 
(Betting Office) with associated external alternations including new 
rear doorway, alterations including new rear doorway, alterations to 
shopfront and installation of 2 satellite dishes to side gable. 
 
13 Harrel Lane, Barrow-in-Furness – Erection of a rear ground floor 
extension forming extended kitchen. 

37 - 258 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
9 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness – Application for variation of 
condition No. 7 of planning permission B20/2021/0523; (Change of 
use from sandwich shop/takeaway (Class E) to hot food takeaway 
(Sui-Generis) with installation of extraction flu to rear elevation) to 
extend operation hours to 23:00 hours. 
 
197 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness – Change of use from 
office (Class E) to hot food takeaway (Sui-Generis) including 
installation of extraction equipment to the rear elevation. 
 
Valley View, Mount Pleasant, Dalton-in-Furness – Retrospective 
change of use from hotel restaurant known as Valley View (formerly 
Clarence House) to on 9-bedroom holiday accommodation (Sui-
Generis). 
 
Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme – New dwelling with retention of 
the existing two-sided wall structure. 
 
 
Book 2 
 
Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-in-Furness (Land adjacent to the 
BAE Systems SASK – Academy of Skills and Knowledge – 
Construction of a new University of Cumbria Barrow Campus, 
creation of a new car park and external landscaping works. 
 
 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
  INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.) 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chair) 

C. Thomson (Vice-Chair) 
Assouad 
D. Edwards 
H. Edwards 
Gawne 
Hall 
Husband 
McEwan 
Mooney 
Nott 
Tyson 
 

 
 
 
 



 

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 
 Paula Westwood 

Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 
01229 876322 
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Monday, 26 September 2022 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Tuesday 13th September, 2022 
 at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room) 

 

PRESENT:- Councillors C. Thomson (Vice-Chairman), Husband, McEwan and Nott. 
 

Officers Present:- Jason Hipkiss (Head of Development Management), Charles 
Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith (Principal Planning Officer),  
Paula Westwood (Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader) and Sandra 
Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
44 – Minute’s Silence 
 
The Vice-Chairman requested Members to stand and observe a minute’s silence to 
reflect on the passing of Her Majesty, The Queen Elizabeth II on 8th September, 
2022. 
 
45 – Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors M. A. Thomson 
(Chairman), Assouad, D. Edwards, H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Mooney and Tyson. 
 

Councillors D. Edwards, H. Edwards and Gawne had requested the reason for their 
non-attendance to be recorded as a matter of respect for the passing of Her Majesty, 
The Queen Elizabeth II. 
 

46 – Declarations of Interest 
 

Councillor McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council. 
 

47 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9th August, 2022 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 

48 – Public Participation 
 

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of the meeting. 
 

49 – Appeal Decision 
 
The Head of Development Management reported that Outline Planning permission 
had been refused for a pair of semi-detached dwellings on open land adjacent to a 
farmyard, outside of the settlement of Dalton.  The refusal had been based on the 
lack of justification to site dwellings in the open countryside and the landscape 
impact that would cause.   
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
The location had been considered by Officers to be beyond the settlement edge in 
an area of open, agricultural character where a residential development would 
appear isolated from the town of Dalton and appear at odds with the rural character.  
The position had been successfully defended at appeal back in 2006, when an 
additional dwelling had been proposed by the short row of three existing cottages.  It 
had been considered then, that the terrace of cottages was already isolated and 
further development would only consolidate such isolation. 
 
The appeal had been upheld by the Planning Inspector on the basis that the 
proposed site was not functionally or visually disconnected from Dalton and did not 
result in harm to the existing landscape character. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the report. 
 
Town and Country Planning Acts 
 

50 – Delegated Decisions 
 

The Director of People and Place submitted for information details of planning 
applications in this report which had been determined under delegated authority 
(Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 2002, confirmed by Council 
24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for your information.  The plans 
recommended for approval under the Town and Country Planning Acts will be 
subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 (April 1971) of the 
Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough Council, in addition to 
any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) beside the applicant’s 
name denotes those applications that were reported to the Planning Panel. 
 
RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:- 
 
2022/0303 Siting of a two storey Portakabin building for a temporary period of 5 

years at the BAE site in Barrow-in-Furness (retrospective) at BAE 
Systems, Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0036 Application for Technical Details Consent for the erection of a farm 

workers dwelling and means of access following the grant of 
permission in principle for a farm workers dwelling under application 
PIP/2021/0368 at Parkhouse Farm, Parkhouse Road Barrow-in-
Furness. 

 
2022/0434 Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension forming 

extended kitchen and dining area, utility room, store and additional 
bedroom at first floor level with dressing room and en-suite at 20 
Chestnut Walk, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0384 Application to fell 9 x Ash and 1 x Goat Willow subject of Tree 

Preservation Order 1984 No. 7 at 1 The Plantation, Pit Lane, Lindal-
in-Furness. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 
2022/0523 Proposed change of use from former Barrow Labour Party Office to a 

7 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation at 22 Hartington Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0451 Single storey side living room extension – resubmission of 2022/0269 

in a revised form at 44 Abbotsmead Approach, Barrow-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0529 Application for approval of annual bird monitoring reports (2018-2021) 

as required by Condition No. 6 of planning permission 2019/0251 
(Construction of temporary Heliport) at Sandscale Park Helipad, 
Sandscale Park, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0530 Change of use to incorporate retail shop (Class E) into existing 

dwelling (C3) at 7 Cambridge Street, Barrow-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0479 Sub-division of main house (cuckoos nest) to form a 1 bedroom 

separate living accommodation at ground floor level, retaining existing 
kitchen and bathroom. Proposed side/rear extension at ground floor 
level forming new separate living room and kitchen with loft 
conversion at first floor level forming 2 bedrooms including a 
bathroom at Cuckoos Nest, Saves Lane, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0480 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 

Development (CLOPUD) – Single storey rear extension and partial 
garage conversion forming extended kitchen and dining room and 
utility at 22 Meadow Chase Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0500 Listed Building Consent to re-roof with reclaimed Burlington slate to 

front roof elevation and Brazilian slate to rear roof elevation at 2-3 
Church Street, Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0501 Single storey rear extension forming extended kitchen and dining 

room at 22 Roanhead Lane, Barrow-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0348 Application for a Minor Material Amendment under Section 73 to vary 

condition No.1 (compliance with approved plans) of planning 
permission B18/2017/0429, to change house types on plots 7, 8 and 9 
from house type 3th02b to House Type A and plots 10, 11 and 12 
from house type 3tb02b to house type B and plots 13, 14, and 15 from 
house type 3th01c to house type A at Development Site at Ironworks 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0483 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations, 2017, Request for Scoping Opinion pursuant to 
Regulation 6 in relation to South Walney Landfill Site – Erosion 
Control Design and Build at South Walney Landfill Site, Mawflat Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2022/0560 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2021/0430 (Construction of a detached 1.5 Storey 
dwelling with detached garage and associated landscaping) to amend 
drainage design as discharged under ref B28/2021/0981 (Condition 
No.6) at Armadale, Ireleth Road, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0472 Proposed conversion of existing garage into living room, passageway 

from front porch to rear kitchen, and construction of new attached side 
garage to east facing elevation at 49 Meadowlands Avenue, Barrow-
in-Furness. 

 
2022/0473 Single storey rear kitchen extension with first floor front bedroom 

extension above existing ground floor porch at 28 Strathmore Avenue 
Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0507 Single storey rear dining room extension to replace existing. New 

structure has a flat roof with parapet wall and glass roof lantern at 4 St 
Lukes Avenue Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0521 Change of use/conversion of face treatment centre (Class E.e) to a 

dwelling (at Class C3), including associated external alterations 124 
Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0559 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 

Development (CLOPUD) Removal of the existing 'sunroom' glass roof 
and replacement with a pitched solid roof containing roof windows at 
44 Helmsley Drive Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0454 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1980 

No. 1 to crown thin 3 x Sycamore trees by 10% at 40 Myrtle Terrace 
Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0455 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1980 

No. 1 to fell 1 x Holly tree and replant with 1 replacement at 40 Myrtle 
Terrace Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0456 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1980 

No. 1 to remove lower limb of Austrian Pine Tree at 40 Myrtle Terrace 
Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0465 Enlargement of existing rear extension structure comprising of dining 

area and a utility room with WC at 10 Priors Path Barrow-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0505 Rear ground floor extension forming an extended kitchen at 11 Tudor 

Square, Dalton-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0506 Extension of the existing calibration laboratory building via the 

installation of three modular cabins, fencing, gates and associated 
works at Building B05 Calibration Laboratory, Buccleuch Dock Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 
2022/0528 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations, 2017, Request for Scoping Opinion for residential-led 
mixed-use development at Salthouse Mills, Industrial Estate 
Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0520 Change of use and conversion of hairdressing salon (Sui Generis) to 

a habitable dwelling (C3) and associated external alterations at 203 
Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0551 Removal of existing single storey flat roof and the construction of a 

two storey front and rear extension, including new render system to 
front elevation with internal and external alterations to an existing 
dwelling at 5 Stone Dyke, Leece Lane, Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0439 Demolition of existing single storey side garage and kitchen; 

construction of two storey front/side extension creating porch, shower 
room and kitchen to ground floor with extended bedroom and 
additional bedroom to first floor; construction of rear single storey 
dining room extension at 35 Amphitrite Street Barrow-in-Furness. 

 
2022/0517 Erection of a single storey pitched roof rear extension and second 

floor flat roof rear extension at 13 Anchor Road, Barrow-in-Furness. 
 
2022/0515 Application for variation of condition B21/2021/0787 (Single Storey 

rear, 2 storey side, porch and dormer roof extensions) to change the 
facing material of the single storey rear extension from render & 
brickwork to natural stone facing to match the new approved front 
porch at Corandirk, Saves Lane, Ireleth Askam-in-Furness. 

 
The following applications had been disposed:- 
 
2013/0379 Installation of 2 no. micro scale wind turbines (14.97m to hub, 5.6m 

diameter blades) to provide renewable energy for use at the site on 
Land at Holmes Green Farm Broughton Road, Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2013/0401 Installation of 1 no. micro scale wind turbine (14.97m to hub, 5.6m 

diameter blades) to provide renewable energy for use on site at High 
Haume Farm Broughton Road Dalton-in-Furness. 

 
2021/0316 Two storey dwelling (2 bedroomed) on Land between 41-45 Lord 

Street, Dalton-in-Furness. 
 
(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Head of Building Control. 
 
Town and Country Planning Acts 
 
The Head of Development Management reported on the following planning 
applications:- 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
51 – Ship Inn, Piel Island, Barrow-in-Furness 
 
From Beverley Coverdale (Barrow Borough Council) in respect of the demolition of 
existing ancillary W/C & shower facilities and building containing 2no. bothies. 
Replace with new W/C & shower facilities and 2no. attached bothies including 
additional landscaping works, new external paths, new timber canopy and solar 
voltaic panels at Ship Inn, Piel Island, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on planning 
application number 2022/0586. 
 
The results of consultations were reported. 
 
Extra Information had been received covering the ecological assessment and 
construction management in relation to pollution control. Plans had also been 
received in relation to bat and bird boxes and swallow nesting sites. 
 
It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:- 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 
   Reason 
 
   Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 Compliance with Approved Plans 
 

2. The development shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 3.8.2022 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by a condition attached to this consent: 

 

  Application form dated 2.8.22 
  Existing and proposed site plan Ref 22.123.202 Rev P2 
  Proposed Sections Ref 22.123.501 Rev P4 
  Proposed Elevations (1 of 2) Ref 22.123.403 Rev P4 
  Proposed Elevations (2 of 2) 22.123.404 Rev P4 
  Proposed Floor Plans 22.123.301 Rev P5 
  Proposed Block Plan 22.123.204 Rev P4 
  Design and Access Statement 
  Energy Statement 
  Construction Method Statement Ref DW-21-106-101 Rev D 
  Flood Risk Assessment August 2022 by JBA Construction 
  Materials Study 
  Preliminary Ecological Appraisal by Flight Ecology August 2022, Ref 

J460-D01- Rev 01 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



  Bat and Bird box mitigation plan J460-DW02-Rev 01 
  Swallow mitigation plan (Option A only) Ref J460 DW01 
 
   Reason  
 

  To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

 
3. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

recommendations set out in Section 5 and Appendix 1, Mitigation 
Design of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Flight Ecology August 
2022 Ref J460-D01) Rev 01 and the Flood Risk Assessment 
recommended flood resilience measures (FRA August 2022, JBA 
Consulting). 
 
Reason 

 
  In the interests of minimising the ecological impact and securing 

biodiversity net gains and to mitigate any effects from flood risk. 
 
 4. Prior to the commencement of use of the development hereby 

approved the bat and bird boxes shown on the bat and bird box 
mitigation plan Ref J460-DW02-Rev 01 and the swallow nesting 
facilities shown on the swallow mitigation plan Ref J460 DW01 (Option 
A only) shall be installed in full and retained on site in perpetuity. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of biodiversity net gain. 
 
52 – Ship Inn, Piel Island, Barrow-in-Furness 
 
From Beverley Coverdale (Barrow Borough Council) in respect of Listed Building 
Consent to demolish 1no. attached building containing 2no. bothies. Replace with 
new attached building comprising W/C & shower facilities and 2no. bothies including 
additional landscaping works, new external paths, new timber canopy and solar 
voltaic panels at Ship Inn, Piel Island, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on planning 
application number 2022/0587. 
 
The results of consultations were reported. 
 
Extra Information had been received covering the ecological assessment and 
construction management in relation to pollution control. Plans had also been 
received in relation to bat and bird boxes and swallow nesting sites. 
 
It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that Listed Building Consent be approved 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:- 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
   Reason 
 
   Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning \9listed 

Buildings and Conservation Area) Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 
of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 Compliance with Approved Plans 
 

2. The development shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 3.8.2022 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
 

  Application form dated 2.8.22 
  Proposed Sections Ref 22.123.501 Rev P4 
  Proposed Elevations (1 of 2) Ref 22.123.403 Rev P4 
  Proposed Elevations (2 of 2)Ref 22.123.404 Rev P4 
  Proposed Floor Plans Ref 22.123.301 Rev P5 
  Proposed Block Plan Ref 22.123.204 Rev P4 
  Existing and proposed site plan Ref 22.123.202 Rev P2 
  Design and Access Statement 
  Materials Study 
 
   Reason  
 

  In the interests of the appearance of the development and character 
and appearance of heritage assets. 

 
53 – BAE Systems, Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness 
 
From Mr R. Hagan in respect of the erection of a steam generation facility (SGF), the 
installation of a new retaining wall with fence, a nitrogen compound and associated 
works at BAE Systems, Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on planning 
application number 2022/0295. 
 
Representations received and the results of consultations were reported. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Husband and seconded by Councillor Nott, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that: 
 
(A) Members support the principle of the scheme, and 
 
(B) Subject to outstanding issues around noise and vibration being resolved to the 

satisfaction of Officers, and no insurmountable objections being received from 
Natural England, that the Head of Development Management be given 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



delegated authority to grant Planning Permission and agree the wording of the 
conditions, the topics of which are likely to include:- 

 

1. Standard duration limit; 
2. Schedule of approved plans and documents; 
3. Construction traffic and construction management plan; 
4. Noise mitigation measures; 
5. Condition re hydraulic breaker; 
6. Piling methodology to be agreed; 
7. Drainage; 
8. External lighting; 
9. Landscaping if appropriate; 
10. Materials; and 
11. UXO survey and banksman. 

 
54 – 123 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness 
 
From Mr M. Shi in respect of a single storey rear kitchen extension including raising 
the flat roof at the rear by 300mm.  Replacement shop front, internal alterations and 
replacement extraction equipment to rear at 123 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-
Furness as shown on planning application number 2022/0441. 
 
Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Husband and seconded by Councillor McEwan, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that, subject to details of an acceptable 
revised shop front being received, then the Head of Development Management be 
given delegated authority to grant Planning Permission, subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions:- 
 
 Compliance with Approved Plans 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 6/6/22 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
 

Application Form 
21135-PL-01, 05, 06 rev. E, 07 rev. E, 08 rev. D, 09 rev. E, 10 rev. A 
(as revised) 
Kitchen Extract Flow Rate Calculator 
CP03 C Series Attenuator 
Merlin CT1250 - Ventilation Interlock System 
Details to support commercial ventilation 
DNSB sway brace 
ND - Double Deflection Neoprene Mounts 
AW 500E4 sileo Axial fan 
MUB/T 062 630D4 
RAW 500/560 Roof Cowl c/w BG 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



High Velocity Jet Cowl (HNU) 
 

  Reason 
 

  To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

 
 Before Occupation 
 

3. Prior to the beneficial occupation of the site, the plasterboard as 
detailed on plans 21135-PL-06 REV.E and 07 REV. E shall be installed 
and thereafter permanently retained. 
 
Reason 

 
  In order to protect the residential amenities of the adjacent properties. 
 
 Operational Conditions 
 

4. All future emissions vented to the ‘external environment’ from cooking 
processes must be extracted through a properly designed and 
constructed exhaust ventilation system, adequately filtered and 
discharged vertically at sufficient height, at least 1 metre above eaves 
level, or incorporating adequate odour mitigation measures in the 
ventilation extract design to prevent cooking odours being observed at 
any neighbouring properties. Any exhaust gas flow must not be 
restricted by any plate etc. at the outlet which might affect dispersion. 
The proposed system must be adequately maintained as such in 
perpetuity. 

 
Reason 

 
  In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
 5. Noise from the development must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR 

30 in daytime hours (0700 - 2300) and NR 25 in night time hours (2300 
- 0700) in any noise sensitive property. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
55 – Land rear of 55 Duddon Road, Askam-in-Furness (Plot 1) 
 
From Mr R. Wilkinson in respect of the Construction of 1.5 storey 4 bedroom 
detached dwelling; alterations/improvements to existing highway access to 55 
Duddon Road to provide access to new dwelling; demolition of existing garage to 55 
Duddon Road and construction of replacement garage in revised location (Amended 
layout) on Land to the rear of 55 Duddon Road, Askam-in-Furness (Plot 1) as shown 
on planning application number 2021/0932. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 
Consideration of this application had been deferred at the last meeting to allow the 
Committee to undertake a site visit prior to making a decision. 
 
Representations received and the results of consultations were reported. 
 
The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting. 
 
It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and  
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that Planning Permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
  Reason 
 
  Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
 2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 

accordance with the application dated 05/07/22 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent: 

 
  1079/P1/01 rev F 
  1079/P1/02 (dated 05/07/22) 
  Envirotech Amended Biodiversity Net Gain (Rev A) ref:7573 v2 
  M&P Gadsden Drainage Strategy ref: CN 221275 v1 
 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 

drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
 3. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk 

study, site reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to 
investigate and assess the risk of potential contamination, is submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated 
land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially 
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination (CLR11)). 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 4. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a 

Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for 
the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall 
be undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination 
and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
before any development begins. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 5. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 

development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options 
and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 6. No development shall take place until a Construction Method 

Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for all 
of the following: i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials, iii. storage of plant and 
materials used in constructing the development, iv. the proposed 
construction vehicle and delivery routing plans, v. wheel washing 
facilities where vehicles will enter/exit the site, vi. measures to control 
the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental 

amenity. 
 
 During Building Works 
 
 7. Prior to installation the location, type and situation of any screen walls 

or fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. Before the development hereby approved (or each 
identifiable phase) is completed, such screen walls or fences shall be 
erected and thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives 
prior written consent to any variation. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in order to 

ensure provision is made for through migration of the site by wildlife. 
 
 8. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 

contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then 
be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors 
and to ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 9. The site should be drained on a separate system with foul water 

draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in accordance 
with the details and attenuation system specified in M&P Gadsden 
Drainage Strategy ref: CN 221275 v1. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure the site is drained by the most sustainable method in 

accordance with the principles of the NPPF and Local Plan Policy C3a. 
 
 Before Occupation 
 
 10. Prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the development, a 

landscape scheme for the site, showing the trees, shrubs and 
hedgerows, including verges and other open spaces, together with 
details of a timetable for implementation, (including any phasing of such 
a scheme) must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be designed to provide the 
biodiversity net gains in the Envirotech report submitted with this 
application, submitted on a plan not greater that 1:500 in scale and 
shall contain details of numbers, locations and species of plants to be 
used. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details, and all planting and subsequent maintenance shall 
be to current British Standards. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 11. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following beneficial occupation of any part of the development, 
or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing 
with the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of 
five years from the completion of the development die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced by the 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



landowner in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 12. The two replacement parking spaces to the front of No.55 Duddon 

Road must be constructed from bound material and brought into use 
prior to the beneficial occupation of the either the dwelling hereby 
approved (Plot 1) or the dwelling approved under ref: 2021/0933 (Plot 
2), and thereafter be permanently retained for parking. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In order to ensure sufficient off-road parking is provided to off-set the 

loss of the driveway to be used for the site access. 
 
 13. The access drive serving both Plot 1 and Plot 2 shall be surfaced in 

bound materials and shall be constructed and completed before the 
development is brought into use. This surfacing shall extend for a 
distance of at least 5 metres inside the site, as measured from the 
carriageway edge of the adjacent highway. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 14. Any existing highway fence/wall boundary shall be reduced to a height 

not exceeding 1.05m above the carriageway level of the adjacent 
highway in accordance with details submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. The development must be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the beneficial occupation of either dwelling 
making use of the altered access, and shall thereafter not be raised to 
a height exceeding 1.05m. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 15. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must 
be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development 
on the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations 
shall be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



  Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 16. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 

Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to occupation of the development. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 17. Details of no fewer than 1 bird and 1 bat nesting/roosting boxes 

(external or incorporated into brickwork), including the exact location, 
specification and design, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be 
occupied unless the boxes have been installed. The nesting boxes 
shall be installed strictly in accordance with the details so approved and 
shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
  Reason 
 
  In the interests of nature conservation by safeguarding and enhancing 

the wildlife interests of the site. 
 
 Operational Conditions 
 
 18. The hereby approved garages, parking spaces and accesses thereto 

within the defined application site must be reserved for the parking of 
private motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether 
permitted by the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended, or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, 
shall be carried out on that area of land in such position as to preclude 
vehicular access to the development hereby permitted. 

 
  Reason 
 
  To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 

retained for the use associated with the development hereby permitted. 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 
56 – Land rear of 55 Duddon Road, Askam-in-Furness (Plot 2) 
 
From Mr and Mrs Norman in respect of the construction of 1.5 storey 4 bedroom 
detached dwelling (Amended Layout) on Land to the rear of 55 Duddon Road, 
Askam-in-Furness as shown on planning application number 2021/0933. 
 
Consideration of this application had been deferred at the last meeting to allow the 
Committee to undertake a site visit prior to making a decision. 
 
Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.  
 
The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting. 
 
It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and  
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:- 
 

 1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 
   Reason 
 
  Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
 2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 

accordance with the application dated 05/07/22 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent: 

   
  1079/P1/01 rev F 
  1079/P1/02 (dated 05/07/22) 
  Envirotech Amended Biodiversity Net Gain (Rev A) ref:7573 v2 
  M&P Gadsden Drainage Strategy ref: CN 221275 v1 

 
   Reason 
 
   To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 

drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
 Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
 3. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk 

study, site reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to 
investigate and assess the risk of potential contamination, is submitted 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated 
land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially 
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination (CLR11)). 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 4. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a 

Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for 
the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall 
be undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination 
and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
before any development begins. 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 5. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 

development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options 
and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use. 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



   Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 6. No development shall take place until a Construction Method 

Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for all 
of the following: i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials, iii. storage of plant and 
materials used in constructing the development, iv. the proposed 
construction vehicle and delivery routing plans, v. wheel washing 
facilities where vehicles will enter/exit the site, vi. measures to control 
the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 

 
   Reason 
 
  In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental 

amenity. 
 
 During Building Works 
 
 7. Prior to installation the location, type and situation of any screen walls 

or fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. Before the development hereby approved (or each 
identifiable phase) is completed, such screen walls or fences shall be 
erected and thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives 
prior written consent to any variation. 

 
   Reason 
 
  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in order to 

ensure provision is made for through migration of the site by wildlife. 
 
 8. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 

contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then 
be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors 
and to ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 9. The site should be drained on a separate system with foul water 

draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in accordance 
with the details and attenuation system specified in M&P Gadsden 
Drainage Strategy ref: CN 221275 v1. 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure the site is drained by the most sustainable method in 

accordance with the principles of the NPPF and Local Plan Policy C3a. 
 
 Before Occupation 
 
 10. Prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the development, a 

landscape scheme for the site, showing the trees, shrubs and 
hedgerows, including verges and other open spaces, together with 
details of a timetable for implementation, (including any phasing of such 
a scheme) must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be designed to provide the 
biodiversity net gains in the Envirotech report submitted with this 
application, submitted on a plan not greater that 1:500 in scale and 
shall contain details of numbers, locations and species of plants to be 
used. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details, and all planting and subsequent maintenance shall 
be to current British Standards. 

 
   Reason 
 
   In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 11. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following beneficial occupation of any part of the development, 
or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing 
with the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of 
five years from the completion of the development die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced by the 
landowner in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation. 

 
   Reason 
 
   In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
 12. The two replacement parking spaces to the front of No. 55 Duddon 

Road must be constructed from bound material and brought into use 
prior to the beneficial occupation of the either the dwelling hereby 
approved (Plot 2) or the dwelling approved under ref: 2021/0933 (Plot 
1), and thereafter be permanently retained for parking. 

 
   Reason 
 
  In order to ensure sufficient off-road parking is provided to off-set the 

loss of the driveway to be used for the site access. 
 
 13. The access drive serving both Plot 1 and Plot 2 shall be surfaced in 

bound materials and shall be constructed and completed before the 
development is brought into use. This surfacing shall extend for a 
distance of at least 5 metres inside the site, as measured from the 
carriageway edge of the adjacent highway. 

 
   Reason 
 
   In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 14. Any existing highway fence/wall boundary shall be reduced to a height 

not exceeding 1.05m above the carriageway level of the adjacent 
highway in accordance with details submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. The development must be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the beneficial occupation of either dwelling 
making use of the altered access, and shall thereafter not be raised to 
a height exceeding 1.05m. 

 
   Reason 
 
   In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 15. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must 
be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development 
on the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations 
shall be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



   Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 16. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 

Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to occupation of the development. 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

 
 17. Details of no fewer than 1 bird and 1 bat nesting/roosting boxes 

(external or incorporated into brickwork), including the exact location, 
specification and design, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be 
occupied unless the boxes have been installed. The nesting boxes 
shall be installed strictly in accordance with the details so approved and 
shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
   Reason 
 
  In the interests of nature conservation by safeguarding and enhancing 

the wildlife interests of the site. 
 
 Operational Conditions 
 
 18. The hereby approved garages, parking spaces and accesses thereto 

within the defined application site must be reserved for the parking of 
private motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether 
permitted by the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended, or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, 
shall be carried out on that area of land in such position as to preclude 
vehicular access to the development hereby permitted. 

 
   Reason 
 
  To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 

retained for the use associated with the development hereby permitted. 
 
 19. The guest accommodation in the upper floor of the detached garage 

outbuilding shall not be occupied at any time other than for purposes 
ancillary to the residential use of the dwelling hereby approved. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



 
  Reason 
 
  Planning permission is granted for ancillary purposes only to meet the 

applicant’s needs, and not as a separate dwelling or planning unit. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.54 pm. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

04/10/2022

03/09/2022

21/09/2022

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2022/0578

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/09/2022

Location:
3 Cherry Tree Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0LG

Proposal:
Removal of existing side conservatory and
replacement with side extension to provide 2
extended bedrooms. Part garage conversion and
introduction of roof lantern.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2022/0558

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
06/09/2022

Location:
3 Hornedale Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9AS

Proposal:
Ground floor alterations and conversion of first
floor loft room into bedroom and living area with
front pitch roof dormer windows. Proposed French
doors and window combination to west facing
elevation.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
BPA4/2022/05
96

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
07/09/2022

Location:
Auto Image Cavendish Dock Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 2LA

Proposal:
Application to determine if prior approval is
required for the proposed demolition of building

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
BPA4/2022/05
97

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
07/09/2022

Location:
Horrocks and Cross Salthouse Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 2AL

Proposal:
Application to determine if prior approval is
required for the proposed demolition of building

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2022/0589

Decision:
PARTIAL

Decision Date:
15/09/2022

Location:
Proposed housing development Wilkie Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition for part discharge of condition No. 17
(Construction Management Method Statement for
phase 1) of planning permission  B31/2022/0449
(Application for a non-material amendment to
application  B07/2014/0360  to vary the wording of
conditions 6,7, 11, 13, 14 and 17)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
BPA4/2022/06
05

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
12/09/2022

Location:
2nd Time Around The Strand Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application to determine if prior approval is
required for the proposed demolition of building

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
BPAC/2022/05
63

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
15/09/2022

Location:
Barn at Stank Farm, Stank Lane, Stank, Cumbria
LA13 0LR

Proposal:
Application under the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 (as amended) under Schedule 2, Part 3,
Class Q  to determine if prior approval is required
for a proposed change of use of agricultural
building to dwellinghouse (Use Class C3), and for
building operations reasonably necessary for the
conversion of a barn to a 2 bedroom dwelling

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2022/0561

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
08/09/2022

Location:
35 Flass Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
0DG

Proposal:
Double storey side extension to provide ground
floor study/utility room/wc with first floor bedroom
and bathroom, and single storey rear
extension to provide living area/kitchen.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
����������������������������������� �!""#$�%&$'�()"���*++�,+-./�-0-1+2����$3�4�55�� ����� 6'�%&$'��7�8-9:;<90�=>2.*2�?-99<@AB.A�*9.2//C*D19B-�E=5F�GEHI�'"'J%#�K9<*.L�M+<<9�2N02./B<./�M<9DB.O�92-9�/*.9<<D�-.L�/BL2�/0<92PQ.029.-+�D<LBMBR-0B<./�B.R+*LB.O�SPCP T%�4�S-+.2:�U<90VS-9LW��$J$'��=;;R<.LW��$J$'�W%&��55��X������������������������������7YF!""#$�%&$'�()"���*++�,+-./�-0-1+2����$3�4�57�� ����� 6'�%&$'�����,9</;2R0�H<-L�?-99<@AB.A�*9.2//�C*D19B-E=5G�XZ[I�'"'J%#�,9<;</2L�92-9�/B.O+2�/0<92:�2N02./B<.�-.L-//<RB-02L�B.029.-+�/09*R0*9-+�+-:<*0�-+029-0B<.0<�R92-02�<;2.�;+-.�+B>B.O�\B0RV2.�LB.29P T%�4�,-9\/BL2�S-9LW��$J$'��=;;R<.LW��$J$'�W%&��5G��X���������������������?��������Y Y!""#$�%&$'�()"��?*B+LB.O�U<0BR2�-0-1+2����$3�4�����X����� 6'�%&$'��� �]2+M<9L�̂09220�?-99<@AB.A�*9.2//�C*D19B-E=5F��_HI�'"'J%#�H2@B92�R<<\29�RB9R*B0P�H2@B92�GN�/<R\20/P T%�4�_99<9�R<*+L�.<0MB.L�@-9LW��$J$'��=RR2;02LW��$J$'�W%&������X���������������������?��������G X!""#$�%&$'�()"��?*B+LB.O�U<0BR2�-0-1+2����$3�4�� ��X����� 6'�%&$'��5��̀9D/OB++�E-.2�?-99<@AB.A�*9.2//�C*D19B-E=5F�F=?I�'"'J%#�H2-9�2N02./B<.P T%�4�9̀D/OB++�S-9LW��$J$'��=RR2;02LW��$J$'�W%&��� ��X�����

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
����������������������������������  �!""#$�%&$'�()"���*+,-+./�012+34�5256,4����$7�8��9��9����� :'�%&$'�� ;�<+./�=,>?4-�@2?442��5??1AB+.BC*?.4DDE*F6?+5�G=;H�I�@J�'"'K%#�=,24?52+1.D�21�F5+.�-?5+.D�>1?�.4A�A42�?11FL M%�8�N5,.4O�@1*2PN5?-Q��$K$'��=334R24-Q��$K$'�Q%&���9��9������������������������������  S!""#$�%&$'�()"���*+,-+./�012+34�5256,4����$7�8�;���9����� :'�%&$'��;I9�C,5DD�G5.4��5??1AB+.BC*?.4DD�E*F6?+5G=;I��TNJ�'"'K%#�U.24?.5,�5,24?52+1.L M%�8�04A65?.DN5?-Q��$K$'��=334R24-Q��$K$'�Q%&��;���9������������������������������ VH!""#$�%&$'�()"���*+,-+./�012+34�5256,4����$7�8��;��9����� :'�%&$'��H�@252+1.�E,1D4�W5,21.B+.BC*?.4DD�E*F6?+5G=;S�VXYJ�'"'K%#�U.D25,,�,+.24,�21�?45?�1>�P1*D4�21�5,,1A�>1?�IZ��+B>1,-�W11?DLY4R,534�G+.24,D�52�D+-4�1>�P1*D4�21�5,,1A�>1?;L[Z�X52+1�W11?DL M%�8�W5,21.�@1*2PN5?-Q��$K$'��=334R24-Q��$K$'�Q%&���;��9���������������������C��������SHS!""#$�%&$'�()"��C*,,�X,5.D�5256,4����$7�8��[��[����� :'�%&$'���S��=664O�Y15-��5??1AB+.BC*?.4DD�E*F6?+5G=;I�9\\J�'"'K%#�@+./,4�D21?4O�?45?�4]24.D+1.L M%�8�04A65?.DN5?-Q��$K$'��=RR31.-Q��$K$'�Q%&���[��9�����

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
���������������������������������� !"#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:��;��<����� =)�'(&)��>-1?��70@�26A430�B37/�C7.430D-0DE,F06GGH,I8F-7�JKL!�MJNO�)$)P'%�Q0/6FR-0�6S-G4-01�T334-01G�43�7RRF3RF-746GR65-T-574-30GU�B6I3V7.�3T�6S-G4-01�G?6..�TF304WF67F�70/�178.6�60/U�X0G,.746�A-4?�F35@A33.�3F@-01GR70�A-4?�!�I.�A7..�17R�3F�G-I-.7FU Y'�:�C7.430�Z3,4?N7F/[��&P&)��K556R46/[��&P&)�['(���;��<������������������������������ !<#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:��M��<����� =)�'(&)��L\�]F660�>7,I6�N 0̂F3G6�KG@7I�B37/C7.430D-0DE,F06GG�H,I8F-7�JKL!�M_QO�)$)P'%�B6A-F6�3T�RF3R6F4̂ Y'�:�C7.430�23F4?N7F/[��&P&)��K556R46/[��&P&)�['(���M��<���������������������E��������\!\#$$%&�'(&)�*+$��E,..�̀.70G�7478.6����&9�:�L ��M����� =)�'(&)��LL�J-5?T-6./�H.3G6��7FF3AD-0DE,F06GG�H,I8F-7JKL"�!JaO�)$)P'%�bA3�G43F6̂�G-/6�6S460G-30�70/�-046F07.7.46F74-30GU Y'�:�cFIG1-..�N7F/[��&P&)��KRR530/[��&P&)�['(���<��<������������������������������ ;!#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:�����<����� =)�'(&)���L�K-0G.-6�Z4F664��7FF3AD-0DE,F06GG�H,I8F-7JKL"�!�_O�)$)P'%�B6A-F6U Y'�:�7̀F@G-/6�N7F/[��&P&)��K556R46/[��&P&)�['(������<�����

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
���������������������������������� !�"##$%�&'%(�)*#���+,-.,/0�123,45�6367-5����%8�9��:��;����� <(�&'%(�� =�>-?5@A32/�B26.�C,/.6-D,/DE+@/5AA�F+G7@,6CH!���CIJ�(#(K&$�L,/0-5�L32@5M�N,34O5/�5P35/A,2/Q R&�9�S6-32/�12@3OT6@.U��%K%(��H445V35.U��%K%(�U&'���:��;������������������������������WW�"##$%�&'%(�)*#���+,-.,/0�123,45�6367-5����%8�9��:��;����� <(�&'%(���X�TO,/-6335@�S@,?5��6@@2YD,/DE+@/5AAF+G7@,6�CH!Z�Z1[J�(#(K&$�\/A36--63,2/�2]�̂.Y6@.,6/�Y6@G5@�@22]�Y,3O�@,3G53�4O6@426-�3,-5A R&�9�I6Y4263�T6@.U��%K%(��H445V35.U��%K%(�U&'���:��;���������������������E��������XX�"##$%�&'%(�)*#��E+--�_-6/A�6367-5����%8�9�!!��=����� <(�&'%(��:X�̀@55/0635�L3@553��6@@2YD,/DE+@/5AAF+G7@,6�CH!Z�!�SJ�(#(K&$�_@2V2A5.�@56@�A,/0-5�A32@5M�Y53�@22G5P35/A,2/Q R&�9�I,/.V22-�T6@.U��%K%(��HVV42/.U��%K%(�U&'���;��;������������������������������WW "##$%�&'%(�)*#���+,-.,/0�123,45�6367-5����%8�9��;��;����� <(�&'%(��!=�L3@63O6,@.�H?5/+5��6@@2YD,/DE+@/5AAF+G7@,6�CH!Z� ŜJ�(#(K&$�a/24N,/0�.2Y/�,/35@/6-�Y6--�bN,34O5/�32.,//,/0cQ R&�9�T6-/5M�L2+3OT6@.U��%K%(��H445V35.U��%K%(�U&'���;��;�����

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
Book 1  

 
4th October 2022 

 
    Ladies and Gentlemen,  

 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team 
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405.. 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Head of Development Management  
 

Page 1 of 99

Page 37

Agenda Item 9

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


B18/2022/0603 
Planning Committee 

4th October 2022   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2022/0603 Date Valid :15/08/2022 

Address : Barrow Island Rugby Club, 
Ostley Bank, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, 
LA13 9LR 

Case Officer : Adrian Adams 

Proposal : Extension to existing gym at sports club. 

Ward : Newbarns Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant :  Barrow Island Rugby League 
Club  Agent : Mr T Jefferson   

Statutory Date : 10/10/2022 Recommendation : Approve with 
Conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Paragraph 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Paragraph 132 

 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing 

Summary of Main Issues 

The land is leased out to the Ruby Club but is within the ownership of Barrow Borough 
Council and so the Constitution requires the application to be determined by the Planning 
Committee. 

Page 2 of 99

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



 

The main material planning considerations are the impact of the development upon the 
amenity and character of the immediate area.  

Non Material Considerations 

 None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Ostley Bank 10, 17, Holy Family Roman Catholic School, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 17/08/2022 

Building regulation approval required for the proposals. 

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 18/08/2022 

"Public Footpath 601057 follows an alignment to the east of the proposed development 
area and must not be altered or obstructed before or after the development has been 
completed. 

If the footpath is to be temporarily obstructed then a formal temporary closure will be 
required there is a 12 week lead in time for this process, for further information please 
contact Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk. 

Plan attached indicating the public footpath as a green dashed line." 

Page 3 of 99

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



Public Consultation 

No comments have been received as a result of the public consultation process. 
 
 
Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site forms that of a well establish Rugby Club that is located to the east 
of Ostley Bank and is made up of a large rectangular playing field with existing buildings to 
the boundary of the site with Ostley Bank and a large tarmac parking area. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Extension to existing gym at sports club. The extension would form that of a single 
storey extension to the southern of the main host building. The extension would be 7.35 
metres in width and 10 metres in depth from the original side elevation. The height of the 
building would match that of the existing host building. 

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 B18/2010/0630 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Single extension to include toilets, office, storage area and social area to extend 
match day hospitality Appcond 18-NOV-2010 
 
3.2 B18/2012/0324 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Engineering scheme for the levelling of the pitch, including new training area and 
removal of hedgerow. Appcond 10-SEP-2012 
 
3.3 B18/2013/0123 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Demolition of part existing clubhouse (southern end) and erection of a two storey 
extension providing increased changing accommodation with gym over, and erection of a 
single storey extension to north elevation in a different form to that approved under 
Withdrawn 11-APR-2013 
 
3.4 B18/2014/0627 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Demolition of existing single storey changing facilities; construction of a new two 
storey extension forming new changing rooms, gymnasium. Appcond 25-NOV-2014 
 
3.5 B18/2014/0637 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Application for a Minor Material Amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2010/0630 to allow revised internal/external layout Appcond 17-NOV-2014 
 
3.6 B28/2012/0626 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Application for approval of hedgerow protection scheme as required by condition 
no 4 of planning permission 2012/0324 Approved 17-OCT-2012 

 

Page 4 of 99

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



 
3.7 BCO/2017/0339 Barrow Island Rugby Club Ostley Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 9LR Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 to 
allow the provision or regularated entertainment both indoor and outdoor, supply and sale 
of alcohol COMMSENT 07/06/2017 

4. Officer Assessment 

Impact Upon Amenity 

4.1 The application site is adjoined on the eastern boundary by the Holy Family Primary 
School and Church and it is considered that the proposed extension would be sited far 
enough away from these two facilities so as not to result in any harm impact in terms of loss 
of sun light and or over bearing impact 

4.2 There are no windows proposed within the side elevations of the Gym and therefore, it is 
considered that the proposed development would not result in any harm loss of privacy to 
neighbouring dwellings. 

4.3 Given the limited size of the extension proposed, whilst the Gym may result in a small 
increase in the numbers of persons visiting the site other than on match days or for training, 
it is not considered that the increase would result in any harm impact upon the amenity in 
terms of increased vehicle movements, loss of off site parking and or noise. The site is on 
the edge of a residential area and it is considered that some of the persons attending may 
do so on foot or cycle. 

Impact on Character 

4.4 Whilst accessed through a residential street the rugby club does not occupy a prominent 
location, instead its buildings are offset so that they are no visible in general views from 
Ostley Bank save for the final few metres of the road, with mature hedging providing a good 
level of screening. The buildings are of a functional appearance being a long linear single 
storey building with a range of different finishes in terms of red brick, render and roofing 
materials including both flat roofs and pitched.  

4.5 The plans submitted for the proposed extension show it to be finished in spar dash 
render. Whilst a section of the host building is finished in red brick, the main section of the 
existing building is finished in spar render. Based upon this, it is considered that the change 
of the end section to render would help to soften the impact of the development. The 
roofing materials stated to be used would match those of the existing roof i.e. a green 
profile sheet cladding material. 

4.6 Overall, given the modest size of the proposed extension, the development is not 
considered to result in any harmful impact upon the character of the local area.  

  

 

Page 5 of 99

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed development would assist in the development of a healthier life style and 
would aid the club in improving its overall offer in attracting new members to the sport. 

5.2 The clubhouse occupies a screened location, and the proposed development would not 
result in any unacceptable or harmful impact upon either the residential amenity, or 
residential character of the local area. It accords with both local and national planning 
policies and is therefore considered to be sustainable development. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 12.08.2022 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this permission. 
Approved plans: 
Site & Location Plan DRG REF BIRLC/3 
Proposed Elevations DRG REF BIRLC/2 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including walls, 
roofs, doors, and windows of the extensions hereby permitted must be in accordance with 
the details stated within the planning application dated the 12.08.2022 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise its impact upon 
the surrounding area. 
 

 
 

Page 6 of 99

Page 42

Agenda Item 9



Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting United 
Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

  _______________________________________________________________________ 

  

  

  

Page 7 of 99

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



2022/0603

Page 8 of 99

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9



2022/0603

Page 9 of 99

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9



B20/2022/0616 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2022/0616 Date Valid :19/08/2022 

Address : 152 156 Dalton Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1PU Case Officer : Adrian Adams 

Proposal : Change of use from Use Class E (Commercial, Business and Services) to Sui 
Generis (Betting Office) with associated external alterations including new rear doorway, 
alterations to shopfront and installation of 2 satellite dishes to side gable. 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : c/o Agent, 
Boyle Sports UK Ltd.  Agent : Mr Tobias Robinson, Lichfields  

Statutory Date : 14/10/2022 Recommendation : To Approve with 
Conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 008 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 011 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 081 
4. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 086 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R1 - The Vision for Barrow and Dalton 

Town Centres 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R2 - Barrow Town Centre 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R3 - Barrow’s Primary Shopping Area 

 

Page 10 of 99

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



Summary of Main Issues 

The key planning considerations to be assessed within this application are: 

• The principle of the development in terms of both local and national policies: 
• The impact of the proposed development in terms of its design: 
• The impact upon the Barrow Primary Shopping Area: 
• Sustainable Development 
• Economic benefits: 

Non Material Considerations 

  

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Dalton Road 148 150, 160 162, 
Stourbridge Road Midland Properties Hales Court, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Noise) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 07/09/2022 

Building regulation approval required for the proposals. 

Public Consultation Response 

One objection to the proposal was received as a result of the public consultation process. 
This stated the following points: 

Page 11 of 99

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



• The proposal would result in the loss of a large retail unit within the town centre and 
the Barrow Primary Shopping Area as defined by Policy R3 of the Barrow Local Plan. 

• Does not complement the retail function and would fail to add diversity of offer within 
the town centre. 

• Would have a detrimental impact upon the character of the shopping area and would 
result in an accumulation of similar uses within a concentrated area. 

• Does not promote healthy and safe communities in accordance with Local Planning 
Policy HC1 and could potentially lead to increased levels of Anti Social Behaviour.  

 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site is located within the main town centre area of Barrow in Furness 
consisting of a modern terraced two storey purpose built retail unit flanked by Costa Coffee 
and McDonalds. The application fronts onto the pedestrianised section of Dalton Road  within 
easy access of the town centre public car parks and public transport links.  

The unit was formerly occupied by Bright House which ceased trading in March 2020 and the 
unit has remained empty since then. Planning permission has been recently granted for the 
conversion of the first floor into 4 residential units, although this use does not yet appeared to 
have commenced.  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use from Use Class E (Commercial, Business and Services) to Sui Generis 
(Betting Office) with associated external alterations including new rear doorway, alterations to 
shopfront and installation of 2 satellite dishes to side gable. 

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 1974/0196 160 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness New shop front Approved 06/08/1974 
 
3.2 1974/0307 160 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
Internally illuminated fascia sign and projecting sign Appcond 02/07/1974 
 
3.3 1979/0421 160 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness New shop front, fascia, to shop for repair 
and sale or shoes Approved 03/07/1979 
 
3.4 1979/0442 160 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
Illuminated fascia and projecting signs Appcond 03/07/1979 
 
3.5 1981/0383 150 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness New shop front Approved 27/04/1981 
 

 

Page 12 of 99

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



3.6 1981/0431 154 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from shop to amusement 
centre and American style youth refreshment centre with take-away food sales Refused 
15/07/1981 
 
3.7 1984/0120 154/156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Conversion of 2 shops into one and 
the erection of a ground floor extension Appcond 29/03/1984 
 
3.8 1985/0116 152/156 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Demoliton of three shops and 
erection of one two storey shop Appcond 18/02/1985 
 
3.9 1985/0787 152/156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Redevelopment of three shops to 
form one retail unit Appcond 28/11/1985 
 
3.10 1986/0102 148/150 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Redevelopment to provide fast-food 
restaurant with take away service Appcond 03/04/1986 
 
3.11 1986/0452 148/150 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Amendment to application 86/0102 
to allow alteration of part of roof to flat roof and installation of plant Appcond 24/07/1986 
 
3.12 1986/0570 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Shop front details Approved 
21/08/1986 
 
3.13 1986/0598 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display internally 
illuminated fascia and projecting signs Appcond 21/08/1986 
 
3.14 1986/0693 148/150 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display illuminated logo 
sign to rear elevation Appcond 02/10/1986 
 
3.15 1986/0694 148/150 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display illuminated fascia 
and projecting signs to front and side elevations Appcond 02/10/1986 
 
3.16 1986/0795 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness Installation of air conditioning plant 
on roof Appcond 23/10/1986 
 
3.17 1987/0092 160-166 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Demoltion of 4 shops and erection of 
2 Appcond 31/07/1987 
 
3.18 1988 160-162 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
Illuminated fascia and projecting signs Appcond 21/07/1988 
 
3.19 1988/0527 160-162 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness New shop front Appcond 21/07/1988 
 
3.20 46/2007/0609 McDonalds (148-152) Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU 
Creation of a new shop front Appcond 12/06/2007 
 
3.21 57/2002/0623 148- 150 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU Installation 
of ATM machine facing onto Portland Walk Appcond 04/07/2002 
 
3.22 83/1994/0405 154-158 Dalton Road Barrow-In-Furness Cumbria Display of illuminated 
fascia sign Appcond 21/07/1994 

Page 13 of 99

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 
3.23 83/1996/0479 180-186 Dalton Road Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of 
illuminated fascia and projecting signage Appcond 16/09/1996 
 
3.24 83/1999/0531 154-158 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Advertisement Consent 
for display of illuminated fascia and projecting signs Appcond 02/09/1999 
 
3.25 83/2000/0471 154-158 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Display of illuminated 
static fascia and projecting signage Appcond 27/07/2000 
 
3.26 83/2001/0998 160 162 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU Display of 
internally illuminated static fascia and projecting signage Appcond 08/10/2001 
 
3.27 83/2002/0624 148- 150 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU Display of 
internally illuminated static fascia sign Appcond 04/07/2002 
 
3.28 83/2007/0608 McDonalds (148-152) Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU 
Advertisement Consent to display 2 no. internally illuminated projecting signs, three externally 
illuminated fascia signs and one externally illuminated high level sign to rear elevation. 
Appcond 04/06/2007 
 
3.29 B18/2017/0344 148 150 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU 
Reconfiguration and refurbishment of shopfront to include a 10.2Msq extension with new 
glazing panels with frames to match existing to square up the frontage APPCOND 
01/08/2017 
 
3.30 B18/2021/0598 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1PU Proposed 
change of use of 1st floor commercial storage/staff ancillary accommodation to 4no. 
residential units with external communal area with associated alterations to rear; division of 
the existing ground floor commercial outlet into two units with shared facilities at the rear. 
APPCOND 21/01/2022 
 
3.31 B20/2011/0298 160-162 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU Change of 
use of ground floor from retail (A1) to a mixed use coffee shop (A1/A3) Appcond 19-MAY-
2011 
 
3.32 B22/2011/0299 160-162 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU 
Advertisement Consent to display 1 No. internally illuminated fascia sign and 1 No. internally 
illuminated projecting sign. Appcond 20-MAY-2011 
 
3.33 B22/2017/0343 148 150 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU 
Advertisement consent to display 4x Illuminated fascia signs and 2 illuminated box signs 
associated with McDonalds Restaurant APPCOND 01/08/2017 
 
3.34 B31/2017/0595 148 150 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1PU Application 
for a non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 2017/0344 to allow 
granite plinths to extend the full width of the shop front. APPCOND 04/10/2017 

 

Page 14 of 99

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The key material considerations to be assessed within this application are as follows: 

• The principle of the development in terms of both local and national policies: 
• The impact on Character & Amenity 
• The impact upon the Barrow Primary Shopping Area: 
• Sustainable Development 
• Economic benefits: 

The Principle of the Development 

4.2 The application site is located on the pedestrianised section of Dalton Road within Barrow 
Town Centre as defined by local Planning Policy R2. Within the immediate area, whilst retail 
is the main offer, there are other uses such as hot food, barbers, betting offices and travel 
agents. The NPPF 2021 sets out town centre uses and includes non retail uses such as 
leisure which are complementary to the main shopping function.  

4.3 Local planning policy R1 seeks to ensure that all proposals for development within the 
town centre are consistent with the town centre vision that seeks to support a variety and 
flexibility of uses that would maintain and develop its role as the principal shopping area. It is 
considered that the change of use to a betting office would complement the existing retail 
offer and therefore accords with Planning Policy R1. 

4.4 Furthermore, both national and local planning policies promote a flexible approach to new 
non retail development that would contribute to the vitality, viability and diversity of town 
centres. The Governments wholesale change to the Use Classes Order in September 2021 
created a new E Class of which brought together a wide range of uses into one single use 
class. Whilst a Betting Office remains a Sui Generis use, the change in the Use Classes 
order signifies the Governments intent to provide more flexibility for town centres and 
recognises the important role of non retail uses in contributing to their viability. 

4.5 Based upon the above assessment, the betting office is considered to comply with both 
local and national planning policies and to be an acceptable town centre use that will widen 
the service offer for town centre visitors. 

The impact on Character & Amenity 

4.6 In terms of the visual impact, the two satellite dishes proposed would be located to the 
rear of the unit and upon a side elevation. They would be screened at ground level and only 
appear in more distant views against various paraphernalia such as aerials and roof mounted 
air conditioning units. 

4.7 The proposal would retain the existing shop front in place albeit it would be refurbished 
with the company's blue branding colour. New advertisements will be assessed within a 
separate application, but based upon this the application the elevational works would not 
result in any material change to the character of the local area. This accords with the Barrow 
Shop Front SPD. 

Page 15 of 99

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



 

4.8 In terms of the recently permitted 4 residential units located above the unit, whilst these 
may not have yet commenced, it is considered to be expedient to consider the impact upon 
these units in terms of their general amenity. It is worth noting that when permission was 
granted, this was conditional and required the flats to be constructed in accordance with an 
Acoustic Assessment Report to provide sound reduction between the flats and the ground 
floor activity. 

4.9 The betting office is proposed to be open 7 days per week (including Bank Holidays) from 
8am until 10pm. While these are longer hours than that of a traditional retail unit, it is 
considered that whilst a betting office may be a busy place, the operation of the business 
would not generate an excessive level of noise or disruption within the general area and are 
similar to those of the McDonalds restaurant next door to the site.  

4.10 The objection raised states among other points that the use as a betting office could 
result in possible antisocial behaviour but does not confirm why this would occur. In any 
event, it is considered that such issues would be covered by the Licencing regulatory 
process.  

The impact upon the Barrow Primary Shopping Area 

4.11 As set above, the use of the unit as a betting office is considered to be a town centre use 
that would accord with both local and national policies. It is considered that with the unit 
having been vacant since March 2020 and with the presence of several empty units within 
close proximity, the proposed use would bring a vacant unit back into use to the benefit of the 
local area and draw members of the public into the local area helping to add to the overall 
viability of the town centre and would therefore result in an overall positive contribution. 

Sustainable Development  

4.12 The proposed development would accord with the aims of Paragraph 84 NPPF that 
states that the use of previously development land and site that are physically well-related to 
the existing settlement, should be encourages where a suitable opportunity exists. On that 
basis, the development is considered to enhance the vibrancy of the town centre. 

4.13 In terms of impact upon the highway, the site is within a sustainable location with easy 
access to both car parking and public transport links and it not considered to result in any 
harmful impact upon highway safety. 

 

Economic benefits 

4.14 In addition to the benefits to the town centre with a new long term use of a former 
redundant unit, the application confirms that the proposal would result on average, in an 
investment in excess of £200,000 and would create 3 full time and 3 part time jobs, together 
with some local supply chain benefits during the conversion phase.  

Page 16 of 99

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposal is considered to the a suitable town centre use that accords with both local 
and national planning policy. The development would result in a long term investment within 
the local area that would create jobs and would generate additional footfall to the shopping 
area.  

5.2 Overall, the development is considered to represent sustainable development. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with the 
application dated 18.08.2022 and the hereby approved documents defined by this permission 
as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this permission. 
Approved Plans 
Site Location Plan DRG No. DAL/BAR/10 
Site Plan DRG No. DAL/BAR/11 
Proposed Shop Front Alterations Plan DRG No. DAL/BAR/08 
Satellite Dish Plan DRG No. DAL/BAR/09 
Proposed Ground Floor Plan DRG No. DAL/BAR/06 
Planning Statement Dated August 2022 Received with the application 18.08.2022 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority. 

 

 

 

 

Page 17 of 99

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting United 
Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

  

  

  

Page 18 of 99

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



Location Plan 1:1250

Number
Drawing Revision
Number
Drawing Revision

DescriptionDateRev

Crown Copyright and database rights 2022. OS 100031961 National Map Centre.

10m 20m 30m 40m 50m 60m 70mm

154 - 156

160

162

164

166

172

174

150
148

Robin

Hood
Inn

Dalton Road

Fell Street

C a r   P a r k

 Site in Application:
154 - 156 DALTON ROAD
 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU
DAL/BAR/10

2022/0616

Page 19 of 99

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



10m 20m 30m 40m 50m0m

Site Plan   1:500
Number
Drawing Revision
Number
Drawing Revision

154 - 156

160

162

164

166

172

174

150
148

Robin

Hood
Inn

Dalton Road

Fell Street

C a r   P a r k

 Site in Application:
154 - 156 DALTON ROAD
 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PUDAL/BAR/11

2022/0616

Page 20 of 99

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



Up

Down

R
 
A

 
M

 
P

 
 
 
U

 
P

1
 
5
 
0
 
M

 
M

ENTRANCE

D
 
a

 
l
 
t
 
o

 
n

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

P r o p o s e d   G r o u n d   F l o o r    P l a n   1 : 5 0

910

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1112131415

Fire Exit

F
 
e

 
l
 
l
 
 
 
 
S

 
t
 
r
 
e

 
e

 
t

(
S

 
e

 
r
 
v

 
i
 
c

 
e

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

)

up

RETAIL

BIN STORE

u
p

REAR

ENTRANCE

Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

Title

Revision

Ground Floor Area

Scale

Address

Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

JAM

Title

Revision

Scale

1:50 @ A1

Address

DescriptionDateRev

McKeowns

Plans for Construction

301 Alvechurch Road, Birmingham, B31 4UB Tel: 0121 433 4745

 PROPOSED GROUND

FLOOR PLAN

 BoyleSports



1 2 3 4

SCALE  IN METRES (1:50)

0 5

DAL/BAR/06

 154 - 156 DALTON ROAD

 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU

28/07/2022

176.5M2

PLANTER

OTHERS DEMISE

1

2

3

4

5

6

KEY:

2022/0616

Page 21 of 99

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 9



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

Title

Revision

Scale

Address



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

JAM

Title

Revision

Scale

1:50 @ A1

Address

DescriptionDateRev

McKeowns

Plans for Construction

301 Alvechurch Road, Birmingham, B31 4UB Tel: 0121 433 4745

 PROPOSED SHOPFRONT

ALTERATIONS

30/07/2022

1 2 3 4

SCALE  IN METRES (1:50)

0 5

 BoyleSports

Existing Front Elevation - Dalton Road      1:50 Proposed Front Elevation - Dalton Road    1:50

Existing shopfront frames and transoms panels to be retained.

Repair where necessary and employ specialist contractor

toundertake an electrostatic re-spray of all frames blue (RAL

5002). All gaskets to be replaced with new. Frame to be sealed

with black silicone seal as necessary.

Existing doors and fixed side panels together with door furniture

to be retained and thoroughly overhauled. Main contractor to

repair doors where necessary including reglazing. All glazing to

have British Standard's Kite Mark stamped upon the glass.

Specialist contractor to re-spray door frame to match blue (RAL

5002).

Existing brickwork faced stallrisers and pilaster finish to be

retained and cleaned down.

Proposed Rear Elevation   1:50

1
0
5
0

2
1
5
0

1000

Powder coated aluminium entrance door and frame to be polyester

powder finished to BS 6496 1984 and to match 'Blue' RAL 5002.

Standard bottom rail - 125mm x 44mm, Standard top rail - 57mm x

44mm and Pivot and lock stile 54 x 44mm. Glazing beads to be

square section. Neoprene gaskets to be sized according to

thickness of glass appropriate for panel sizes in accordance with

BS 6206:1981 - "Code of Practice for Glazing in Buildings". Glass

to be 9.7mm thick clear laminated glass to opening and fan light. All

glazing to have British Standard's Kite Mark stamped upon the

glass.

Existing Rear Elevation   1:50

 154 - 156 DALTON ROAD

 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU

DAL/BAR/08

2022/0616

Page 22 of 99

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 9



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

Title

Revision

Scale

Address

Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

JAM

Title

Revision

Scale

1:50 @ A1

Address

DescriptionDateRev

McKeowns

Plans for Construction

301 Alvechurch Road, Birmingham, B31 4UB Tel: 0121 433 4745

02/08/2022

1 2 3 4

SCALE  IN METRES (1:50)

0 5

 BoyleSports

Gully

Gully

Gully

Rwp

Rwp

R o o f    P l a n              1 : 5 0

R e a r   E l e v a t i o n              1 : 5 0 S i d e   E l e v a t i o n        1 : 5 0

Specialist contractor to supply and install

1no. 900mm dia and 1no. 780mm satellite

dishes mounted on a pole and affixed back

to structure.

Specialist contractor to supply and

install 1no. 900mm dia and 1no.

780mm satellite dishes mounted

on a pole and affixed back to

structure.

  SATELLITE DISH

INSTALLATION DETAILS



 154 - 156 DALTON ROAD

 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU

DAL/BAR/09

2022/0616

Page 23 of 99

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

Title

Revision

Scale

Address



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

JAM

Title

Revision

Scale

1:50 @ A1

Address

DescriptionDateRev

McKeowns

Plans for Construction

301 Alvechurch Road, Birmingham, B31 4UB Tel: 0121 433 4745



 BoyleSports

E x i s t i n g   R o o f    P l a n              1 : 5 0

Gully

Gully

Gully

RAISED PLINTH

Rwp

Rwp

D
 
a

 
l
 
t
 
o

 
n

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

F
 
e

 
l
 
l
 
 
 
 
S

 
t
 
r
 
e

 
e

 
t

(
S

 
e

 
r
 
v

 
i
 
c

 
e

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

)

JAM
1:50 @ A1

 EXISTING

ROOF PLAN

DAL/BAR/02

 154 - 156 DALTON ROAD

 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU

30/03/2022

1 2 3 4

SCALE  IN METRES (1:50)

0 5

2022/0616

Page 24 of 99

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 9



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

Title

Revision

Ground Floor Area

Scale

Address



Date

Number

Drawing

Drawn

JAM

Title

Revision

Scale

1:50 @ A1

Address

DescriptionDateRev

McKeowns

Plans for Construction

301 Alvechurch Road, Birmingham, B31 4UB Tel: 0121 433 4745

 EXISTING GROUND

FLOOR PLAN



DAL/BAR/01

232.5M2

 154 - 156 DALTON ROAD

 BARROW IN FURNESS

LA14 1PU

30/03/2022

 BoyleSports

Up

Down

Up 1400mm

+ 4000MM

Structural Ceiling

Height

S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
S

h
u
t
t
e
r

S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
S

h
u
t
t
e
r

NO

ACCESS

E N T R A N C E

R
 
A

 
M

 
P

 
 
 
U

 
P

1
 
5
 
0
 
M

 
M

+ 2627MM

Suspended Ceiling

Height

+ 4025MM

Structural Ceiling

Height

+ 4000MM

Structural Ceiling

Height

+ 2975MM

Suspended Ceiling

Height

+ 3 6 4 0 M M

+ 2447MM

Display Ceiling

Height

+ 2447MM

Display Ceiling

Height

910

1

2

E x i s t i n g   G r o u n d   F l o o r    P l a n   1 : 5 0

D
 
a

 
l
 
t
 
o

 
n

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

F
 
e

 
l
 
l
 
 
 
 
S

 
t
 
r
 
e

 
e

 
t

(
S

 
e

 
r
 
v

 
i
 
c

 
e

 
 
 
 
R

 
o

 
a

 
d

)

232.5m2 (gross) 2502.7ft2 (gross)

1 2 3 4

SCALE  IN METRES (1:50)

0 5

3

4

5

6

7

8

1112131415

10m 20m 30m 40m 50m 60m 70mm

1

5

4

 

-

 

1

5

6

1

6

0

1

6

2

1

6

4

1

6

6

1

7

2

1

7

4

1

5

0

1

4

8

R

o

b

i

n

H

o

o

d

I

n

n

D

a

l

t

o

n

 

R

o

a

d

F

e

l

l

 

S

t

r

e

e

t

C

 

a

 

r

 

 

 

P

 

a

 

r

 

k

L o c a t i o n    P l a n   1 : 1 2 5 0

OTHERS DEMISE

2022/0616

Page 25 of 99

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9



B21/2022/0595 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  
Application Number : B21/2022/0595 Date Valid :12/08/2022 

Address : 13 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 9LN Case Officer : Adrian Adams 

Proposal : Erection of a rear ground floor extension forming extended kitchen. 

Ward : Newbarns Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mrs J McLaughlin   Agent : Mrs J McLaughlin   

Statutory Date : 07/10/2022 Recommendation : Approve with 
Conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the 
Coast 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 
to sustainable development 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H16 - Loss of Sunlight 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H17 - Protection of 

Residential Privacy 

Summary of Main Issues 

The applicants are related to an Officer within Development Services and 
therefore under the Council Constitution, the application is required to be 
determined by the Planning Committee. 

The main material considerations to be considered within this application are the 
impact of the development upon the residential amenity of the neighbouring 
properties and the impact upon the local character of the area. 

Page 26 of 99

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



 

Non Material Considerations 

None reported 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Harrel Lane 11, 15, 3, 5, 7, 9, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
   
List of Organisation Responses 
12/08/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Public Consultation 

No comments have been received as a result of the public consultation process. 
 
Officers Report 
  
1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is located within the main urban boundary of Barrow In Furness and 
within a well established residential area. The host property forms that of a two 
storey semi detached property with gardens and off street parking to the front of the 
site and private gardens to the rear. The property is attached to an identical property 
in terms of size and design on its north eastern side elevation. 

 

 

Page 27 of 99

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Erection of a rear ground floor extension to enlarge the kitchen. The proposed 
extension would measure 3.2 metres in width and would be 2 metres in depth 
from the rear elevation, the overall height of the extension would be 3.3 metres.  

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 57/1991/0565 3 Harrel Lane, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of ground floor bedroom 
and shower room extension Appcond 04/09/1991 
 
3.2 57/2002/1182 13 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 9LN Erection of a 
rear first floor rear extension forming a study Approved 13/01/2003 
 
3.3 57/2004/0361 15 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 9LN Erection of a 
replacement double garage. Appcond 29/04/2004 
 
3.4 B21/2012/0372 15 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 9LN Extending 
the length of the existing two storey wing (in single and two storey form) and width 
(single storey only) Appcond 23-JUL-2012 
 
3.5 B21/2017/0680 15 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 9LN Proposed 
additional first floor onto existing garage to form store/garden room. APPCOND 
05/12/2017 
 
3.6 B21/2020/0431 11 Harrel Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9LP Two 
storey rear and side extension to form enlarged kitchen family/room on ground floor 
and enlarged bedroom with en-suite on first floor. APPCOND 17/11/2020 

4. Officer Assessment 

Key Planning Issues 
4.1 The key material planning considerations to be assessed within this application 
are the impact of the proposed development upon the residential amenity of 
neighbours and upon the character of the local area. 

Residential Amenity 

Sunlight 
4.2 Local Planning Policy H16 states that extensions to dwellings will be permitted 
unless they adversely affect the amenities of neighbouring properties by virtue of an 
undue loss of sunlight or daylight or by the creation of an overbearing impact or 
unacceptable level of enclosure. The main impact of the proposed development in 
terms of Policy H16 is upon the attached house on the north eastern side elevation, 
being No. 15 Harrel Lane. 

 

Page 28 of 99

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



 

4.3 This property has also been previously extended with a single storey lean-to style 
rear extension that is of a similar size to that proposed. There are no windows within 
the southwestern side elevation of this existing extension and therefore, it is 
considered that the proposed development would not result in any harmful loss of 
direct sunlight or sense of being over bearing. 

4.4 On that basis, the development is considered to be acceptable and to accord with 
the aims of Local Planning Policy H16. 

Privacy 
4.5 Local Planning Policy H17 states that proposals for extensions must demonstrate 
through good design that an acceptable standard of privacy can be maintained 
between opposing and neighbouring properties. As noted above, there are no 
windows within the side elevation of the single storey rear extension too No.15 and 
at the proposed extension will adjoin this development, it is considered that the 
proposed development would not result in any harmful loss of privacy or sense of 
over looking. 

4.6 Any views of the proposed from the neighbours to the west of the site, would be 
shielded an existing single storey outhouse. 

4.7 Therefore, the development is considered to accord with Local Planning Policy 
H17 and is acceptable on this point. 

4.8 In conclusion of the above points, the host property would retain an adequate 
level of amenity gardens and the proposed development is not considered to result 
in any harmful impact upon the residential amenity of the immediate area. 

Residential Character 

4.9 It is considered that the scale and design are in keeping with the general 
characteristics of the local area. 

4.10 The application form confirms that the materials to be used on the external 
elevations will match those of the main host property and based upon a condition 
being attached to ensure this, the development is acceptable. 

Parking 

4.11 The proposed development does not alter or restrict any of the existing off street 
parking arrangements within the site and is therefore considered to be acceptable on 
this basis. 

  

 

Page 29 of 99

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed development would not result in any unacceptable or harmful 
impact upon either the residential amenity, or residential character of the local area. 
It accords with both local and national planning policies and is therefore considered 
to be sustainable development. 

6. Recommendation 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard  
 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance 
with the application dated 11.08.2022 and the hereby approved documents defined 
by this permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this 
permission. 
Approved Plans: 
Site Location Plan Received on the 11.08.2022 
Site Layout Plan Received on the 11.08.2022 
Section Plan DRG No. KCM/005 
Proposed Elevations DRG No. KCM/004 
Proposed Plan Dimensions DRG No. KCM/0002 
Proposed Floor Plan DRG No. KCM/009 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including 
walls, roofs, doors, and windows of the extensions hereby permitted shall be of the 
same type, colour, and texture as those used in the existing building. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise its impact 
upon the surrounding area. 
 
 

Page 30 of 99

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

   

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

   

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting 
United Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

 

   

  
  

Page 31 of 99

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



Page 32 of 99

Page 68

Agenda Item 9



Page 33 of 99

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



Page 34 of 99

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9



Page 35 of 99

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9



Page 36 of 99

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9



Page 37 of 99

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



B18/2022/0533 
Planning Committee 

4th October 2022   

  

  

Application Number :B18/2022/0533 Date Valid :01/07/2022 

Address : 9 Risedale Road,  
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9QX Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Application for variation of condition no. 7 of planning permission 
B20/2021/0523; (Change of use from sandwich shop/takeaway (Class E) to hot food 
takeaway (sui-generis) with installation of extraction flu to rear elevation) to extend 
operational hours to 23:00 hours. 

Ward : Risedale Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr S Sefil   Agent : Mr S Sefil   

Statutory Date : 26/08/2022 Recommendation : Grant subject to 
condition 

Barrow Planning Hub   
 

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 – Paragraph 11 

2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 – Paragraph 81  

Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can 
invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support 
economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider 
opportunities for development.  

 3.  National Planning Policy Framework 2021 – Paragraph 130:    

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development; 

 

 

Page 38 of 99

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-
being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and 
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion 
and resilience. 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 

4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R16 - Opening hours of hot food 
takeaways 

Policy R16: Opening Hours of Hot Food Takeaways 

When considering appropriate hours of operation for hot food takeaways, regard will be had 
to: 

1.The existence of an established evening economy in the area 

2.The character and function of the immediate area;  

3.The potential benefits of the proposal for the wider community; and 

4. Impact on residential amenity. 

Extract from Local Plan Text:  8.8.22 - There is insufficient evidence available to justify a 
policy which requires hot food takeaways to close at a particular time, particularly when the 
opening hours of existing evening uses is taken into account. This policy allows each 
application to be determined on its merits taking into account the specific criteria, helping 
ensure the amenities of local residents are protected.  

5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R19 - Neighbourhood Shopping Centres 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is whether the additional two hours of opening between 9pm and 11pm 
would have an unacceptable impact upon residential amenity given the context of the 
application site being situated within a neighbourhood shopping area containing other 
premises that trade into the evening hours. 

Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Page 39 of 99

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Kent Street 10, 12, 8, 
Risedale Road 11, 12, 13, 7, Flat 9, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 2 0 

Site notice displayed expiring on 5.8.22 

Summary of Responses 

Both responses are from nearby neighbours to the site.  One response requests that the 
approved opening hours remain.  The other response objects to the change of use of the 
property citing concerns over traffic, obstruction of back street and access to rear of 
properties, smell from food and waste bins attracting vermin, noise from later opening hours 
and increased rubbish 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee  
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Noise) 

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Noise 26/07/2022)  

“Thank you for the above consultation. I can confirm that no complaints have been received 
since planning permission 2021/0523 was granted. Therefore I see no reason why I can 
object to the increase in operational hours subject to the original conditions being complied 
with.” 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is a two storey mid terraced shop with flat above within a 
neighbourhood shopping centre as identified in the Local Plan (Policy R19). The adjacent 
property (No. 7) is in full residential use, albeit in a poor state of repair, with a vacant green 
grocer shop at No. 11.  There is also a flat above the off licence (No. 3) and the post office 
(No. 1).   It stands within a commercial group of properties consisting of post office, 
sandwich shop, off licence/convenience store and greengrocers.  Opposite the site there is 

Page 40 of 99

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



a chemist, bookmaker and launderette.  The remainder of Risedale Road is principally in 
residential use, consisting of two storey terraced houses.  The rear of the site is served by a 
wide back street.  The surrounding streets are residential laid out in a traditional grid-iron 
pattern.   There is a scattering of commercial premises including hot food takeaways within 
these areas but they generally relate to either very old planning approvals or pre-date 
planning legislation. 

1.2 The majority of properties in the area have no dedicated off road parking facilities and 
consequently vehicles are parked along both sides of the carriageway.  The area adjacent 
to the application site and commercial properties opposite have time limited parking bays 
of 10 minutes, presumably to cater for the commercial nature of this part of the street. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Application for variation of condition no. 7 of planning permission B20/2021/0523) 
Change of use from sandwich shop/takeaway (Class E) to hot food takeaway (sui-generis) 
with installation of extraction flu to rear elevation) to extend operational hours to 23:00 
hours. 

2.2 The condition was worded as follows: 

7. The use hereby permitted shall not operate between the hours of 2100 and 0700 the 
following day. 
 
Reason 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1975/0681 7 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Conversion of shop premises to living 
accommodation Approved 07/10/1975 
 
3.2 1978/1304 9 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Change the use from a shop to a 
residential dwelling Approved 10/01/1979 
 
3.3 1989/0588 Barney's Fruit and Veg Shop, 11 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - 
Erection of a ground floor rear extension to provide a store room Refused 13/10/1989 
 
3.4 1989/0948 11 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Erection of a ground floor rear 
extension to provide a store room Refused 25/01/1990 
 
3.5 57/1996/0180 11 Risedale Road Barrow-In-Furness - Extension to provide toilet and 
washroom Approved 12/06/1996 
 
3.6 75/2004/1233 9 Risedale Road Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from bakers shop 
(A1) to fish and chip shop (A3) including new shop front, shutters and improved access 
Withdrawn 20/12/2004 

 
 

Page 41 of 99

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



3.7 B20/2021/0523 9 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from sandwich 
shop/takeaway (Class E) to hot food takeaway (sui-generis) with installation of extraction flu 
to rear elevation. APPCOND 06/10/2021 
 
3.8 BIN/2020/0859 9 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Prior Notification of a Change of 
use from Class A1 (shop) to Class C3 (dwellinghouse) forming a 1 bedroom ground floor 
flat (including natural light to all habitable rooms). INVALID 
 
3.9 BPAB/2021/0112 9 Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness - Prior Notification of a Change of 
use from Class A1 (shop) to Class C3 (dwellinghouse) forming a 1 bedroom ground floor 
flat (including natural light to all habitable rooms). WITHDRAWN 28/04/2021 

 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The key consideration for this proposal is the potential impact on residential amenity 
from the proposed additional two opening hours up to 11pm.  This consideration involves a 
balance of issues.  The local plan has a specific policy relating to opening hours of hot food 
takeaways (R16) which sets criteria to take into account. Both local and national planning 
policies are a consideration including paragraphs 81 and 130 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.  Paragraph 81 places significant weight on supporting economic growth 
and paragraph 130 places importance on residential amenity.  Another matter is the 
adjacent property uses, their permitted opening hours and current operating hours  within 
this defined neighbourhood shopping area.  The reason for the original condition was to 
protect the residential amenities of the area.     

4.2 This permission for the host property to convert into a hot food takeaway was grated in 
October 2021 (2021/0523).  The premises has yet to open as the approved use.   Whilst the 
principle of the change of use to a hot food takeaway has been agreed, the 
anticipated opening hours were a factor in the decision to approve the scheme and 
the acceptability of the takeaway use in this location.  Within the approval were several 
conditions in addition to the opening hours which related to approved plans, a 
comprehensive scheme of soundproofing and detailed flue/extraction information along with 
a restriction in terms of noise from the development.  

Planning Policy 

4.3 Local plan policy R16 sets criteria to take account of during decision making.  The first 
criteria relates to the established evening economy in the area.   The adjacent Post Office 
closes at 5.30pm Monday to Friday and at 2.30pm on Saturdays, the off licence closes at 
9pm Monday to Friday and 10pm on Saturday and Sunday and the sandwich shop closes 
at 4pm.  Opposite the site, the Pharmacy closes at 6.30pm Monday to Friday and 5.30pm 
on Saturdays, the betting shop closes at 9pm Monday to Friday, 8.30pm Saturday and 
6.30pm Sunday and the Launderette closes at 8pm Sunday to Friday with a 6pm closing on 
Saturdays.  This results in only one shop opening past 9pm in the locality.  In recent years, 
the conversion of the Washington public house to a residential use has reduced the level of 
evening activity within the locality.  

Page 42 of 99

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



 

4.4 The second criteria relates to the character and function of the immediate area, which as 
described above is one of residential and mixed commercial use adjacent to the site with a 
largely residential nature beyond.   

4.5 The third criteria specifically relates to the potential benefits of the proposal for the wider 
community.  The additional two opening hours could provide a wider choice of late night 
food provision. 

4.6 The fourth criteria relates to the impact on residential amenity.  This is the stated reason 
for the condition being placed on the initial application and a key element of the policy 
wording is to ensure that the amenities of the local residents are protected.  Immediately 
adjacent to the site is a property with established  residential use albeit currently vacant and 
undergoing renovation. Soundproofing is to be provided within the permitted hot food 
takeaway as conditioned by the previous approval, which will assist in protecting this 
property from any impact from inside the application site.   Any future occupier would be 
aware of the adjacent use. 

4.7 The wider locality of the site has a general residential character beyond the row of shops 
the application site is situated within.  The introduction of the two additional opening hours 
within this locality could attract customers/delivery drivers and have a modest impact on 
the residential amenity in the area, although this is tempered by the mixed character of the 
area whereby residents will expect some level of commercial activity.   

4.8 In addition to this specific local plan policy, national planning policy places importance on 
residential amenity under paragraph 130 but also places significant weight upon the need to 
support economic growth in paragraph 81.  The applicant has advised that they have 
operated at two other separate premises until 11pm with no concerns raised.  However, as 
can be evidenced in this instance, the permission relates to the property and not the 
occupier and ownership can change, therefore this matter cannot be given weight. 

Adjacent Commercial Properties 

4.9 The shops adjacent and opposite the site currently operate as stated previously.  
However, it is relevant to consider whether they could open later under the planning 
permissions.  The details are as follows:  

1 Risedale Road (Post Office) - no restriction on hours 
3 Risedale Road (Sandwich Shop) - no restriction on hours 
5 Risedale Road - (Off Licence) - no restriction on hours 
7 Risedale Road - (Residential Property) - no restriction on hours 
11 Risedale Road - (Former Fruit and Veg Shop) - no restriction on hours 
8-10 Risedale Road - (Chemist) - no restriction on hours 
4-6 Risedale Road  - (Betting Shop) - restricted to 10pm closing 
2 Risedale road - (Launderette) - no restriction on hours 

 

Page 43 of 99

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Neighbourhood Shopping Centres 

4.10 The host property is positioned within a Neighbourhood Shopping Centre which is one 
of several across the Borough.  The others are detailed below: 

4.11 Ainslie Street, Barrow • Amphitrite Street, Walney • Anchor Road, Barrow Island • Bath 
Street, Barrow • Douglas Street, Walney • Duke Street, Askam • Lakes Parade, Hawcoat • 
Lesh Lane, Barrow • Middlefield, Ormsgill • Mill Lane, Walney • Ruskin Avenue, Dalton 

4.12 Looking at each of these 11 areas, with the exception of Amphitrite Street, Douglas 
Street and Mill Lane on Walney and Lakes Parade, they all have at least 2 hot food 
takeaways operating from them.  When considering the opening hours they are generally 
permitted to open until 11pm with some opening slightly later.  The nature of a 
neighbourhood shopping area is such that they are generally positioned within residential 
areas. Following consultation with Public Protection regarding these other takeaways, they 
have advised that if they receive a complaint:  "the nuisance tends to come from odours but 
is rare. It is even rarer that noise issues arise from activities. I think the last noise complaint 
regarding a takeaway was over 5 years ago and it was extract related they very rarely 
receive complaints".  

4.13 However, each application should be considered on its merits, as the character of each 
shopping area is different.  This application site is positioned on a main vehicular route 
giving a higher level of traffic movement in the area. 

Night Time Hours 

4.14 It is generally recognised that, for amenity purposes, the hours of 11pm to 7am are the 
times where noise should be kept at a lower level as is illustrated in the condition on the 
original approval requiring a lower level of sound output during these hours. 

Conditions Test 

4.15 Within the National Planning Policy Framework at paragraph 56 it states that planning 
conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are necessary, 
relevant to planning and the development permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in 
all other respects.  The original permission for the change of use specifically applied for a 
9pm closing time on the application form, which may have suited the business model of the 
proposed operator then.  As discussed earlier, this was a factor in the approval and 
assisted the consideration of impacts on residential amenity and it was felt reasonable to 
attach this at the time of the application. 

4.16 It is however, also recognised that the character of hot food takeaway uses has altered 
in recent years with the advent of increased delivery services.  There is potential for a 
reduced level of visits to these types of sites than there would have been in the past where 
each order was collected by an individual customer rather than a delivery driver taking 
several orders at once.  

 

Page 44 of 99

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



 

4.17 The conditions test is a relevant matter to consider to establish if the condition 
continues to meet the 'reasonable' element of the test and whether not permitting an 
additional two hours opening up to 11pm would be unreasonable.  There is a potential 
concern that a refusal of the two additional opening hours proposed could be considered 
unreasonable when taking account of the potential for adjacent properties to open with no 
restrictions on hours.  Also it is recognised that the character of hot food takeaway use in 
recent years, particularly since the pandemic with the emphasis on delivery rather than 
customer collection resulting in reduced attendance to premises. It is not uncommon for a 
delivery driver to take several orders in one trip.  Taking this into account, in addition to 
examples of takeaways operating within other neighbourhood shopping centres up to the 
proposed 2300h closing time, a refusal is unlikely to be sustainable at appeal. 

Representations 

4.18 As detailed above two representations have been received in relation to the site.  One 
raises matters which were considered under the change of use application but neighbours 
have raised concerns over disturbance from the additional two hours proposed. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 This is a finely balanced application.  On the one hand residential amenity is an 
important factor to consider, there is also significant weight placed by national planning 
policy on supporting economic growth.  Opening for an additional two hours to 11pm may 
have a modest impact on residential amenity compared to a 9pm closing time.  However, 
the site is situated within an established commercial block of properties identified as a 
neighbourhood shopping area, many of which could operate with unlimited opening times 
under planning.  There are examples of similar uses operating across other neighbourhood 
shopping centres with a similar closing time with no recognisable adverse impact upon 
residential amenity. Finally, there is concern that  not permitting an additional two hours of 
operation could be considered to be acting unreasonably if the applicant were to appeal.  
The proposed 11pm closing time does not extend beyond what is recognised as night time 
hours. 

5.2 Ultimately, given the soundproofing between the host property and its immediate 
neighbour and existing conditions placed in the approved use which remain in force 
that offer protection in terms of noise from the premises, there should be a modest impact 
on residential amenity from the additional two hours of opening.   This is not considered to 
be within an unacceptable level.  

 

 

 

 

Page 45 of 99

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions : - 

 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 14.6.21 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
Application form dated 21.6.21 
Transport Form dated 11.6.21 
Extraction Equipment and Maintenance Schedule dated 10.6.21 
6N02250/00 
MEJ/2021/615/004 issue 3 
MEJ/2021/615/005 issue 2 
MEJ/2021/615/006 issue 3 
MEJ/2021/615/007 NTS 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
2. Prior to the beneficial use of any part of the development, the ceiling/floor between the 
ground and first floor must be acoustically insulated and thereafter permanently retained as 
detailed on plan MEJ/2021/615/004 issue 3. 
 
Reason 
 
To protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the first floor flat. 
 
3. Prior to the beneficial use of any part of the development, the wall treatment panel 
between the site and 7 Risedale Road must installed and thereafter permanently retained 
as detailed on plan MEJ/2021/615/007 NTS. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities to the occupiers of 7 Risedale Road 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
4. The use hereby permitted shall not operate between the hours of 2300 and 0700 the 
following day. 

 

Page 46 of 99

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
5. Emissions from any proposed or future cooking processes must be extracted through a 
properly designed and constructed exhaust ventilation system, adequately filtered and 
discharged at sufficient height and velocity to prevent cooking odours being observed at 
any neighbouring properties. The exhaust gas flow must not be restricted by any plate, cowl 
or similar structure at the outlet which might affect dispersion. The system must thereafter 
be retained as approved unless the Planning Authority gives prior written approval to any 
variations and operated and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the amenities of the surrounding area, including occupants of 
neighbouring properties, by minimising the potential for the discharging of cooking odours. 
 
6. Noise from the development, including noise from the extraction equipment required by 
any other condition attached to this consent, must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR30 
during daytime hours (07.00 -23.00) and NR25 during night time hours (23.00 - 07.00) in 
any adjacent noise sensitive property. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to minimise the potential for noise pollution. 
 
Informative 

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

• The proposed development is situated within the potential inundation area for 
Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs. These Reservoirs fall under the Water 
Framework Directive and have a prepared off site emergency plan. The applicant is 
advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency Planning office to allow for 
further discussion of available information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer, 
Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, 
Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA. 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Page 47 of 99

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



2022/0533

Page 48 of 99

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



B20/2022/0416 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  
Application Number : B20/2022/0416 Date Valid :01/07/2022 

Address : 197 Rawlinson Street 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1ED Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Change of use from office (class E) to hot food takeaway (Sui 
Generis) including installation of extraction equipment to the rear elevation 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr M Kowalski   Agent :    

Statutory Date : 26/08/2022 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 081 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 130 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 
to sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R15 - The location of hot food 

takeaways 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R16 - Opening hours of hot 

food takeaways 

 

 

Page 49 of 99

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



Summary of Main Issues 

The key considerations for this proposal are the impact from the change of 
use compared to the existing lawful use of the site and the expanded uses permitted 
under the recently introduced Use Class E, along with impact on residential amenity.  
An objection to the proposal has been received from a nearby resident. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Rawlinson Street 195, Flat 195, 199, 
Robert Street 66, 
Silverdale Street 10, 8, 9, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Site notice displayed expiring on 5.8.22 

Summary of Response 

Raises concerns over: 

• the impact on parking and reduced potential of parking outside home 
• impact from extractor fan and its proximity to property 
• impact from grease/dust on child's health due to severe asthma 
• impact from opening hours and potential for increased disturbance 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Licensing) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Noise) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 99

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



List of Organisation Responses 

26/07/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Noise) 

B20/2022/0416-Change of use from office (class E) to hot food takeaway (Sui 
Generis)-197 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1ED. 

Thank you for the above consultation. The proposed development is directly 
adjacent to residential houses. The placement of the extract is suitable but I would 
request that the following conditions are placed on any subsequent planning 
approval: 

1.All future emissions vented to the ‘external environment’ from cooking processes 
must be extracted through a properly designed and constructed exhaust ventilation 
system, adequately filtered and discharged vertically at sufficient height,  at least 1 
metre above eaves level, or incorporating adequate odour mitigation measures in the 
ventilation extract design to prevent cooking odours being observed at any 
neighbouring properties.  Any exhaust gas flow must not be restricted by any plate 
etc at the outlet which might affect dispersion.  Details of the proposed system must 
be submitted to the Planning Department for approval prior to construction and any 
proposed system must be adequately maintained as such in perpetuity. 

2. Noise from the development must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR 30 in 
daytime hours (0700 - 2300) and NR 25 in night time hours (2300 - 0700) in any 
noise sensitive property. 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is a two storey mid terraced property situated on the eastern 
side of Rawlinson Street just within the Town Centre as designated in the Local 
plan.  Its most recent use has been as an office and before this it operated as a 
hairdressers.  Adjacent to the site on the south is a Fish and Chip shop and to the 
north a residential dwelling. 

1.2 Rawlinson Street is a busy route through Barrow.  The block within which the 
application site is set, extends from Crellin Street along to Lord Street.  On this 
section are a mix of residential and commercial uses typical of the town centre 
periphery including a convenience store, taxi office, photography studio, hairdressers 
and three hot food takeaways.  Time limited parking bays extend along the majority 
of this side of the highway and also in the adjacent residential terraced streets. 

 

 

Page 51 of 99

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use from office (class E) to hot food takeaway (Sui Generis) including 
installation of extraction equipment to the rear elevation 

2.2 The details have been provided of the extraction equipment to the rear elevation 
and opening hours have been specified until 11pm Monday to Saturday with 6pm on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays.  The proposed change of use is to generate 5 full time 
equivalent jobs.  No changes are proposed to the shop front. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 1988/0240 195 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Installation of flue on rear 
elevation Approved 25/04/1988 
 
3.2 1988/0254 195 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Consent to display 
advertisements - Installation of an illuminated projecting sign Appcond 25/04/1988 
 
3.3 45/2000/0080 197 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness - Erection of rear ground 
floor extensions for the provision of a workshop and disabled toilet facility. Appcond 
09/03/2000 
 
3.4 70/1998/0084 197 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from 
shop (A1) to licensed betting office (A2) with ground floor extension to rear Appcond 
18/03/1998 
 
3.5 B18/2011/0566 Tracey Wells Hair, 197 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness -
 Replacement of existing Upvc shop front with painted hardwood shop front, 
including hardwood windows at first floor level. Appcond 29-SEP-2011 
 
3.6 B20/2015/0578 197 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness - Notification for prior 
approval for a proposed change of use of a building from a hairdressers (A1) to a 
single dwelling house. APPLETT 27-OCT-2015 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The key considerations for this proposal are the impact from the change of 
use compared to the existing lawful use of the site and the expanded uses permitted 
under Use Class E, along with impact on residential amenity.  An objection to the 
proposal has been received from a nearby resident. 

Principle of Development 

4.2 The host property has previously operated as an office of a web designer up until 
February 2022 and it currently has no restriction on the hours it can operate. 

 

 

Page 52 of 99

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



4.3 The lawful use of the site falls within the category of Class E which is a broad use 
class introduced in September 2020.  This merged several use classes and the 
current use would allow the following to operate from the premises without the need 
for planning permission: 

• E(a) Display or retail sale of goods, other than hot food 
• E(b) Sale of food and drink for consumption (mostly) on the premises 
• E(c) Provision of:  

o E(c)(i) Financial services, 
o E(c)(ii) Professional services (other than health or medical services), or 
o E(c)(iii) Other appropriate services in a commercial, business or 

service locality 
• E(d) Indoor sport, recreation or fitness (not involving motorised vehicles or 

firearms or use as a swimming pool or skating rink,) 
• E(e) Provision of medical or health services (except the use of premises 

attached to the residence of the consultant or practitioner) 
• E(f) Creche, day nursery or day centre (not including a residential use) 
• E(g) Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without detriment to 

its amenity:  
o E(g)(i) Offices to carry out any operational or administrative functions, 
o E(g)(ii) Research and development of products or processes 
o E(g)(iii) Industrial processes 

4.4 The established uses near to the site, including the adjacent hot food takeaway, 
already attract a level of comings and goings in the area from both customers and 
deliveries.  Upon checking the planning history, there is no restriction in opening 
hours for the adjacent takeaway which enjoys an old consent.  The others are 
restricted to a 11pm closing time.  

4.5 Under the lawful use of the property an example of a permitted change to the use, 
not requiring planning permission, would be to open as a restaurant.  In terms of 
impact from the food sold, full hot food provision can be provided in a restaurant 
setting.  Whilst the number of tables available naturally provides some control over 
numbers, a takeaway element could also be provided which would potentially have a 
similar impact to a change of use to a full hot food takeaway.  Since the pandemic, 
there has been more demand for takeaway food outlets with many restaurants 
offering delivery services for longer hours.  This could again operate from the site 
now without the need for permission. 

4.5 The difference which triggered the need for this application is the sale of hot 
food to be consumed mostly off the premises which does not fall into the description 
of Class E above and therefore requires a 'sui generis' permission.  Whilst very 
similar to a restaurant provision, the volumes of hot food could be potentially larger 
than a restaurant and one of the key concerns relates to impact from odour due to 
the cooking methods which require extraction equipment.  As the cooking processes 
have the potential to generate smells, the extraction details are an important part of 
the details submitted.  They also have the potential to be noisy if not adequately 
maintained.  Following discussion with colleagues in Public Protection and the 
applicant, the details submitted in relation to the extraction equipment have been 
updated to an acceptable level.  They are sited immediately above the cooking area 

Page 53 of 99

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



and extract through the rear wall and up to a height sufficient to disperse odours 
above eaves level.  It is also relevant to note that Public Protection have separate 
legislation to ensure businesses operate effectively in terms of noise and odour.    

4.6 Taking account of the updated extraction details provided and the existing use of 
the site, any impact is considered to be similar to that of the lawful use.  The 
installation of extraction equipment should be sufficient to mitigate odour from the 
property.   

Planning Policy 

4.7 Particularly relevant to this proposal are policies R15 and R16 which directly 
relate to hot food takeaways.  R15 sets criteria which applications should be 
assessed against in terms of location and R16 relates specifically to opening hours.  
Taking these in turn: 

Policy R15 - The location of hot food takeaways 

Applications for hot food takeaways, including those which involve the 
relaxation of opening hours, will be permitted where: 

a)    They are located within the urban boundaries of Barrow or Dalton or are 
within a Development Cordon identified in Policy H4; 

The site is set within the urban boundary and designated town centre of Barrow. 

b)    The applicant submits evidence to the Council’s agreement to 
demonstrate that there will be no adverse impact upon the local environment 
and residential amenities by reason of noise, odour, litter, waste disposal, 
traffic and parking; and 

When considering the impact on the local environment it is relevant to take into 
account the existing situation on site and the authorised use. This already generates 
a level of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and resulting parking requirements along 
with litter.  Details have been provided by the applicant which details the waste 
storage is to be within the rear yard.  A condition has been detailed in the response 
from Public Protection in terms of noise and odour.   

In terms of traffic generation, a transport form has been submitted.  The site is set 
within a sustainable location in terms of access.   

c)    Full details are submitted at application stage of any extraction equipment 
in order that the visual implications can be fully assessed. This is of particular 
importance if any heritage assets or their setting are affected which may 
require additional detail.  

 

 

Page 54 of 99

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



Full details have been provided of the extraction equipment.  The position of the flue 
to the rear of the site ensures there is minimal visual impact from the proposal.   

4.8 Policy R16 - Opening hours of hot food takeaways 

When considering appropriate hours of operation for hot food takeaways, 
regard will be had to: 

a) The existence of an established evening economy in the area; 

There is an established evening economy in the area.  The site is set within a town 
centre location and there are currently three hot food takeaways and a convenience 
store within the same block of Rawlinson Street with permitted opening times until 
11pm.   

b) The character and function of the immediate area; 

The character and function of the immediate area is one of a mixed use with 
residential properties sitting alongside a mix of commercial uses. 

c) The potential benefits of the proposal for the wider community; and 

The potential benefit for the wider community would be a greater range of choice in 
takeaway outlets. 

d) Impact on residential amenity. 

Taking account of the existing nature of the locality of the site and the potential 
businesses that could operate without the need for planning permission at the site, 
there should be a modest impact.  

Taking account of both policy R15 and R16, there are no particular aspects of the 
policies that the proposal does not meet. 

In addition to these local policies, National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 81 
places significant weight on planning decisions supporting businesses to help create 
the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt.  This proposal is 
detailed as creating the equivalent of 5 full time jobs which is also a 
material consideration for planning. 

Health and Wellbeing 

4.9 In terms of both local and national planning policy, there are references to the 
promotion of health and wellbeing but there are no planning policies which seek to 
prevent specifically this type of proposed development.  Whilst the introduction of an 
additional hot food takeaway has the potential to sell unhealthy foods, in terms of 
planning considerations there are no specific policies which prevent the proposed 
development on health and wellbeing grounds. 

Page 55 of 99

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



Representation 

4.10 A representation has been received which raises concern over: 

• the impact on parking and reduced potential of parking outside home 
• impact from extractor fan and its proximity to property 
• impact from grease/dust on child's health due to severe asthma 
• impact from opening hours and potential for increased disturbance 

4.11 The area to the front of the application site and adjacent properties has clearly 
marked parking bays as do the adjacent residential streets.  There is also parking 
available in public car parks in the town centre.  As is the case across the Borough, 
on-street parking is publicly available for all to use and not for the specific use 
of residential properties.   I am awaiting confirmation from Highways if there is a 
residents parking scheme in place in this area.  This will be reported to the meeting. 

4.12 I have taken advice from colleagues in Public Protection with regards to the 
impact from the extractor fan and the potential for impact on health from the 
proposed use.  As the application site is situated on a busy main road, there will 
already be some impact from traffic in the locality on air quality.  This is an existing 
situation.  Modern extraction equipment is designed to be efficient in dispersal of 
odours and grease and, provided it is installed and maintained correctly, any risk 
from this element of the proposal on public health is very low.  The position of the 
flue is set away from the adjacent residential property next to the boundary with the 
neighbouring existing hot food use. 

4.13 In terms of the impact from the opening hours, the nature of the locality of the 
area has an element of comings and goings with nearby uses operating permitted to 
open until 11pm.  Given the residential nature of some of the properties this is felt to 
be a reasonable time to open until and does not encroach into what are considered 
to be night time hours in terms of protection from noise disturbance.  Should concern 
be raised in future, separate Public Protection legislation exists if needed.  

4.14 With regards to traffic and parking, the context of the town centre location is a 
relevant factor to consider.  Time limited parking is provided adjacent to the site and 
there is both on street and town centre car parks within close walking distance to the 
site.   

5. Conclusions 

5.1The proposed change of use and submitted details are considered to have a 
modest impact on the locality of the site whilst creating 5 full time equivalent jobs.  
Clear consideration has been given to effective extraction to minimise any potential 
impacts from the proposal on nearby residents.  Whilst an objection has been 
received, local plan policy does not prevent such a development adjacent to 
residential properties.  The impact from the proposal is likely to be similar in nature to 
the existing lawful use, taking account of national changes to the use classes order 
which significantly expanded the permitted change of use of properties without the 
need for planning permission. 

Page 56 of 99

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



6. Recommendation 
  
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 1st July 2022 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied 
by a condition attached to this consent: 
 
Application Form dated 23.5.22 #197/001 
Design, Access and Waste Management Statement #197/003 
#197/005, 006 
Revolution SLC Motor - Product Overview 
Circular Straight Silencer 
Supporting email dated 9.9.22 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
3. All future emissions vented to the ‘external environment’ from cooking processes 
must be extracted through a properly designed and constructed exhaust ventilation 
system, adequately filtered and discharged vertically at sufficient height,  at least 1 
metre above eaves level, or incorporating adequate odour mitigation measures in the 
ventilation extract design to prevent cooking odours being observed at any 
neighbouring properties.  Any exhaust gas flow must not be restricted by any plate 
etc at the outlet which might affect dispersion.  The system must be fully installed 
and operational prior the beneficial use hereby approved and adequately maintained 
thereafter as such in perpetuity. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
4. Noise from the development must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR 30 in 
daytime hours (0700 - 2300) and NR 25 in night time hours (2300 - 0700) in any 
noise sensitive property. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 

 

Page 57 of 99

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 
5. The use hereby permitted shall not operate between the hours of 2300 and 0600 
the following day. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
6. The refuse bins for the use hereby approved shall be stored within the rear 
curtilage of the premises. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
Informative 
  

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

   

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

   

• This application does not give permission for any signage. This is dealt with 
separately under the Advertisement Regulations and is will need to be 
submitted as a separate application. Guidance on this can be found here: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/outdoor-advertisements-and-
signs-a-guide-for-advertisers 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 58 of 99

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



2022/0416

Page 59 of 99

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



2022/0416

Page 60 of 99

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 9



B20/2022/0519 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  
Application Number : B20/2022/0519 Date Valid :06/07/2022 

Address : Valley View Dalton Mount 
Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA15 8BQ 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Retrospective change of use from hotel restaurant known as Valley View 
(formerly Clarence House) to one 9-bedroom holiday accommodation (sui generis) 

Ward : Dalton South Ward Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mrs Barber-Bolam C/o Agent  Agent : Mr Dan Ratcliffe JWPC Chartered 
Town Planners  

Statutory Date : 31/08/2022 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Policy NPPF 119 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday 

Accommodation 

 

 

Page 61 of 99

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues relate to the ongoing relationship of the property with the surrounding 
dwellings, and whether any significant changes arise from the differing mode of operation 
from hotel and restaurant to holiday accommodation. 

Non Material Considerations 

Ownership of, and works required to, a protected tree unaffected by the development. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street 
Name Properties 

Skelgate 52 Mount Pleasant, 54 Mount Pleasant, 60 Mount Pleasant, 58 Mount 
Pleasant, 56 Mount Pleasant, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of objections 

The following material planning considerations were raised following notification: 

• Concern over noise including late night noise and noise from the car park 
• Privacy (in the context of guests wandering over to the adjacent cottages not 

realising they are separate residences rather than a part of the holiday 
accommodation).  

• Refuse/waste bin provision. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 62 of 99

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



List of Organisation Responses 

17/08/2022  

Dalton With Newton Town Council 

"Valley View, Skelgate, Dalton Retrospective change of use from Hotel restaurant known as 
Valley View (formerly Clarence House) to one 9 bedroom holiday accommodation 

The Town Council have no objections" 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 Valley View, formerly known as Clarence House, has previously operated as a hotel and 
restaurant. It is a large building set within substantial grounds and has a car park on its 
southern elevation.  In more recent times the business diversified with the brief introduction 
of a cafe and gift shop.  It is located on the western edges of Dalton nestled between Ann 
Street and Romney Ave.  A row of terraced cottages back onto the site, known as Mount 
Pleasant Skelgate.   

1.2 The former hotel building, whilst unlisted and located outside of the Dalton Conservation 
Area, is of a more traditional style which compliments the historic areas of Dalton,  It is set 
within large grounds, with a large garden area to the rear of the building as viewed from 
Skelgate.  Numerous additions have been constructed or converted throughout the years to 
provide additional dining and bedroom accommodation, including a wedding chapel in the 
northern section of the plot.  A large car park is located towards the front of the site, whilst 
two separate areas of protected trees are present at the rear of the car park area and in the 
wider garden. 

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 Retrospective change of use from hotel restaurant known as Valley View (formerly 
Clarence House) to one 9-bedroom holiday accommodation (sui generis) 

3.Relevant History 

3.1 1974/0363 2 Romney Avenue, Dalton-in-Furness First floor extension to provide 
bedroom and an enlarged bathroom Approved 03/07/1974 
 
3.2 1975/0656 15 Ann Street, Dalton-in-Furness Storm porch Approved 15/09/1975 
 
3.3 1976/0304 2 Romney Avenue, Dalton-in-Furness Extension to form larger kitchen and 
utility purposes area Approved 21/04/1976 
 
3.4 1978/0193 1 Romney Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Kitchen extension and garage Appcond 
23/03/1978 
 

Page 63 of 99

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



3.5 1978/0670 Clarence House, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use to Guest House 
providing four bedroom accommodation Appcond 24/07/1978 
 
3.6 1978/1368 Clarence House, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use to include 
licensed restaurant with Guest House Appcond 14/02/1979 
 
3.7 1979/0313 Clarence House, Mount Pleasant, Dalton-in-Furness Conversion of former 
cottage to 'Granny Flat' at outbuildings to the rear of Clarence House Approved 02/05/1979 
 
3.8 1979/0579 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Extension for 
additional bedroom and dining room accomodation Appcond 14/08/1979 
 
3.9 1979/1012 Clarence House, Mount Pleasant, Dalton-in-Furness Extension to provide 
additional bedroom and dining room accommodation for guests including roofing with tiles 
Appcond 10/10/1979 
 
3.10 1980/0406 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Alterations to 
provide extra kitchen space and lounge/bar area Appcond 01/07/1980 
 
3.11 1983/0010 Clarence House, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Removal of existing bay 
window on front elevation and replacement with sliding sash window Appcond 09/02/1983 
 
3.12 1983/0014 Clarence House, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of part of the 
grounds comprising a walled garden to form a commercial garden centre Appcond 
25/04/1983 
 
3.13 1983/0411 Clarence House, Mount Pleasant, Dalton-in-Furness Erection of front 
extension for the purveying of refreshments to visitors Appcond 05/07/1983 
 
3.14 1990/0238 3 Romney Avenue, Dalton-in-Furness Erection of a two storey rear 
extension Approved 20/04/1990 
 
3.15 46/1992/0091 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Extension to dining room Approved 24/03/1992 
 
3.16 46/1994/0433 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Alterations 
and extensions to kitchen and owners accommodation Approved 19/09/1994 
 
3.17 46/2006/0432 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Extension and alteration to east elevation providing enhanced toilet facilities and 
additional dining area/link and porch, with bay window at first floor level above the toilet 
facilities. Appcond 26/05/2006 
 
3.18 46/2007/0878 Clarence House including 52,54 & 56, Mount Pleasant, Skelgate Dalton-
in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BQ Revised application to that approved under references 
2006/0432 and 2007/0377 to allow additional dining area, office, cloakroom and erection of 
new staircase, creation of roof terrace over existing ground floor extension and provision of 
dormer feature Appcond 04/09/2007 

 

Page 64 of 99

Page 100

Agenda Item 9



 
3.19 54/2007/0377 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Formation of new external staircase to first floor bedroom including timber 
decking to existing flat roof. Approved 03/05/2007 
 
3.20 54/2007/0781 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Siting of a single bedroomed 'Bothy Lodge' within the grounds as an addition to 
existing hotel accommodation Appcond 25/07/2007 
 
3.21 56/1993/0252 52 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of 
cottages to hotel accommodation (Retrospective Application) Appcond 22/11/1993 
 
3.22 56/1993/0252 54 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of 
cottages to hotel accommodation (Retrospective Application) Appcond 22/11/1993 
 
3.23 56/1993/0252 56 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of 
cottages to hotel accommodation (Retrospective Application) Appcond 22/11/1993 
 
3.24 57/1993/0572 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Erection of 
traditional timber and glass orangery Appcond 18/10/1993 
 
3.25 57/1998/0588 1 Romney Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BJ Erection of a 
conservatory to rear elevation Approved 30/09/1998 
 
3.26 57/1999/0266 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Addition of 1st floor to single storey rear wing to provide two en-suite guest 
bedrooms Appcond 07/07/1999 
 
3.27 57/2000/0096 3 Romney Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BJ Erection of a 
single storey side kitchen and porch extension Approved 23/03/2000 
 
3.28 57/2001/0350 58 Mount Pleasant Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2DQ Creation of 
vehicular access onto a classified road and creation of hardstanding Refused 13/06/2001 
 
3.29 57/2004/0851 9 Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Erection of rear 
kitchen extension Approved 06/09/2004 
 
3.30 57/2006/1561 21A Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Two storey rear 
extension providing enlarged study with bathroom over. Appcond 07/02/2007 
 
3.31 75/1992/0252 52, 54 and 56 Mount Pleasant Dalton-In-Furness Cumbria Change of use 
of cottages to hotel accommodation (Retrospective Application) Appcond 17/11/1993 
 
3.32 75/1992/0408 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Amendment to 92/0091 for ground floor extension to dining area Approved 
22/07/1992 

 

 

Page 65 of 99

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



 
3.33 75/2001/0049 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Conversion of barn into a wedding chapel and conference facility and 
replacement of greenhouse with extension to create reception area for the wedding chapel 
Appcond 21/03/2001 
 
3.34 75/2001/0049 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Conversion of barn into a wedding chapel and conference facility and 
replacement of greenhouse with extension to create reception area for the wedding chapel 
Appcond 21/03/2001 
 
3.35 88/1994/0549 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Felling of sycamore tree subject to Tree Preservation Order 1993 No. 2 Appcond 
20/10/1994 
 
3.36 88/1995/0434 5 Ann Street Dalton-In-Furness Pruning of overhanging branches of 
horse chestnut trees subject to Tree Preservation Order 1993 No. 2 Refused 06/09/1995 
 
3.37 88/1995/0676 11 Ann Street Dalton-In-Furness Application to prune back overhanging 
branches of trees subject to Tree Preservation Order 1993 No. 2 Refused 29/11/1995 
 
3.38 88/1996/0097 11 Ann Street Dalton-In-Furness Re-submission of application 95/0676 to 
remove two sucker shoots and a projecting branch from trees subject to Tree Preservation 
Order 1993 No. 2 Approved 03/04/1996 
 
3.39 88/1996/0177 Clarence House Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness The felling of two horse 
chestnut trees protected by Tree Preservation Order No. 1993 No. 2 Appcond 22/05/1996 
 
3.40 88/1996/0752 5 Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Resubmission of application 95/0434 to 
prune horse chestnut and sycamore trees subject to Tree Preservation Order 1993 No.2 
Appcond 17/01/1997 
 
3.41 B18/2015/0823 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Provision of new access door and removal of small window at ground level, and 
new window at first floor mezzanine level (to wedding annexe) Appcond 27-JAN-2016 
 
3.42 B20/2019/0171 52, 54 & 56 Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 
8BQ Conversion of hotel accommodation back to 3 dwellings including front and rear 
ground floor extensions. APPCOND 26/04/2019 
 
3.43 B21/2016/0794 2 Romney Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BJ Proposed 
removal of an existing flat roof to side extension and replace with a hip pitched roof and 
internal alteration to bathroom layout. Appcond 05/12/2016 
 
3.44 B21/2018/0237 2 Romney Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BJ Alterations 
and extension of the existing kitchen/diner to create a utility along with the construction of a 
workshop/store in the rear garden. APPCOND 17/05/2018 

 

Page 66 of 99

Page 102

Agenda Item 9



 
 
3.45 B21/2019/0708 Bali Hai Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Demolition of 
existing conservatory and addition of new garden room/utility room single storey rear 
extension. External and internal remodelling including conversion of garage to bedroom, 
removal of external staircase, enlargement of bay window and addition of entrance porch. 
Elevations to be re-rendered APPCOND 10/12/2019 
 
3.46 B21/2020/0048 7 Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Demolish garage, 
porch and covered area and build a two storey extension with porch and sun room. 
APPCOND 30/04/2020 
 
3.47 B21/2020/0325 Bali Hai Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Demolition of 
existing conservatory and external staircase; construction of new single storey rear 
living/kitchen/dining extension and single storey side utility extension; enlargement of bay 
window; external and internal remodelling/alteration (Re-submission of B21/2019/0708). 
APPCOND 10/07/2020 
 
3.48 B26/2012/0599 7 Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BG Application for a 
Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed use or development (CLOPUD) for reducing 
the length of the existing kitchen extension. Appcond 10-OCT-2012 
 
3.49 B28/2008/0849 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Felling of one lime tree within car park area subject to Tree Preservation Order 
1993 No. 2 Appcond 13/08/2008 
 
3.50 B28/2008/0996 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Felling of one Pine tree and one Horsechestnut and a 25% crown reduction on 
three other Horsechestnut trees subject to Tree Preservation Order 1993 No. 2 Appcond 
27/10/2008 
 
3.51 B28/2014/0466 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1993 Number 2 
G1 - Horse chesnut tree - to remove overhanging branches. Refused 08-OCT-2014 
 
3.52 B28/2015/0092 Clarence House Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA15 8BQ Application for works to a tree subject of Tree Preservation Order 1993 Number 
2 namely removal of two stems of a multi stemmed sycamore Appcond 09-APR-2015 
 
3.53 BCO/2019/0761 Valley View Dalton Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA15 8BQ Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 to 
allow for the sale of alcohol off site between the hours of 7am to 12.30am Mon - Sun. NO 
COMMENT 15/01/2020 

 

 

 

Page 67 of 99

Page 103

Agenda Item 9



4.Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application form states that the use as a 9 bedroom holiday accommodation 
commenced in June 2021; the application is therefore retrospective.  Whilst limited 
information has been provided, the layout plans show that the property will operate as a 
communal holiday let intended for a large group of people, rather than the separate hotel 
rooms for smaller groups and with communal bar and public restaurant areas.  The property 
is therefore private to the group that has booked it, with no public admittance.  Such a use 
falls under Policy EC11 which allows for such uses in urban areas providing the design, 
siting, layout and access are satisfactory. 

4.2 The ground floor has been given over to living space, lounges, dining rooms and a large 
kitchen, with the upper floor areas used as bedrooms.  The facility retains the existing 
access, car park and wider grounds for the enjoyment of the group renting the property.  
The layout changes and re-designation of rooms have already been carried out given the 
use has been in operation for over 12 months, though no external changes have resulted. 

4.3 An objection has been received from a nearby resident raising concern over noise 
disturbance, a loss of privacy and confusion over ownership of/a lack of provision over 
waste bins/skips for the facility.  In considering the merits of the comments, it seems to 
stem from the management and operation of the facility, in that in certain instances some 
visitors who are unfamiliar with the property have ventured into neighbouring garden areas 
which has caused some privacy concern, and also sometimes mistaken neighbours bins as 
belonging to the holiday accommodation.  This is more readily resolved than a loss of 
privacy from a new build, where windows are too close etc, thus discussions were held with 
the agent acting for the applicant. 

4.4 In addition to the owner meeting the groups to welcome and provide a tour, an 
information booklet for new arrivals is also available, a copy of which has been provided.  
This has been amended with suggestions from your officers to increase awareness of the 
property limits, better identify and ensure adequate provision of the property's waste 
facilities and to remind occupants to minimise noise outside and within the car park, 
particularly late at night.  Whilst often difficult to enforce such matters, the information 
pack can be the basis of a condition, as a management plan, that essentially requires the 
premises to operate within those terms to provide a degree of control.  There of course 
remains further recourse under separate legislation should litter or noise become a 
statutory nuisance.  

4.5 Accordingly, such measures should help to minimise disruption by improving awareness, 
though it also has to be considered that the proposed use is much more low-key than the 
existing lawful (former) use as a hotel and restaurant which often held functions such as 
weddings, christenings etc as well as diners in the evening. In many respects noise levels 
will be reduced considerably, particularly the use of the car park which was quite often at 
capacity resulting in cars being parked within the neighbouring streets. Taxis would also 
come and go throughout the evening.  Given the nature of this use, a self catered 
accommodation aimed at groups wanting to spend time together within the property, it is 
expected the comings and goings and general activity at the property will be much reduced, 
thereby having less potential to negatively impact on the amenities of nearby residents. 

Page 68 of 99

Page 104

Agenda Item 9



 

4.6 Policy EC11 usually requires such uses to be conditioned to restrict the use to short term 
letting, avoiding the residence being used as a sole or main place of residence.  However, 
this proposal is slightly different due to the scale; whereas holiday lets are typically C3 
(dwellings) used for short term rentals by families (and thus remaining in residential 
use), if the use is considered to fall outside a typical dwelling, by character or operation, 
they would be considered sui generis (a use of their own).  This proposal amounts to a sui 
generis use, as described in the application, reflecting the scale of the business and its 
former use as a hotel and restaurant.  Given the scale of the property, such a condition to 
restrict occupancy would not be necessary, and any subsequent use as a dwelling (or 
dwellings) would require planning permission, or indeed any other use materially different to 
that in operation.  It also differs as typically other such accommodation is provided in areas 
where dwellings would not tend to be permitted, though this location on the edge of Dalton 
town centre would not raise the same concern in principle.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The use of the premises as a large-group self catered holiday accommodation is 
considered to be an appropriate use for the building, which if operated in accordance with 
the agreed management plan should overcome the concerns raised and have less of an 
impact on residential amenity than the hotel and restaurant use before.  No external 
changes or enlargement is proposed and the property is well located in the town centre with 
a car park more than adequate for its intended use.  As such the proposal is considered to 
comply with Policy EC11 by offering further variety in the tourist accommodation offering.  It 
is also sustainable development by making use of an existing building which may otherwise 
sit empty if the hotel use is no longer viable for the applicant.  

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 06/07/22 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
Drawing ref: Valley A, Valley B, Valley C, Valley D. 

Management plan document entitled 'Welcome to Valley View House', received on 
14/09/22. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 

Page 69 of 99

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
2. The development must operate in accordance with the measures outlined in the hereby 
approved management plan document entitled 'Welcome to Valley View House', received 
on 14/09/22, with specific regard to the measures detailed to minimise privacy loss, noise 
nuisance and ensure adequate waste disposal. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure the satisfactory operation of the accommodation and to minimise 
disturbance to and loss of surrounding neighbours residential amenities. 
 
Informative 

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting United 
Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

 
 

Page 70 of 99

Page 106

Agenda Item 9



Valley View (formerly Clarence House), Skelgate, Dalton in Furness, LA15 8BQ

Ordnance Survey Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. 
Licence number 100022432.
Plotted Scale - 1:1250. Paper Size – A4 

2022/0519

Page 71 of 99

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



Ordnance Survey Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. 
Licence number 100022432.
Plotted Scale - 1:1000. Paper Size – A4 

2022/0519

Page 72 of 99

Page 108

Agenda Item 9



Drawing  Valley  A

2022/0519

Page 73 of 99

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



Drawing Valley B

2022/0519

Page 74 of 99

Page 110

Agenda Item 9



Drawing Valley C

2022/0519

Page 75 of 99

Page 111

Agenda Item 9



Drawing Valley D

2022/0519

Page 76 of 99

Page 112

Agenda Item 9



B13/2022/0567 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  
Application Number : B13/2022/0567 Date Valid :25/07/2022 

Address : Marsh Grange Barn 
Dunnerholme Askam-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA17 7TU 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : New dwelling with retention of the existing two-sided wall structure. 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mr and Mrs Michael Shiers   Agent : Mr Christopher Garner; Garner 
Planning  

Statutory Date : 19/09/2022 Recommendation : Refused for 
reasons stated 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  
Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 062 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 080 
4. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 111 
5. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 130 
6. National Planning Policy Framework 2021 - Para NPPF 203 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 
to sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H12 - Homes for Life 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H5 - Residential development 

in the open countryside 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on 

Windfall Sites 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and 

open spaces 

Page 77 of 99

Page 113

Agenda Item 9



8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel 
Choices 

9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing 
landscape character 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues for consideration include the location and sustainability of a new 
dwelling in the open countryside, whether the proposal meets the specific local 
needs identified within Policy H5 and the design of the dwelling and its relationship to 
the wider landscape character.  The main emphasis of the application relates to the 
applicants special circumstances. Hence it also has to be determined whether the 
personal circumstances put forward on behalf of the applicant are a material 
planning consideration, and if so what weight they should be afforded.  

Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

 
No neighbours listed as consulted 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 

Summary of objections 

The following material planning considerations were raised following publication of 
the application:- 

• The design is inappropriate and instead the earlier approved scheme should 
be allowed to proceed* 

• Design loses the interesting features of the barn such as the arches 
• Water wheel remnants could be damaged by the development 

* The earlier scheme cannot be implemented as it relied on a permitted development 
to convert the building.  Following demolition, there is no building left to convert. 

The following non-material considerations were raised:- 

• Confusion over address/name with nearby Marsh Grange Farm for 
emergency services and deliveries. 

Page 78 of 99

Page 114

Agenda Item 9



Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Electricity North West Ltd 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
South Lakeland District Council 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

03/08/2022  

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

"Askam and Ireleth Parish Council have no objections or comments regarding this 
application". 

25/07/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

25/07/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 

"Thank you for the above consultation. I have looked at the specific documents 
submitted and can comment as follows: 

While I have no objections to the application in principle, I do have concerns 
regarding the previous activity on site, specifically related to the storage of 
chemicals, machinery and petroleum products. I would also question the use of 
asbestos used across the site. In order to determine the suitability of the site and 
whether it is fit for its intended use, please can the applicant be forwarded a 
questionnaire to be returned as soon as possible." 

 

 

 

Page 79 of 99

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



 
02/08/2022  

Highways Cumbria County Council  
 
"As this falls under our Service Level Agreement (SLA) with your Council, this 
application does not need to be submitted to the Local Highway Authority or Lead 
Local Flood Authority; subject to the highway and drainage aspects of such 
applications being considered in accordance with the Agreement. 
The highway and drainage implications of this application would therefore have to be 
decided by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
If you have a particular aspect of this application you wish us to consider, please feel 
free to contact me direct." 

02/08/2022  

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
 
"As this falls under our Service Level Agreement (SLA) with your Council, this 
application does not need to be submitted to the Local Highway Authority or Lead 
Local Flood Authority; subject to the highway and drainage aspects of such 
applications being considered in accordance with the Agreement. 
The highway and drainage implications of this application would therefore have to be 
decided by the Local Planning Authority. 
If you have a particular aspect of this application you wish us to consider, please feel 
free to contact me direct." 

01/08/2022  

Mr Guy Timperley Cumbria County Council (PROW) 

"Public Footpath 602070 follows an alignment to the south of the development area 
and must not be altered or obstructed before or after the development has been 
completed. 

If the footpath is to be temporarily obstructed then a formal temporary closure will be 
required there is a 12 week lead in time for this process, for further information 
please contact Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk. 

Plan attached indicating the public footpath as a green dashed line." 

27/07/2022  

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 

"The Environment Agency has no comment to make regarding this application. The 
site is adjacent to the non-main river Mere Beck, which falls under the remit of the 
Lead Local Flood Authority, Cumbria County Council." 

Page 80 of 99

Page 116

Agenda Item 9



 
 
18/08/2022  

South Lakeland District Council 
 
"Thank you for consulting us on the above referenced application, which seeks full 
planning permission to construct a dwelling at Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme, 
Askam-in-Furness. 

The application site is located immediately adjacent to the boundary of the South 
Lakeland District. In this case, the main issue for our District would be the impact on 
the character and appearance of the area. On this basis, South Lakeland District 
Council (SLDC) make the following comments. 

Impact on the character and appearance of the area, including landscape 
character and heritage 

The application site is understood to comprise the remnants of a former agricultural 
building, which has been substantially demolished. Based on the submitted Heritage 
Statement, this would have had some local heritage significance and would have 
contributed positively to the character and appearance of the area. However, this 
has been lost by the demolition, with only parts of some original walls remaining. The 
site now appears as a stalled building site with recently constructed breezeblock 
walls and scaffolding. Therefore, the site makes a negative contribution to the 
character and appearance of the area, including landscape character. 

The submitted Design, Access & Environmental Statement states that the applicant 
wants to avoid “simply rebuilding a pastiche of the former barn”. However, Paragraph 
130 of the National Planning Policy Framework requires that planning decisions 
should, amongst other things, ensure that developments are sympathetic to local 
character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape 
setting. 
 
In this case, the proposed dwelling would be located on the footprint of the former 
agricultural building and have a broadly similar form and scale. However, it would 
have an overtly domestic and contemporary appearance due to, amongst other 
things, the projecting single storey element, large amounts of glazing and modern 
materials. There are concerns that this would appear alien in character to the 
surrounding agricultural context, including the surrounding built environment and 
landscape setting. This would be appreciable from public vantage points and within 
the context of the South Lakeland District. 

Notes 

Please note, SLDC have been unable to visit the application site and these 
comments are based on the submitted information. The comments relate solely to 
the main impact on our District and not to other considerations, such as the principle 
of development in this location." 

Page 81 of 99

Page 117

Agenda Item 9



  

  
Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is situated in the open countryside approximately 2km to the north of 
Askam, to the west of the A595. The surrounding area is characterised by flat 
improved pasture with hedgerows and occasional patches of woodland and forms 
part of the West Cumbria coastal plain. Remains of a former agricultural barn, which 
used to occupy the plot, front the highway with an existing gated access. Remnants 
of the barns historic use, including a water wheel and gearing, are located to the 
north adjacent to Mere Beck which would have powered the threshing machinery 
inside when operational.  The plot is outside of indicated areas of flood risk.  Public 
Right of Way 602070 runs to the south on the other side of the road. 

1.2 The closest farm buildings to the site are approximately 350m to the east at Marsh 
Grange Farm, whilst with what appears to be a pair of dwellings are located over 
200m to the west, at the junction with Tippins Lane.   The plot and the remaining 
structure appear in relative isolation.  Access to the closest services in Ireleth is by 
road only, with no footpath along the A595.  Public transport serves Askam, Ireleth 
and Kirkby, but with no stops in between that would benefit this site. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 New dwelling with retention of the existing two-sided wall structure. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 03/1992/0440 Marsh Grange Farm Askam-in-Furness Cumbria, Erection of 
agricultural workers cottage Refused 07/12/1992 
 
3.2 B26/2018/0294 Marsh Grange Barn Dunnerholme Askam-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA17 7TU Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) to establish that the demolition undertaken and building 
works proposed fall within the scope of the issued Prior Approval (ref 
BPAC/2017/0350) under Class Q of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended. REFUSED 18/06/2018 
 
3.3 B27/2015/0598 Marsh Grange Farmhouse Dunnerholme Askam-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA17 7TU Notification of prior approval for a proposed change of use of 
Agricultural building for the conversion of a traditional stone barn associated with old 
water mill into two residential units with parking spaces and gardens. Appcond 18-
DEC-2015 
 
3.4 BPAC/2017/0235 Marsh Grange Farmhouse Dunnerholme Askam-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA17 7TU Prior Approval - Change of use of agricultural building to a single 
dwelling. REFUSED 07/06/2017 
 

Page 82 of 99

Page 118

Agenda Item 9



3.5 BPAC/2017/0350 Marsh Grange Farmhouse Dunnerholme Askam-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA17 7TU Notification of Prior Approval for a Proposed Changed of 
Agricultural Building to a Dwelling (Class C3) and for Associated Operational 
Development APPCOND 24/07/2017 

4. Officer Assessment 

Background 

4.1 The application site previously contained a barn, which was last in agricultural use 
as a mill and had natural rubble stone walls under a slate roof.  Located next to a 
beck, the barn had a water wheel to power the machinery; remnants of this remain.  
Following legislative changes, the barn was granted prior approval 
(BPAC/2017/0350 in addition to earlier approvals for similar) in 2017 which enabled 
the conversion of the barn to a dwelling under permitted development.  
However, demolition works were then carried out beyond that identified in the prior 
approval submission and, crucially, beyond what was permitted by the permission.  A 
Lawful Development Certificate was sought to confirm the works undertaken were 
lawful, though this was not issued.  The subsequent appeal (ref: 
APP/W0910/X/18/3208017) was dismissed, with the Inspector commenting "The 
demolition works undertaken and building works proposed do not fall within the 
scope of the prior approval issued...They are so extensive that, as a matter of 
planning judgement, what remains cannot be described as a building." 

The current proposal therefore seeks permission for a new build dwelling, as there is 
no structure left to convert.   

Policy basis 

4.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, requires that a 
determination made under the Planning Acts must be made in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. For unallocated 
sites Local Policy H7 directs residential development to the urban areas of Barrow 
and Dalton, or in an identified development cordon.  These are considered to be 
more sustainable locations due to the increased connectivity resulting in less 
reliance on private transport, access to services such as shops, and availability of 
infrastructure such as mains water and power etc.  This site falls in neither area, 
being a remote location in the open countryside some distance from the nearest 
settlement. 

4.3 Being outside of a cordon isn’t a reason in its own right for refusal, i.e. non 
compliance with a specific policy of the development plan alone shouldn’t 
automatically result in refusal.  However, in considering the wider sustainability of the 
location, the availability and access to local services are material considerations; a 
site with some connection to public transport, even if limited, or with some nearby 
services/amenities available within a neighbouring village, and which doesn't raise 
adverse design or landscape concerns may well gain approval even if outside a 
defined village or development cordon. 

Page 83 of 99

Page 119

Agenda Item 9



 

4.4 There are examples of where housing outside of an urban area or development 
cordons is acceptable and required.  Policy H5 provides certain exceptions for new 
housing in the open countryside; to accord with this policy there must be clear 
justification, typically relating to replacement dwellings, conversions of redundant but 
structurally sound buildings, or the requirement for rural workers (agriculture/forestry) 
dwellings in the open countryside, both permanent and temporary.  These 
exceptions are related to local circumstance, either a need to live in or a near a 
particular area (rural workers) or relating to existing buildings.  

4.5 Whereas previously the re-use of the redundant farm building forming the 
application site may well have fit the exception stated, the facts as confirmed by the 
Inspector in the appeal, are there is now no building to convert, and a fair amount of 
the remnants are essentially unauthorised works stemming from the attempted 
rebuilding work.  The local circumstances outlined in the Planning Statement 
submitted relate to a new building enhancing the immediate environment visually, 
and to the personal circumstances of a family member, both of which are considered 
further on in the report. 

Design 

4.6 The design approach detailed in the Design & Access statement outlines that the 
design challenge was to capture the essence of the original building without 
rebuilding a pastiche of the former barn.  This approach results in the new build 
falling within the general footprint of the original barn area, making use of the 
remaining/rebuilt walls present on site and retaining an overall 'L' shape 
arrangement, consisting of two rectangular sections - the main dwelling and a 
plant/garage area to the east.  The layout is also highly influenced by the 
accessibility needs of a family member, with a lift incorporated into the plant/garage 
section. 

4.7 The modern design has introduced high levels of glazing to the development.  The 
north facing elevation features full height glazing extending from ground floor level 
up to the eaves, divided by a central stone chimney, with a balcony also proposed at 
first floor level.  The west facing elevation shows an angular projection beyond the 
main ground floor area, though due to the slope of the site down to the west, this 
feature is elevated above ground via a canterlevered design, appearing to float 
above what would have been the lower level of a mono-pitch outshut of the former 
barn.  A further glazed balcony area adjoins this structure, adding to the large glazed 
openings found on the west elevation.  A glazed single storey access hall sits 
outside the main footprint of the dwelling to the east as a flat roof single storey lean-
to, and almost entirely glazed.  The south facing elevation, forming the side/gable of 
the house and the rear of the garage is almost entirely blank but for a small window 
in the upper gable. 

 

 

Page 84 of 99

Page 120

Agenda Item 9



 

4.8 However, whilst this approach does avoid a pastiche reproduction, the 
design adopted provides little sense of the former agricultural use which would 
typically be found in an area of rural character, appearing as a more contemporary 
style.  As the site immediately borders SLDC's boundary, they were consulted as the 
development can be seen from and in association with their district.  Whilst 
acknowledging the current stalled building site provides a negative contribution to the 
wider landscape character at present (full comment reproduced above), on the 
design of the dwelling they state, 

4.10 However, it would have an overtly domestic and contemporary appearance due 
to, amongst other things, the projecting single storey element, large amounts of 
glazing and modern materials. There are concerns that this would appear alien in 
character to the surrounding agricultural context, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting. This would be appreciable from public vantage 
points and within the context of the South Lakeland District. 

4.11 The Planning Statement provided considers that the scheme enhances the 
character of the adjoining environment by developing a derelict site.  However, 
this present state is due to the errors made in the previous attempt at conversion 
hence little weight should be given to this argument.  The Local Plan design 
policies (DS5a) require schemes to integrate with and where possible conserve 
and enhance the character of the adjoining natural area.  There is further advice in 
the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit, which describes the 
character of different landscape types across the County and provides guidance to 
help maintain their distinctiveness.  This site straddles two defined areas, 2c: Coastal 
Margins - Coastal Plain & 9d: Intermediate Moorland And Plateau - Ridges.  Whilst 
there are too many features of both to list, the vision for the coastal margins is of a 
working landscape, with open fields contrasted with woodland.  Careful design of 
farm buildings is promoted to respect the character.  With regard to the landscape 
defined as ridges, the vision is one of conservation and enhancement, with 
development carefully controlled to ensure ridges aren't cluttered or dominated by 
development. 

4.12 The comments from SLDC are shared; in design terms, it is considered that the 
proposal provides a dwelling which is alien in design to its surrounding context, both 
in terms of landscape character and the surrounding built form.  The isolation of the 
building will serve to emphasise this conflict, with long range views available from 
multiple directions.  Whilst the blank south elevation faces the PROW, people using 
the road to access the PROW will see the other elevations, further increasing the 
visibility of the dwelling adjacent to a sensitive receptor, users of which would have 
an expectation to enjoy a typical countryside experience.  Such a modern design is 
not considered to meet the aims of the NPPF which states at para 130 that decisions 
should ensure developments are sympathetic to local character and history, 
including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change. 

 

Page 85 of 99

Page 121

Agenda Item 9



 

4.13 Furthermore, with regards to design, NPPF para 80 states that "planning policies 
and decisions should avoid the development of isolated homes in the countryside 
unless the design is of exceptional quality, in that it is truly outstanding, reflecting the 
highest standards in architecture, and would help to raise standards of design more 
generally in rural areas; and would significantly enhance its immediate setting, and 
be sensitive to the defining characteristics of the local area."  Whilst it would enhance 
the immediate setting, the wider landscape character conflict remains.  Whilst in a 
more appropriate location the design itself has some merit, it would fall well short of 
being considered 'exceptional quality that is truly outstanding', which, correctly, is a 
very high bar to reach. 

Heritage 

4.14 A heritage statement accompanied the application, carried out by the same 
company which surveyed the building prior to the demolition works.  In describing the 
building prior to the works carried out to date they comment, 

"In itself, the building is not particularly unusual and it is not Listed or otherwise 
statutorily protected. It represents a relatively common example of a threshing barn 
with a range of outshuts forming ancillary functions . The, now missing, monopitch 
outshut to the west was undoubtedly used to house animals...What made this 
element more interesting was the use of decorative stone arches for the doorways; 
unfortunately, this entire section was demolished during the previous failed 
development. The open fronted extension to the east is also of some interest 
because of the locally-made iron supporting columns identified during the previous 
building recording, although the whereabouts of these is now not known." 

4.15 The main elements of interest of the building itself have therefore been lost.  The 
previously approved conversion proposed to retain these features of interest, but 
they are not incorporated within the new design. 

The report continues, 

"The most historically significant element of the building is the iron waterwheel, 
associated gear wheels, and feed pipe, to the north of the main part of the building. 
These remain in essentially the same condition as they were in 2015, apart from the 
loss of the starter box and some of the retaining wall. This was evidently used to 
power a threshing machine inside the original north end of the building, which was 
later rebuilt leaving the wheel outside. Evidence for water power for threshing is 
relatively rare in the region; it represented a considerable investment at the time, and 
was probably only used for a short period, before portable steam engines became 
more readily available." 

"The proposed development would be ultimately beneficial in giving the remains of 
the building a new lease of life and therefore preserving them. It also provides an 
opportunity to carry out suitable work to consolidate the waterwheel." 

Page 86 of 99

Page 122

Agenda Item 9



 

4.16 The re-development of the plot would therefore represent a means of preserving 
the most historically significant element of the original barns function, which, whilst 
not Listed or otherwise statutorily protected, is a benefit and something to consider in 
the overall balance.  This would likely have carried grater weight if the other areas of 
design interest were retained and incorporated as part of the development, either 
wholly or in part, but unfortunately these are now lost. 

Personal Circumstances 

4.17 The principle that personal circumstances can be taken into account in planning 
decisions was established in the legal case of Westminster CC v Great Portland 
Estates PLC [1955] 1 AC 661.  This was re-emphasised in R v Kerrier DC ex parte 
Uzell and Others [1996] JPL 837243.  The weight that is to be given to the 
circumstances provided is however for the decision taker and has to be balanced 
against the development plan and other material considerations. Failure to take such 
considerations into account at any stage can be the subject of an application for 
judicial review, thus full consideration must be given even if ultimately they are not 
considered to outweigh other factors or harm. 

4.18 Conditions are sometimes used to restrict consents to individuals or groups of 
people, most commonly found in agricultural workers dwellings.  This is referenced in 
the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), which states, 

"Planning permission usually runs with the land and it is rarely appropriate to provide 
otherwise. There may be exceptional occasions where development that would not 
normally be permitted may be justified on planning grounds because of who would 
benefit from the permission. For example, conditions limiting benefits to a particular 
class of people, such as new residential accommodation in the open countryside for 
agricultural or forestry workers, may be justified on the grounds that an applicant has 
successfully demonstrated an exceptional need." 

4.19 Personal circumstances rarely outweigh general planning matters because the 
effect of the development would remain long after the personal circumstances no 
longer apply.  There are however exceptions where it has been considered such 
circumstances do outweigh any other identified harm.  One such (non-local) case 
(Appeal Ref: APP/R1845/W/17/3179604), and concerning Green Belt land near 
Kidderminster, permitted a new dwelling on the medical grounds that supported the 
application. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87 of 99

Page 123

Agenda Item 9



4.20 The appellant provided NHS documentation about his condition, which confirmed 
the property adaptations necessary. It also stated the importance of the appellant 
continuing his crucial role in family life and having access to his entire home 
environment.  Evidence was provided that the existing dwelling could not be altered, 
extended or replaced to meet the medical requirements of the appellant, due to the 
current property's layout and configuration.  The appellant also submitted evidence 
of property searches that satisfied the Inspector that the appellant had tried but been 
unsuccessful in securing a suitable and alternative property in the local area.  The 
Inspector decided that the need to live within an area local to the appellant’s existing 
dwelling has been sufficiently justified, with particular reference to the supporting role 
family and friends would have for the appellant and his family. He chose to afford 
considerable weight to the exceptional medical circumstances of the appellant and 
his need for the proposed dwelling. 

4.21 As ever, each case its considered on its own merit.  In this application before 
you, only limited information has been provided of the personal circumstances.  
Whilst it is not in question that there is a medical need for an adapted dwelling 
providing improved and level access, with space for additional equipment, including 
a lift, it is not clear why this particular location is required or indeed why it needs to 
be any other location within the open countryside.  It has also not been 
demonstrated that the existing living accommodation is unsuitable, or cannot be 
adapted, or that other less isolated sites, include dwellings that offer conversion 
potential, exist which could accommodate the personal circumstances.  

4.22 In a recent example, the Council has approved (B18/2022/0079 - 50 Freestone 
Way) a revised house type on a new build estate, on the fringes of Barrow, to 
incorporate increased circulation space, a ground floor wet room and integral lift to 
link to a bedroom above to accommodate the specific needs of a family member.  
Whilst not justified by virtue of those circumstances, it did provide for the additional 
needs as required, but was also located within a new residential estate benefitting 
from nearby local services and well connected to public transport links. 

4.23 The exceptions of Policy H5 relate to local circumstances, usually for farmers 
needing to live nearby for animal welfare and security.  No compelling case has been 
made to demonstrate why the personal circumstances of the applicant can only be 
met by this remote and isolated location as opposed to any other. 

Other matters 

4.24 The proposal is well beyond the extent of the main sewer and accordingly a 
package treatment plant is provided, with a drainage field for the discharge.  
Soakaways will be utilised for surface water disposal, supported by positive 
percolation testing.  This should prevent any increased flood risk elsewhere.  A soft 
landscaping scheme has been submitted, which includes new tree planting and 
hedging, with areas of wildflower.  This will represent a net gain in biodiversity as the 
plot is quite limited in its provision currently, with no trees within the site.  The 
dwelling is designed to be energy efficient and will incorporate a ground source heat 
pump and solar photovoltaic panels to reduce dependence on incoming energy 
supplies and being more self sufficient.   

Page 88 of 99

Page 124

Agenda Item 9



4.25 Vehicular access is via the easternmost existing access gate.  Whilst visibility 
splays are not indicated on the plan and may not fully achieve those advised in 
Cumbria Highways standing advice, it is considered adequate visibility will be 
available to serve the dwelling safely.  This takes into account the narrow road 
leading to the site which, whilst the national speed limit applies, in practice effectively 
slows vehicles down to around or below 30mph and only serves a handful of distant 
dwellings/farm buildings.  The existing access can still be used for agricultural 
purposes and it is not considered a single dwelling is of a significant scale to 
materially alter existing highway conditions. Parking and turning is provided off-road, 
exceeding the levels advised in the Cumbria Development Design Guide, and allows 
for vehicles to exit the site in a forward gear.  Cumbria Highways have not 
commented as the scale of the development falls means that their standard 
specifications apply. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 As stated in the NPPF, planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Local Plans are intended to be the 
means by which sustainable development is secured and up-to-date plans are 
intended to promote sustainable development.  Development which conflicts with an 
up-to-date Local Plan should be refused unless other material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

5.2 There is no argument that the Local Plan is absent, silent or out-of-date, and it is 
considered that the Council can demonstrate a 5- year housing land supply. 
Therefore, the 'tilted balance', which favours granting consent, does not apply. The 
judgment to be made is whether the proposal accords with the Local Plan as a whole 
and/or whether there are material considerations sufficient to warrant a decision 
contrary to the development plan. 

5.3 It is considered that the proposal would conflict with Policy H7, as it results in a 
new dwelling located outside the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or any 
identified development cordon, which aims to focus most development in urban 
areas with good access to services.  Accessibility to local services and schools is 
poor, and available via private motor vehicle only, with no public transport options.  
The scheme would therefore not satisfy the requirement of Policy I4 for development 
to be accessible via sustainable travel choices.  It is not considered to demonstrate a 
specific local need to meet any of the specified exceptions within Policy H5, which 
under certain circumstances can support dwellings in remote locations. 

5.4 The design is considered to be contrary to both national and local policy by 
providing an overly contemporary appearance which is at odds with the surrounding 
landscape, which is primarily open and  of working/agricultural character.  This is 
emphasised by the modern materials, the high level of glazing and prominent 
features which bear no relation to the historic use or character of the site.  Whilst 
redevelopment of the site will help secure the preservation of the water wheel 
remains, and tidy up the site, it is considered a more sympathetic scheme would 
achieve the same, but this is outweighed by the other site policy constraints.  

Page 89 of 99

Page 125

Agenda Item 9



5.5 With only limited weight attached to the personal circumstances, and accepting 
the other benefits outlined would equally apply to a dwelling of improved design, the 
overall weight afforded to the positive aspects of the development are moderate, and 
not considered to outweigh the fundamental conflict with the development plan, 
which are considered to be significant. Consequently, it is considered on balance 
that the proposal would conflict with the aims of the plan when read as whole, 
and that there are no material considerations of sufficient weight to indicate that a 
decision should be made other than in accordance with the development plan. 

6. Recommendation 

I recommend that Planning Permission be REFUSED for the following reasons: -  
 
1.Despite relying upon personal circumstances in an attempt to outweigh local and 
national policy criteria, the proposal, by virtue of the countryside location outside of 
any recognised settlement or development cordon would fail to support a pattern of 
development which is balanced in favour of sustainability, and instead promotes an 
increasing dependence upon private motor vehicles due to a the lack of alternative 
public transportation or safe pedestrian accessibility to the nearest settlements and 
services. This is considered to be contrary to the aims of both the Barrow-in-Furness 
Local Plan 2016-2031 Policies I4, H5 & H7, and the NPPF. 
 
2.By virtue of the contemporary design features, an excessive level of glazing and a 
lack of integration with the wider rural landscape, the dwelling is considered to be an 
incongruous and alien feature within the landscape. The development therefore 
conflicts with policies DS5, H7 & N1 of the Barrow-in-Furness Local Plan 2016-2031. 

  
 
 

  

  

Page 90 of 99

Page 126

Agenda Item 9



2022/0567

Page 91 of 99

Page 127

Agenda Item 9



2022/0567

Page 92 of 99

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 9



2022/0567

Page 93 of 99

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



2022/0567

Page 94 of 99

Page 130

Agenda Item 9



2022/0567

Page 95 of 99

Page 131

Agenda Item 9



2022/0567

Page 96 of 99

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 9



2022/0567

Page 97 of 99

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 9



2022/0567

Page 98 of 99

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 9



Hedge planting  

Hedge species planting to provide screening and amenity at the site boundary with the grazing land. Recommend laying / cop-
picing of any remaining hedge plants prior to planting.
Native hedge – minimum plant size 2+1yr bare rooted age range
Planted in 2 x staggered rows at a rate of 6 plants per metre.
Estimated metreage : 35m

Native Hedge mix;
70% Hawthorn (40-60cm tall, two years old),
20% Blackthorn and a 10% mix of Crab Apple,
Dog Rose, Field Maple, Guelder Rose and Hazel.

The ground should be prepared by the screefing back of any vegetation prior to planting. 
Planting within the site should be within topsoil to a made up depth of 300 mm if existing ground conditions do not include suffi-
cient topsoil.
This topsoil should be to specification BS3882:2007, standard grade.
All plants should be protected by appropriate guards i.e Planetec shrub guards staked with 2 x bamboo
canes or Tubex 0.6m Easywrap guards staked with 1x bamboo cane. Plants should be planted at a rate of 6 plants per metre in 2
staggered rows

b. Tree planting Groups and individuals

This planting is intended to enhance the diversity of plant stock in the site and to provide amenity value both within the
development and wider surroundings. To achieve this balance it is intended to plant a small number of individual amen-
ity / landscape trees.

Tree types: Species selection. As detailed on planting plan

Sizes/planting: Standards in the size range 8 - 10 cm bare root, root balled and container grown stock dependent upon
location, species and availability.

c. Shrub planting

This planting is intended to provide visual amenity and screening throughout the gardens and amenity areas.

Sizes: 2/3L pots. Shrub types: Species selection. As detailed on plan

Planting densities: Planting centres of 1200mm = 0.69/m2 for larger varieties

d. Grass seeding area - Lawns

This area of grass planting to be sown from seed directly onto prepared seed beds following grading and levelling of the
planting areas shown on plan.
Planting within the site boundary should be within existing topsoil or imported topsoil to a made up depth of 150 mm
after settling.
This topsoil should be to specification BS3882:2007, standard grade

An appropriate low maintenance grass mixture in order to reduce mowing requirements.
A suitable seed would be Boston Seeds BS Low Maintenance (previously know as Grow Slow) or similar. It
contains slower growing grasses for less mowing requirement
25% chewings fescue, 52% strong creeping red fescue, 10% smooth-stalked meadow grass, 10% hard fescue and 3%
crested dogstail
Sowing rate 35 gms/m2.

AFTERCARE
Allowance should be made to keep the sown areas watered during dry periods encountered throughout the establish-
ment period

e. Wild Grass area BS1M

This area of grass /wildflower (80/20) planting to be sown from seed directly onto appropriately levelled, firmed and pre-
pared seed beds. BS1M General Purpose Wildflower Meadow or similar: Boston Seeds

Bedstraw, Lady's Galium verum 1.2% Jun - Sep 50 - 80cm Perennial
Black Medick Medicago lupulina 1.4% May - Oct 15 - 80cm Annual
Burnet, Salad Sanguisorba minor 1.6% Jun - Sep 15 - 50cm Perennial
Buttercup, Meadow Ranunculus acris 1.2% May - Jun 30 - 100cm Perennial
Campion, Red Silene dioica 1.2% Apr - Sep 60 - 90cm Perennial
Campion, White Silene alba 1% May - Oct 50 - 100cm Perennial
Carrot, Wild Daucus carota 0.8% Jun - Oct 30 - 100cm Perennial
Catchfly, Night-Flowering Silene noctiflora 1% Jun - Aug 20 - 100cm Annual
Clary, Wild Salvia verbenaca 1% May - Aug 30 - 40cm Perennial
Cowslip Primula veris 0.2% Apr - May 15 - 30cm Perennial
Daisy, Ox-eye Leucanthemum vulgare 0.6% May - Sep 20 - 100cm Perennial
Forget-me-not, Field Myosotis arvensis 0.8% May - Jul 20 - 40cm Annual
Foxglove, Wild Digitalis purpurea 0.8% Jun - Aug 50 - 100cm Biennial
Goat's-beard Tragopogon pratensis 0.8% Jun - Sep 20 - 60cm Biennial
Knapweed, Common Centaurea nigra 1.2% Jun - Sep 30 - 80cm Perennial
Knapweed, Greater Centaurea scabiosa 0.8% Jun - Sep 50 - 90cm Perennial
Musk Mallow Malva moschata 0.6% May - Sep 20 - 150cm Perennial
Self-heal Prunella vulgaris 1% Jun - Sep 15 - 30cm Perennial
Sorrel, Common Rumex acetosa 1% May - Jul 30 - 100cm Perennial
St John's-wort, Common Hypericum perforatum 0.4% Jun - Sep 30 - 90cm Perennial
Yarrow Achillea millefolium 0.4% Jun - Oct 20 - 100cm Perennial
Yellow Rattle Rhinanthus minor 1% Jun - Sep 20 - 50cm Annual
Bent, Common Agrostis castellana 4% 50 - 100cm Grass
Crested Dogstail Cynosurus cristatus 20% 30 - 60cm Grass
Fescue, Sheeps Festuca ovina 16% 15 - 50cm Grass
Fescue, Slender Creeping Red Festuca rubra, litoralis 24% 10 - 20cm Grass
Meadow Grass, Smooth Stalk Poa pratensis 6.4% 30 - 90cm Grass
Timothy, Small Leaved Phleum pratense ssp Bertolinii 9.6% 50 - 100cm Grass

Sowing rate 5 gms/m2.

Pull plant up slightly
to spread roots out

V Notch

Lightly firm soil
with foot

Plant at correct
depth

L Notch T Notch

TreeTree

Tree

Tree

Push plant into notch
so roots are

completely buried

Planting pit dug to 
minimum of 2 x size of 
root ball / bare roots

Tree stakes either 
single or double of 
appropriate 
thickness and 
depth for tree

Suitable tree ties at no 
more than 1/3 of stem 
height. Check and adjust 
post planting

Tree to be planted 
at nursery / water 
mark depth

Planting pit to be 
infilled with firmed 
topsoil, if imported to 
the site this topsoil 
should be to 
specification 
BS3882:2007, 
standard grade

Tree Planting: Individual Trees

Species / size: as detailed

Qp: Quercus petraea (Sessile Oak) : 8 - 10 cm bare root x 1

Si: Sorbus intermedia ' Brouwers' (Swedish Whitebeam): 8 - 10 cm bare root x 1

Pm: Pinus mugo 'Mughus' (Dwarf Pine): 10L container x 1

Pn: Pinus nigra maritima (Corsican Pine): 125 - 150 cm root ball x 2

Ag: Alnus glutinosa (Alder)  8 - 10 cm bare root x 2

10 year post planting schedule: Mill Lane – Maintenance Plan

OPERATION ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FREQUENCY  & TIMING
Inspection Inspection of condition of trees while carrying

out other operations
2 per year approximately  All year round

Checking and adjusting stakes, ties and guys Inspection and adjustment to allow for tree
growth. Inspection of stakes, ties and guy, with
repair or replacement if defective

2 per year April and October

Weed control in tree planting areas Weed control carried out around trees within
planted areas.  Hand-weed preferable within 0.5
radius of tree trunks.

2 per year April and October

Application of slow-release fertiliser Only required if plant growth is poor 1 per year April or May
Pruning for safety considerations To remove encroachment onto paths and roads;

to maintain sightlines and effectiveness of lights;
includes crown lifting

1 per year or more frequently As required for
tree species

Pruning for plant health and structure Includes removal of dead wood and crossing
stems to create sound structure. Removal of
extraneous growth from trunks/roots

1 per year As required for tree species

Pest and disease control Reporting of infestation with pests or signs of
disease, diagnosis and treatment e.g., application
of appropriate pesticide

1 every 3 years or less frequently As determined
by problem

Replacement of failed trees Remedy of problem and replacement with
appropriate planting  1 per year

November – December

Watering Post planting watering. As determined by weather conditions

Planting and Aftercare

Tree planting

1. Sizes/planting: Standards in the size range 8 -10 cm and 10-12 cm girth.

2. All tree stock should be to the specifications detailed in BS3936-1 Nursery Stock

3. All trees and shrubs shall conform to the British Standard for Nursery Stock – BS 3936, parts 1, 2, 3, 4, & 5,
as published by the BSI.

4. They shall be nursery grown,''bare root'', “root-balled”, or “container grown”, unless otherwise specified. No
plant shall have a "man made" ball.

5. Bare root shrubs or trees may be used where specifically indicated on plans.

6. All deciduous street trees or trees adjacent to footpaths shall be free of branches to 2m above ground un-
less specified.

7. Trees with bark included within major branch unions will not be accepted.

8. Roots of field-grown trees must be intact and protected from desiccation with plastic wrap, they must be
planted as soon as practicable following delivery to site.

9. Container grown trees must have the container on the root ball or the root ball must be appropriately protec-
ted from desiccation.

10. Trees with root balls that have bound or girdled roots are not acceptable and should be rejected.

11. The trees within the boundary areas and magrins of the site should be protected by staking to windward
with suitable stakes and ties at no more than 1/3 height to encourage root development. Trees should be
planted in the recommended manner in respect of planting hole size in relation to bare root / root ball size and
be in-filled with quality topsoil. See planting diagram on this plan.

Ag

Notch planting - hedges

Larger tree planting 8 - 10 cm size

Soft Landscaping  - Marsh Grange, Dunnerholme

Soft Landscaping Plan

Project -
Marsh Grange Barn
Dunnerholme
Kirkby in Furness
Cumbria

Barn Conversion

Scale 1:250

Version - 1 Created - A.W.

File date - 11/01/2021

File amends - drainage

Shrub planting

1. When inspected visually, plants shall be free from pests and diseases, damage and signs of nutri-
ent deficiency and toxicity.

2. Plants will have adequate root systems and flowering plants shall have a reasonable expectation
that they will give a good flower display the season following their planting out into open ground.

3. All shrubs, hedging plants, climbers, herbaceous plants and bulbs should comply with BS 3936
(Appendix B).

4. Planting will be avoided in frozen ground conditions and waterlogged soil.

5. All plants will be firmed and watered if they are planted in dry weather.

6. Planting holes should be about 150mm wider than the root spread.

7. The shrubs should be set in the holes so that the soil level, after settlement, will be at the original
root collar level on the stem of the shrub.

8. The holes should be backfilled to half their depth then firmed by treading before the remainder of
the topsoil is returned and firmed again.

Watering - All Tree and Shrub Planting:

Watering should be to the saturation of the ground to 'field capacity' at planting and regular
watering thereafter during the establishment period, year 1 and 2. Additional watering should
be applied in prolonged periods of dry weather during the initial two growing seasons. This
watering should be to soil saturation (field capacity) during periods of dry weather in spring
and summer months
Note. dry periods to be regarded as a maximum of 5 days without rain during years 1and 2
post planting.

Shrub Planting - individual shrubs

Species / size

Pt Pittosporum tenuifolium :  3L as plan

He Hebe albicans (Hebe) :  3L as plan

Sen Senecio 'Sunshine'  : 3L as plan

Ul Ulex europaeus 'Flora Peno' (Dwarf Gorse) : 2L as plan

San Santolina incana (Cotton Lavender) : 5L as plan

Em Escalonia macrantha : 3L as plan

Gl Griselina liltoralis: 3L as plan

Vt Viburnum tinus: 3L as plan

Sp Spirea nipponica 'Snowmound': 3L as plan

Qp

Ag

Hedge

Wild
grass

Pt 6
He 6
Em 3

Pt 5
He 5

Sen 5
Ul 9

Si

Pn

Si

Pn

Pm

Pt 5
Sp 3

Vt 2
Em 2
Gl 7

Pm

San 5
He 4

Yew Tree and Garden
Yew Tree House
Hale
Milnthorpe
Cumbria
LA7 7BJ

015395 63527/07813 897631
info@yewtreegardens.co.uk

Wild
grass

Lawn

2022/0567

Page 99 of 99

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 9



 
 

Appendices of  
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 
agenda today. 

 

 
 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2021 
 

 

NPPF 011 
Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) all plans should promote a sustainable pattern of development that seeks to: meet the 
development needs of their area; align growth and infrastructure; improve the 
environment; mitigate climate change (including by making effective use of land in urban 
areas) and adapt to its effects; 

 

 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 
housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 
areas, unless: 

 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 
of development in the plan area; or 

 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 

 

For decision-taking this means: 
 

 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 

 

 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: 

 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 

 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 

Page 136

Agenda Item 9

lmoscrop
Typewritten text
Policies 



 

NPPF 062 
Within this context, the size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in 
the community should be assessed and reflected in planning policies (including, but not 
limited to, those who require affordable housing, families with children, older people, 
students, people with disabilities, service families, travellers, people who rent their 
homes and people wishing to commission or build their own homes). 

 

 

NPPF 080 
Planning policies and decisions should avoid the development of isolated homes in the 
countryside unless one or more of the following circumstances apply: 

 
a) there is an essential need for a rural worker, including those taking majority control of 
a farm business, to live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside; 

 

 

b) the development would represent the optimal viable use of a heritage asset or would 
be appropriate enabling development to secure the future of heritage assets; 

 

 

c) the development would re-use redundant or disused buildings and enhance its 
immediate setting; 

 

 

d) the development would involve the subdivision of an existing residential building; or 

e) the design is of exceptional quality, in that it: 

- is truly outstanding, reflecting the highest standards in architecture, and would help to 
raise standards of design more generally in rural areas; and 

 

 

- would significantly enhance its immediate setting, and be sensitive to the defining 
characteristics of the local area. 

 

 

NPPF 081 
Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses 
can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to 
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs 
and wider opportunities for development. The approach taken should allow each area to 
build on its strengths, counter any weaknesses and address the challenges of the future. 
This is particularly important where Britain can be a global leader in driving innovation, 
and in areas with high levels of productivity, which should be able to capitalise on their 
performance and potential. 

 

 

NPPF 111 
Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would 
be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the 
road network would be severe. 
 

 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



NPPF 119 
Planning policies and decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the 
need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the environment and 
ensuring safe and healthy living conditions. Strategic policies should set out a clear 
strategy for accommodating objectively assessed needs, in a way that makes as much 
use as possible of previously-developed or 'brownfield' land.  

 
 

NPPF 130 
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 

 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development; 

 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 

 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 

 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and 

 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where 
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion and resilience. 

 

 

NPPF 132 
Design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and assessment of 
individual proposals. Early discussion between applicants, the local planning authority 
and local community about the design and style of emerging schemes is important for 
clarifying expectations and reconciling local and commercial interests. Applicants should 
work closely with those affected by their proposals to evolve designs that take account 
of the views of the community. Applications that can demonstrate early, proactive and 
effective engagement with the community should be looked on more favourably than 
those that cannot. 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 138

Agenda Item 9



NPPF 203 
The effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset 
should be taken into account in determining the application. In weighing applications that 
directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be 
required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the 
heritage asset. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where: 

 

 

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing 
the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability; 

 

 

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated 
sites and the historic environment; 

 

 

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in 
conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced; 

 

 

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering 
works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to 
protect existing investment; 

 

 

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 
landscape character of the site respected and reinforced; 

 

 

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural 
landscape character; and 

 

 

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast. 
 

 

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where 
the above criteria can be met. 

 

 

Policy C3a - Water management 
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following 
measures: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 139

Agenda Item 9



a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined 
by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed 
appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue 
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources. 

 

 

b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water. 
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and 
contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage 
Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface 
water should be discharged in the following order of priority: 

 

 

i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system. 
ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse. 
iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another 
drainage system. 
iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer. 

 

 

Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence 
demonstrating why alternative options are not available. 

 

 

c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate 
maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes. 

 

 

d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a 
wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases, 
between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction. 

 

 

e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current 
natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked. 

 

 

f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water 
discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable 
drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include 
clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations 
on rates of discharge. 

 

 

g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site 
can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft 
landscaping such as permeable surfaces.

Page 140

Agenda Item 9



 

 
h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface 
water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be 
investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A 
discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment 
Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority. 

 

 

The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be 
supported, subject to the criteria above. 

 

 

Policy C4 - Contaminated and Unstable Land 
Contaminated Land 

 

 

On land known to be or suspected of being contaminated, or where development may 
result in the release of contaminants from adjoining land, development will only be 
permitted where: 

 

 

a) It can be demonstrated that there is no significant harm, or risk of significant harm, to 
health and wellbeing and the environment, including pollution of any watercourse or 
controlled waters; and 

 

 

b) Any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard users or occupiers of the 
site or neighbouring land, and that the environment and any buildings or services during 
development are protected from contamination. 

 

 

All investigations should be carried out in accordance with the advice set out in 
'Development of Potentially Contaminated Land and Sensitive End Uses - An Essential 
Guide for Developers' or any subsequent update of this guidance. 

 

 

Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to the presence of 
contamination (i.e. residential) the planning application must be supported by an 
appropriate assessment of on site contamination including proposals for remediation in 
accordance with the above mentioned document. 

 

 

Unstable Land 
 

 

On land known or suspected to be unstable, development will only be permitted where it 
can be demonstrated that there is no significant risk of harm to health and wellbeing and 
the environment, and that any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard 
users or occupiers of the site or neighbouring land.

Page 141

Agenda Item 9



 

 
Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to land instability, the planning 
application must be supported by a risk assessment report that demonstrates that 
adequate and environmentally acceptable mitigation measures are in place. 

 

 

Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy 
New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use 
of energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment. 
Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their 
layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible. 

 

 

All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production 
equipment, sources of renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for 
renewable, low carbon or decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and 
location of the development provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6. 

 

 

Policy C7 - Light Pollution 
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution and applications which propose new 
external lighting will be expected to demonstrate each of the following: 

 

 

a)    The proposed artificial light has no adverse impact on the locality or measures will 
be taken to avoid, and where appropriate mitigate, any negative impacts of the effects of 
new lighting on local amenity resulting from the development; 

 

 

b)    The proposal has no significant impact on a protected site or species e.g. located 
on, or adjacent to, a designated European site or where there are designated European 
protected species that may be affected; 

 

 

c)    The proposal is not in or near a protected area of dark sky or an intrinsically dark 
landscape where it may be desirable to minimise new light sources; and 

 

 

d)    The proposal has no impact on wildlife (e.g. white or ultraviolet light) when being 
proposed close to sensitive wildlife receptors or areas, including where the light shines 
on water. 

 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible.

Page 142

Agenda Item 9



 

 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 
environmental gains for the Borough. 

 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 

 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

 
 

 

Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 

 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 
facilities; 

 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 

 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 
infrastructure;

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



 

 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 

 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 
environmental assets; 

 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 

 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 

 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 
Plan objectives by alternative means. 

 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:

Page 144

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 
Documents; 

 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 

 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 

 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 
structured building layout; 

 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 

 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 
sourced wherever possible; 

 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 

 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 
and public safety; 

 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 

 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities;

Page 145

Agenda Item 9



 

 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 

 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 

 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 
provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
 

Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should 
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where 
appropriate. 

 

 

A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full 
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a 
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development 
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit 
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the 
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place. 

 

 

All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be 
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees, 
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should 
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent 
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important 
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses. 

 

 

Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive 
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment. 

 

 

In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate 
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use 
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate 
run off. 

 

 

Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning 
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Page 146

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday Accommodation 
Proposals for new self catering holiday accommodation, or extensions of existing units, 
will be approved within the built-up area of Barrow and Dalton and the development 
cordons identified, providing the design, siting, layout and access are satisfactory. 
Conditions will be attached to any planning permission to ensure that letting is on a short 
term basis. 

 

 

In urban fringe or rural areas, proposals for the conversion of existing buildings to self 
catering accommodation will be approved where they meet all of the following criteria: 

 

 

a)    The building is structurally sound and capable of conversion without major 
rebuilding, extension or modification to the existing structure; 

 

 

b)    The building is served by a satisfactory access; 
 

 

c)    Services are readily available on site; 
 

 

d)    The buildings are well related to existing buildings or uses on the site where 
appropriate; 

 

 

e)    The number of units is appropriate to its surroundings; 
 

 

f)    The proposal will not have an adverse impact on local amenities by virtue of 
noise and disturbance; and 

 

 

g)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 
 

 

New build self-catering holiday accommodation within urban fringe or rural areas will be 
accepted where it meets criteria b-g above. 

 
 

 

Policy EC3 - Managing Development of Employment Land 
Proposals for new employment uses (classes B1, B2 and B8), or the extension of 
existing premises used for employment uses, will be approved subject to meeting all of 
the following criteria: 

 

 

a)    The site is located within or directly adjoining the built up area of Barrow or Dalton, 
or within the development cordons identified in the housing chapter;

Page 147

Agenda Item 9



 

 
b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 

 

 

c)    The use will not unduly impact upon the residential amenities of those living nearby 
due to noise, disturbance from traffic, hours of operation, external storage, light 
pollution, vibration or airborne emissions including odours; 

 

 

d)    Traffic generated by the proposal is capable of being satisfactorily accommodated 
within the highway network; 

 

 

e)    A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) will be required for proposals for major sites 
(sites over 5,000 m2), schemes likely to generate in excess of 100 HGV movements 
daily, or any development that may impact on the Trunk Road network; 

 

 

f)    The site has been designed to promote user accessibility by walking, cycling and 
public transport; 

 

 

g)    The layout of the site has suitable space for landscaping, parking (including for 
large vehicles where appropriate), loading and unloading and any other operational 
requirements, and responds to natural drainage flow patterns; 

 

 

h)    Development must create safe and secure environments that minimise 
opportunities for crime and promote community safety; 

 

 

i)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, waste 
management, flood risk and transport implications; 

 

 

j)    Adequate protection of groundwater from pollution from the storage, handling or use 
of chemicals can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority; 
especially on sites within the St. Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer as shown on the 
Proposals Map; 

 

 

k)    The proposal does not use the best and most versatile agricultural land (grade 3a 
and above) unless it is demonstrated that the loss is outweighed by other planning 
considerations; 

l)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan; and 

m)    The proposal should make effective use of previously developed land where 
possible.

Page 148

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

Trade counters and retailing from employment premises will be restricted to those which 
are ancillary for the main operation of the B1/B2/B8 business. 

 

Where the development cordon directly adjoins a neighbouring Local Planning Authority 
(LPA), the adjoining LPA's planning policies will apply on land within their boundary. 

 

 

Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy 
SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation, 
enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain, 
enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue 
spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its 
delivery. 

 

 

The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary 
sector, developers and utility providers to: 

 
 

 

(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of 
the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a 
network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally 
distinctive place making. 

 

 

(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development 
and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional 
layouts. 

 

 

(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic, 
leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage 
improved health, fitness and well-being. 

 

 

(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play 
areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 

 

 

(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well- 
connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist 
undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature;

Page 149

Agenda Item 9



 

 
(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable 
urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding 
and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and 

 

 

(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture 
 

 

Policy H12 - Homes for Life 
Developers should state how their development will be able to meet the changing 
housing needs of occupiers. 

 

 

The Council aims to ensure that every resident, in particular older people, are able to 
secure and sustain independence in a home appropriate to their circumstances and to 
actively encourage developers to build new homes so that they can be readily adapted 
to meet the needs of those with disabilities and the elderly as well as assisting 
independent living at home. 

 

 

Provision of retirement accommodation, residential care homes, close care, Extra Care 
and assisted care housing and Continuing Care Retirement Communities will be 
encouraged in suitable sustainable locations. 

 

Policy H16 - Loss of Sunlight 
Extensions to dwellings will be permitted unless they adversely affect the amenities of 
neighbouring properties by virtue of an undue loss of sunlight or daylight or by the 
creation of an overbearing impact or unacceptable level of enclosure. The Local 
Planning Authority will refer to the standards laid out by the BRE (or any subsequent 
replacement standards) on sunlighting and daylighting in its assessments of 
applications. 

 

 

Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy 
Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable 
standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties. 
Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should 

 
be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where 
privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required 
between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be 
made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening 
exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and 
existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In 
all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will 
not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is 
deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation. 

 

 

Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and 
kitchens with dining areas. 

Page 150

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
 
 

Policy H5 - Residential development in the open countryside 
New housing in the open countryside will only be permitted where the Council is 
satisfied that the proposal meets specific local needs, including provision for rural 
workers, replacement dwellings, temporary accommodation to support a new rural 
enterprise and conversions. Applications will require supporting evidence prepared by a 
suitably qualified person to justify the need for such housing. Development must accord 
with relevant Local Plan Policies regarding landscape and biodiversity and the principles 
set out in the Council's Green Infrastructure Strategy. 

 

 

Rural Workers Dwellings 
 

 

1)    Proposals for new-build rural workers dwellings in the open countryside will only be 
permitted where the dwelling is required to meet the proven essential needs of a rural 
worker and the following criteria are met: 

 

 

a)    The business requires the permanent attendance of a worker on site; 
 

 

b)    The need cannot be met by any existing dwelling or other accommodation at the 
business or in the general locality; 

 

 

c)    Audited accounts from the previous three years show that the business is financially 
sound and has a reasonable prospect of remaining so; 

 

 

d)    The size of the dwelling is appropriate to the need, the design is appropriate to the 
landscape, it is located adjacent to any existing buildings and uses the existing access; 
and 

 

 

e)    A planning condition is attached to ensure that occupancy of the dwelling(s) is 
confined to rural workers. 

 
 

 

Replacement Dwellings 
 

 

2)    The replacement of existing dwellings in the countryside will only be permitted 
where all of the following criteria are met: 

 

 

a)    The replacement dwelling makes a positive visual contribution to the rural 
environment. 

 

 

b)    The scale of the replacement dwelling matches the existing dwelling. 
 

 

c)    The existing dwelling is not derelict (i.e. incapable of being re-inhabited without 
carrying out works requiring planning consent). 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 9



 

d)    Expert advice has been sought and an appropriate course of action has been 
agreed in cases where the existing dwelling provides habitat to wildlife species protected 
by law. 

 

 

The demolition and replacement of dwellings will not be permitted where the existing 
dwelling is a heritage asset, contributes to the setting of other heritage assets or makes 
a positive contribution to the character of the countryside even in cases where the 
criteria listed above can be met. 

 

 

Temporary Accommodation 
 

 

3)    Accommodation that is required in relation to a new rural enterprise, such as a 
mobile home will only be approved on a temporary basis, subject to not causing an 
undue visual impact on the surrounding countryside or when viewed from a public right 
of way. 

 

 

Conversions  
 
4)    Conversion of redundant or disused buildings will be permitted provided that each 
of the following criteria is satisfied: 

 

 

a)     The application is accompanied by evidence that the building is structurally sound 
and capable of conversion without substantial rebuilding work or extension; 

 

 

b)    The development would lead to an enhancement of the immediate setting of the 
building; 

 

 

c)    The development is of a high standard of design appropriate to the character of the 
host building and the open countryside location; 

 

 

d)     The development would be able to access the road network without the need to 
construct access roads, the nature of which would have an unacceptable impact on the 
landscape; 

 

 

e)    Any ancillary buildings are appropriate in scale, design, materials and siting and can 
be located within the curtilage of the site without encroaching into the open countryside; 
and 

 

 

f)    Any external amenity space is appropriate in size, scale and character to serve the 
proposed dwelling and its landscaping and boundary treatments are appropriate to the 
rural setting. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 152

Agenda Item 9



Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites 
Applications for residential development will be permitted where they satisfy all of the 
following criteria: 

 

 

a)    The site is located within or adjoining the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or 
within a development cordon identified in Policy H4; 

 

 

b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 
 

 

c)    Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing, 
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character , 
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area; 

 

 

d)    An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in 
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation; 

 
 

e)    The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the 
highway network; 

 

 

f)    The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public 
transport, as opposed to the private car; 

 

 

g)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, 
drainage, waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding; 

 

 

h)    The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is 
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development; 

 

 

i)    Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to 
provide for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f); 

 

 

j)    Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the 
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the 
housing is proposed; 

 

 

k)    Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be 
required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape 
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable 
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence 
of settlements; 

 

 

l)    The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting; 
 

 

m)    There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 9



 

n)    The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in 
the Development Strategy chapter should be followed. 

 

 

The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible. 
 
Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing 
The Council will encourage development which promotes health and wellbeing by: 

 
 

a) Providing access to a range of types of housing in sustainable locations; 
 

 

b) Encouraging travel by sustainable means including use of public transport walking 
and cycling; 

 

 

c) Promoting access to and use of open space; 
 

 

d) Promoting the use of sustainable construction materials and methods where 
appropriate; 

 

 

e) Protecting the Borough's natural and heritage assets; 
 

 

f) Supporting a range of sport, recreation and leisure pursuits; 
 

 

g) Supporting health promotion: Including smoking cessation, healthy eating and 
breastfeeding campaigns; 

 

 

h) Encouraging reuse of existing buildings for health uses where appropriate; 
 

 

i) Encouraging use of renewable energy technologies where appropriate; and 
 

 

j) Promoting inclusive design which meets the needs of all, including those with mobility 
challenges. 

 

 
 

Policy HC15 - Education Provision 
Proposals for the development of new educational facilities as well as for the expansion, 
alteration and improvement of existing educational facilities will be supported where they 
are well related to the catchment that they will serve. 

 

 

Proposals for the development of education facilities should be located within existing 
education sites where possible. Where there is a need for a new educational site, the 
location should be close to the intended catchment in order to minimise travel in line with 
sustainable development principles. 
 

 

 

Page 154

Agenda Item 9



Specifically in relation to primary and secondary school provision, Barrow Borough 
Council will continue to work with the Education Authority to identify what new demand 
will be generated from development as well as helping to identify suitable new education 

sites should this be required. 
 

 

To assist in the delivery of additional school places, where required, to meet the needs 
of development, contributions will be sought, using a legal agreement with the 
appropriate Authority. 

 

 

The provision of on site recycling facilities is encouraged to minimise waste. 
 
 

Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open spaces 
1)    Development proposals should make provision for easy, safe and inclusive access 
to, into, within and out of buildings, spaces and facilities. The layout and design of 
developments should meet the requirements of accessibility and inclusion for all 
potential users regardless of disability, age or gender. At the design stage consideration 
should be given to the effects of the proposal on the character and appearance of 
heritage assets and their settings, where applicable. 

 

 

The Council will have regard to the following criteria when assessing development 
proposals: 

 
 

 

a)    The design of entrances and exits and ease of movement through and between 
buildings, street furniture, open spaces and pedestrian routes; 

 

 

b)    The location of any development proposal in relation to its potential users; 
 

 

c)    Accessibility to all transport modes, including walking and cycling, and provision of 
adequate parking with the appropriate number of parking bays designated for cycles and 
motor vehicles, including specified disabled bays; 

 

 

d)    Provision of on-site facilities such as public toilets and appropriate signage. 
 
 

 
2) Additionally, where there is a requirement to submit a Design and Access Statement 
as part of a planning application it should: 

 
 

 

a)    Demonstrate the approach to inclusive design; and

Page 155

Agenda Item 9



 

 
b)    Acknowledge compliance with Part M of the Building Regulations (Access to and 
use of buildings) and refer to BS8300:2009 (British Standards - Design of buildings and 
their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people - Code of practice) where 
appropriate. 

 
 

Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention 
The design, layout and location of new development should contribute towards the 
creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of 
crime. 

 

 

Developers should: 
 
 

 
a)    Ensure the design, landscaping or any feature does not create isolated or secluded 
areas; 

 

 

b)    Demonstrate the design, layout, screening/landscaping enables a natural 
surveillance of the surrounding area and promotes neighbourliness; 

 

 

c)    Incorporate adequate lighting and security measures where appropriate e.g. 
communal and parking areas, taking into account the impact on light pollution, the 
natural environment and residential amenity; 

 

 

d)    Design layouts to promote ownership by residents and encourage use of communal 
areas 

 

 

e)    Create clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that prevent unobserved 
access. 

 

 
Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting 
The Council will, through planning decisions and in fulfilling its wider functions, 
proactively manage and work with partners to protect and enhance the character, 
appearance, archaeological and historic value and significance of the Borough's 

 
designated and undesignated heritage assets and their setting. 

 

 

Opportunities will also be pursued, to aid the promotion, understanding and 
interpretation of both heritage and cultural assets, as a means of maximising wider 
public benefits and in reinforcing Barrow's distinct identity. 

 

 

Key elements which contribute to the Borough's identity, and which will therefore be a 
priority for safeguarding and enhancing into the future, include: 
 

 

 

Page 156

Agenda Item 9



1. The Furness Abbey Scheduled Ancient Monument and its setting; 
 

 

2. 14th Century castles such Piel Castle and Dalton Castle and key religious sites and 
their setting; 

 

 

3. Barrow Town Hall, Ramsden Square and Schneider Square and associated statues 
as well as the streets and spaces which interconnect and provide setting for these 
assets; 

 

 

4. Wide, Victorian, tree-lined routes into and around Barrow such as Abbey Road and 
Hartington Street and the grid-iron pattern of areas of terraced housing in and around 
Barrow town centre; 

 

 

5. Remnants of the Borough's industrial heritage including sandstone workshop 
buildings, the imposing former worker's tenement blocks on Barrow Island, the slag 
bank, former iron workings and neighbourhoods of older traditional housing. 

 

 

6. Coastal features including Jubilee Bridge, Roa Island jetty, pill boxes, Walney and 
Rampside lighthouses and Cavendish Dock; 

 

 

7. Barrow Park, including the cenotaph and bandstand; 
 

 

8. Conservation areas and Listed Buildings across the Borough; 
 

 

9. Key cultural assets encompassing parklands, woodland, landscapes, coastlines, 
museums, libraries, art galleries, public art, local food and drink and local customs and 
traditions. 

 

 

As well as fulfilling its statutory obligations, the Council will: 
 

 

a) Seek to identify, protect and enhance local heritage assets; 
 
 
 

b) Promote heritage-led regeneration including in relation to development opportunities; 
 

 

c) Produce conservation area appraisals and management plans; 
 

 

d) Develop a positive strategy to safeguard the future of any heritage assets that are 
considered to be "at risk"; 

 

 

e) Adopt a proactive approach to utilising development opportunities to increase the 
promotion and interpretation of the Borough's rich archaeological wealth; and 

 

 

f) Develop a positive heritage strategy across the Borough. 
 

 
 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 9



Policy HE2 - Information required for proposals involving historic assets 
When determining proposals involving heritage assets, or involving sites where there 
are reasonable grounds for the potential of unknown assets of archaeological interest to 
be, the following information shall be submitted by the applicant as part of the 
application: 

 

 

a) An assessment of the asset's significance including any contribution made by its 
setting, and an assessment of the potential impact of the proposal on that significance, 
using appropriate expertise. The level of information required will be proportionate to the 
assets significance and to the scale of the impact of the proposal and may require, 
where necessary, a desk based assessment and a field evaluation prior to the 
determination of the proposal; and 

 

 

b) A full programme of work together with proposals to mitigate any adverse impact of 
the proposed development. Where appropriate, work will be implemented through 
measures secured by planning condition(s) or through a legal agreement. 

 

 

The Council has prepared a Guidance Document setting out when a Statement of 
Significance is required to accompany heritage applications which contains advice on its 
format and content. 

 

 

Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 
Proposals for works to listed buildings, including alterations, extensions or change of 
use and development affecting setting should not cause unacceptable harm to its 
significance, including those elements which contribute to their special architectural or 
historic interest, and setting. Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their  
significance will be supported. 

 

 

Substantial harm to, or loss of, a Grade II listed building should be exceptional. 
Substantial harm to, or loss of, Grade I and II* listed buildings should be wholly 
exceptional. 

 

 

Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building including to its 
setting, will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is 
necessary to achieve substantial benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the 
following apply: 

 

 

a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; 
 

 

b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term 
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; 

 

 

c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable or public 
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 

Page 158

Agenda Item 9



d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance 
of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighted against the public benefits 
of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 

 
Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be permitted 
where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area. Proposals for 
all new development, including alterations and extensions to buildings and their re-use, 
must be sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any replacement feature 
should match the original where it makes a positive contribution to the Conservation 
Area and its setting. 

 

 

Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area Appraisal or 
Management Plan. In particular it should respect all of the following: 

 

 

a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations by having due 
regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure, detailing and use 
of traditional materials;  

 
 

b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, trees, walls and 
surfacing; 

 

 

c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and 

d) Significant views into or out of the Areas. 

Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space which makes a 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and its 
setting. 

 

 

Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any opportunities for new 
development to enhance or better reveal their significance. 

 

 
 

Policy I1 - Developer Contributions 
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is 
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of 
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as 
the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery. 
 
 

 

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 9



All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where 
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements / 
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency, 
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements / 
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place. 
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of 
development. 

 

 

The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions 
towards include, but are not limited to: 

 

 

- Utilities and waste; 
 

 

- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures; 
 

 

- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated 
facilities); 

 

 

- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage 
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.); 

 

 

- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments, 
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally 
sensitive areas); and 

 

 

- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions. 
 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust 
evidence where applicable. 

 

 

Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary 
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making 
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees. 

 
 

Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices 
Development will be accessible by a range of sustainable transport options, including 
walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement with the Borough Council and 
the Local Highways Authority is encouraged. Development likely to generate significant 
levels of transport within isolated and poorly accessible areas will be resisted unless a 
clear environmental, social or economic need can be demonstrated. 

 

 

Proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle 
network including pedestrian links between developments and bus stops to maximise 
use of public transport to access green space, shopping, schools, health and other 
amenities. Where this would require the provision of links beyond the development site, 
such as provision of new footpaths and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service an 

Page 160

Agenda Item 9



appropriate planning obligation will be negotiated between the local planning authority 
and the applicant. 

 

 

Pedestrian and cycle routes within new developments must be suitably lit so as to create 
a safe, attractive and useable environment for all. 

 

 

Development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a proposed network of cycle routes  
should incorporate the appropriate section of route, and / or links to it. Where 
development affects the line of an existing route, the route will be required to be 
reinstated, or an acceptable alternative provided. The continuing integrity of the route 
should be maintained through the construction process. Routes, both interim and 
replacement, should be constructed to a standard and design acceptable to the Council 
and consistent with the Green Infrastructure Strategy requirements. 

 

 

Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will 
be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with housing, 
employment, retail, leisure and educational developments. In addition the Authority will 
encourage the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating developments. 

 

 

The Council will encourage the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within new 
development, particularly commercial development. 

 

 

Policy I5 - Travel Plans 
Development which generates a significant amount of movement will require the 
submission of a Travel Plan. As set out in national guidance the Travel Plan will 
demonstrate how: 

 

 

a) The needs of cyclists and pedestrians will be met and prioritised on site; 
 

 

b) The development will help to reduce the need to travel, particularly by private car; 
 

 

c) Relevant information about existing travel habits in the surrounding area has been 
assessed; 

 

 

d) Provision has been made for improved public transport services; 
 

 

e) The site will safely and conveniently connect to public rights of way and the wider 
green infrastructure network; 

 

 

f) The impact of the proposed development and the forecast level of trips by all modes of 
transport likely to be associated with the development, particularly of heavy goods 
vehicles accessing the site, has been minimised; and 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 9



g) The movement of freight and goods by rail will be maximised where possible.  
Where the trip reductions proposed to be achieved through a Travel Plan are to be 
considered as the mitigation measure in order to make the development impact 
acceptable, a developer contribution equal to the cost of providing the highway 
infrastructure improvements in the form of a bond will be required.  In the event that the 
Travel Plan objectives are not being met, the bond monies will be used to provide the 
necessary infrastructure.  In exceptional circumstances, should a developer be unwilling 
to commit to including an Action Plan within the Travel Plan, or the development 
proposals are at such a preliminary stage that it is unrealistic to draw up a list of 
measures, then it will be necessary to secure the outcome of the Travel Plan through a 
developer contribution. 

 
 

Policy I6 - Parking 
Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate 
that adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local 
Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the "Parking 
Guidelines in Cumbria" SPG or any update to it. 

 

 

In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be 
sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying 
parking standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer 
can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision 
is sufficient, the 'Parking Guidelines in Cumbria' can be relaxed in favour of the 
demonstrated proposal. 

 
 

 

The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate 
to the streetscene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to 
Policy C3 (water management) and Policy DS6 (landscaping). 

 

Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing landscape character 
Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local landscape  
character, as defined by contemporary adopted local landscape character guidance, 
currently the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit. In addition, major 
land use proposals will require an assessment of the effects of the proposed 
development on landscape character and visual effects at the time of submission. 

 

 

Where new development will impact upon the character of the landscape, such impact 
will need to be minimised and priority will be given to protecting and enhancing the 
landscape's distinct assets. Where there is loss or damage to the assets, the applicant 
must submit a statement demonstrating that this is unavoidable e.g. the development 
cannot be sited elsewhere due to operational requirements.  In cases such as these, the 
unavoidable damage must be mitigated, and unavoidable loss must be compensated 
for, so that there is no net loss in resources. 

 

 

Page 162

Agenda Item 9



High protection will be given to the undeveloped coast in order to maintain its openness, 
tranquillity, heritage and nature conservation value and to maintain the Borough's 
recreation and tourism appeal. 

 

 

High protection will also be given to the setting of the Lake District National Park in order 
to maintain the valued views to and from this nationally designated area, its tranquility 
and its attractiveness to tourists. 

 

 

Measures to enhance the character of the Borough's landscape will be supported, with 
particular importance given to the following: 

 

a)    Improved access to the landscape for recreation and tourism, including managed 
access to the undeveloped coast. 

 

 

b)    The regeneration of unsightly brownfield sites, particularly former industrial sites. 
 

 

c)    Increase in tree and woodland cover where such planting complements the scale of 
the landscape. 

 

 

d)    Enhancement of the nature conservation value of the landscape. 
 
Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 
The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 
biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 
impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 
will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required 
to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 
Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 

 

 

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 

 

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 
international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 
or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 
qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant 
partner organisations are satisfied that: 

 

 

.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 
development on an alternative site); and 

 

 

.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate habitat 
creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in 
agreement with the Council and relevant partner organisations, via planning 
conditions, agreements or obligations. 

 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 9



Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 
residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 
an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 
through planning conditions or planning obligations. 

 

 

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 
such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 
reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 
and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 
to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 
protected. 

 

 

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 
corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 
from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 

demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 

Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 
be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 
identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 
referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 
must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 
for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 
adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 

 

 

Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 
with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 

 

 

Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 
application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 
correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 
proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 

 

 

Policy P1 - The Port of Barrow 
Within the Port Area identified on the Proposals Map, development proposals for port 
and port related use, including those linked to the 'Energy Coast', will be supported and 
where appropriate approved by the Council if the submitted scheme accords with other 
relevant policies in the Development Plan, and can pass the tests of the Habitat 
Regulations. 

 

 

Areas that benefit from existing or potential access from deep water will be protected for 
port and port related uses. 

 

 

Page 164

Agenda Item 9



Any proposals for new development on land in close proximity to the Port Area will be 
required to fully assess the potential impact on the Port of the proposed use and where 
necessary, provide mitigation as part of the new development to ensure that there is no 
unacceptable impact on the Port. 

 

 

Policy R15 - The location of hot food takeaways 
Applications for hot food takeaways, including those which involve the relaxation of 
opening hours, will be permitted where: 

 

 

a)    They are located within the urban boundaries of Barrow or Dalton or are within a 
Development Cordon identified in Policy H4; 

 

 

b)    The applicant submits evidence to the Council's agreement to demonstrate that 
there will be no adverse impact upon the local environment and residential 
amenities by reason of noise, odour, litter, waste disposal, traffic and parking; and 

 

 

c)    Full details are submitted at application stage of any extraction equipment in 
order that the visual implications can be fully assessed. This is of particular 
importance if any heritage assets or their setting are affected which may require 
additional detail. 

 

 

Grease traps will be required where necessary. 
 
Policy R16 - Opening hours of hot food takeaways 
When considering appropriate hours of operation for hot food takeaways, regard will be 
had to: 

 

 

a) The existence of an established evening economy in the area; 
 

 

b) The character and function of the immediate area; 
 

 

c) The potential benefits of the proposal for the wider community; and 

d) Impact on residential amenity 

 
Policy R19 - Neighbourhood Shopping Centres 
Small scale retail developments, including proposals for changes of use to retail, will be 
looked upon favourably within the identified neighbourhood shopping centres and within 
rural villages where it can be demonstrated that the use serves a recognised local need. 

 

 

Applications that involve the loss of local shops and services that serve a recognised 
local need in residential neighbourhoods will be resisted where there is a need to 
maintain an adequate provision of essential local shops unless the applicant can 
demonstrate that the shop is no longer viable. The premises must have been advertised, 
at a reasonable price, for a minimum of 12 months, no reasonable offer must have been

Page 165

Agenda Item 9



 

 
refused and the property must have been advertised on the open market for at least four 
times in the local media at roughly equal periods over the previous year. 

Page 166

Agenda Item 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

4th October 2022 
 

 
INDEX 

 
 
 
 

Page No Reference  Address  Proposal  

2 2022/0603 Barrow Island Rugby 
Club 

Extension to existing gym and sports club. 

10 2022/0616 152-156 Dalton Road 
Barrow  

Change of use from Use Class E (Commercial, 
Business and Services) to Sui Generis (Betting 
Office) with associated external alterations 
including new rear doorway, alterations to 
shopfront and installation of 2 satellite dishes to 
side gable. 

26 2022/0595 13 Harrel Lane Barrow  Erection of a rear ground floor extension forming 
extended kitchen. 

38 2022/0533 9 Risedale Road 
Barrow  

Application for variation of condition no. 7 of 
planning permission B20/2021/0523; (Change of 
use from sandwich shop/takeaway (Class E) to hot 
food takeaway (sui-generis) with installation of 
extraction flu to rear elevation) to extend 
operational hours to 23:00 hours. 

49 2022/0416 197 Rawlinson Street 
Barrow  

Change of use from office (class E) to hot food 
takeaway (Sui Generis) including installation of 
extraction equipment to the rear elevation 

61 2022/0519 Valley View, Mount 
Pleasant Dalton  

Retrospective change of use from hotel restaurant 
known as Valley View (formerly Clarence House) 
to one 9-bedroom holiday accommodation (sui 
generis) 

77 2022/0567 Marsh Grange Barn 
Dunnerholme  

New dwelling with retention of the existing two-
sided wall structure. 

 

Page 167

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
Book 2 

 
4th October 2022 

 
    Ladies and Gentlemen,  

 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team 
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405.. 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Head of Development Management  
 

Page 1 of 89

Page 169

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


B12/2022/0263 
Planning Committee  

4th October 2022  

  

  
Application Number : B12/2022/0263 Date Valid :19/04/2022 

Address : Land adjacent to the BAE 
Systems SASK - Academy of Skills and 
Knowledge, Buccleuch Dock Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Full planning application for the construction of a new University of 
Cumbria Barrow Campus, creation of a new car park and external landscaping 
works. 

Ward : Barrow Island Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : University of Cumbria, c/o 
agent DPP Planning  Agent : Mrs K Dixon, DPP Planning  

Statutory Date : 19/07/2022 

Recommendation : Members agree to 
support the principle of the 
scheme subject to the satisfactory 
resolution of issues around drainage, 
car parking and accessibility for 
pedestrians and cyclists, but giving 
delegated authority to the Head of 
Development Management to determine 
the application including formulating any 
planning conditions and  legal 
agreements  as may be required. 
Should these issues not be suitably 
resolved then the application be 
reported back to Members with a further 
update. 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C3a - Water management 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C4 - Contaminated and 

Unstable Land 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable 

Energy 

Page 2 of 89

Page 170

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C7 - Light Pollution 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 

to sustainable development 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 

Development Criteria 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC3 - Managing Development 

of Employment Land 
10. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
11. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing 
12. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC15 - Education Provision 
13. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and 

open spaces 
14. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention 
15. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and 

their setting 
16. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE2 - Information required for 

proposals involving historic assets 
17. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 
18. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
19. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I1 - Developer Contributions 
20. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel 

Choices 
21. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I5 - Travel Plans 
22. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I6 - Parking 
23. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity 

and geodiversity 
24. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy P1 - The Port of Barrow 

Summary of Main Issues 

The application involves the redevelopment of a brownfield site on industrial land for 
educational use, backed by funding from the Towns Deal. It should result in a high 
quality development along the waterfront and could act as a catalyst for wider 
regeneration including on nearby sites such as Marina Village and Salthouse Mills. 
The proposal scores highly in terms of design, landscaping,  green infrastructure and 
biodiversity enhancements and alongside the SASK building contributes to high 
quality design along the waterfront. In terms of economic development and job 
creation it should enhance the life chances of local young people and help to provide 
a skilled workforce for local employers who advise that they often struggle to recruit. 
Residential amenity and heritage impact are also considerations which are 
addressed within the body of the report. 

However, whilst the NPPF gives significant weight to the need to encourage 
business expansion many paragraphs are also devoted to sustainable travel and the 
need to prioritise pedestrians and cyclists over cars; the  relative isolation of the site 
and current poor provision of pedestrian links, particularly along Buccleuch Dock 
Road, has meant that this is a challenge for the applicants, and as yet, 
remains unresolved.   The proposal initially failed on this test but the applicants are 

Page 3 of 89

Page 171

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



keen to work with officers to overcome concerns arising from shortcomings in the 
transport aspects of the submission, and also around sustainable drainage and more 
information and amended plans have been requested. Your officers are continuing to 
work with the applicants in a positive and proactive way to overcome 
ongoing concerns but this has inevitably led to delays with the application. 

Non Material Considerations 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by press and site notices. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Buccleuch 
Dock Road 1, 1A, 

Dundee 
Street 

1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 
28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 
46, 47, 48, 49, 5, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 
64, 65, 66, 67, 69, 7, 71, 73, 8, 9, 

Dunoon 
Street 

1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 2, 20, 21, 22, 24, 26, 28, 3, 
30, 32, 34, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

Farm Street 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31, 33, 35, 37, 39, 41, 43, 45, 7, 
9, St Patricks Catholic Club, 

Michaelson 
Road 

1 Michaelson Villa, 4 Michaelson Villa, 2 Michaelson Villa, 3 
Michaelson Villa, St Patricks Presbytery, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Associated British Ports 
BAE Systems - Emergency Planning Officer (Nuclear) 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (CAT 1 Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Education) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Fire and Rescue) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 

Page 4 of 89

Page 172

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Health and Safety Executive (Hazardous Substances Consents) 
Health and Safety Executive (Planning Advice Web App) 
Natural England 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

29/04/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

26/07/2022  

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Licensing) 

“Thank you for the above consultation and apologies for the late response. I have 
read the available information and note the need for an intrusive investigation. I 
recommend that any subsequent planning approval includes the following conditions 
and also includes the need for a Construction Management Plan. I would also draw 
your attention to previous issues between the two cottages and the amount of traffic 
flowing from the site with regards to noise and light nuisance. 

1. If the Preliminary Investigation has identified potential unacceptable risks, a 
Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Land Contamination Risk 
Management (LCRM)), shall be undertaken to determine the presence and 
degree of contamination and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified 
contaminated land practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk 
Assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority before any development begins. 

2. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the 
preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan. The scheme must 
ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use. 

3. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification 
Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
prior to occupation of the development. 

Page 5 of 89

Page 173

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the 
site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall be carried out. 
Where required by the Local Planning Authority, remediation and verification 
schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

5. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A 
suitable methodology for testing this material should be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the soils being imported 
onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency, testing 
schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as 
determined by the risk assessment) and source material information. The 
analysis shall then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with 
verification of its completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

In order to protect residential amenity for further mechanical noise I would 
recommend the following conditions: 

1) Noise from the development must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR 30 in 
daytime hours (0700 - 2300) and NR 25 in night time hours (2300 - 0700) in any 
noise sensitive property. 

2) Noise from the development, including noise from the extraction equipment 
required in the above condition, must not cause the existing background noise level 
(measured as the LA90(10 minutes) to be exceeded at any neighbouring noise 
sensitive locations.  Any tonal noise produced by the development would result in a 
5dB addition to the particular noise level (Definition in: Appendix E “Noise Procedure 
Specification, Publication 140”, The Engineering Equipment and Materials User 
Association). [Note: the noise is measured 3.5m from any reflective surface, other 
than the ground, at a height of between 1.2 and 1.5m.]” 

05/05/2022  

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 

"The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to 
the proposed development based on the information provided but it should be noted 
that the proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning 
Area of BAE. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office 
for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. 

 

Page 6 of 89

Page 174

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being 
approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further 
discussion." 
 
29/07/2022  

Fire Safety Team Cumbria County Council (Fire and Rescue) 

"Following examination of plans in connection with the above application with regard 
to access of the site and water supplies, I have to inform you that the Fire Authority 
has no objections to this application.  However, it should be noted that access for 
firefighting and water supplies must comply with ADB Volume 2, Buildings other than 
dwellings, Section B5. 

With regards to the re-cladding of western gable to building B29 - The external 
cladding (compartment wall) should meet the requirements of ADB Section 13 

Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service is committed to reducing the impact of fire on 
people, property and the environment. For this reason, it is recommended that the 
applicant should give consideration to the inclusion of a sprinkler system within the 
design of the premises. 

There is clear evidence that sprinklers and other forms of automatic fire suppression 
systems can be effective in the rapid suppression of fires and therefore play an 
important role in achieving a range of benefits for both individuals and the community 
in general. 

This is because sprinklers can significantly help to: 

• Improve the time available to escape from a fire 
• Reduce death and injury from fire 
• Reduce the risks to fire fighters who we ask to fight the fires 
• Protect property 
• Reduce the effects of arson 
• Reduce the environmental impact of fire 

These benefits may far outweigh the installation costs of new sprinkler systems. 

For more information on sprinklers, visit the British Automatic Fire Sprinkler 
Association at www.bafsa.org.uk 

If you would like to discuss this or any other matter of fire safety, please contact me 
at the above details." 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 89

Page 175

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



23/06/2022  

Cumbria County Council (Highways & LLFA) 

"Thank you for your consultation on 17 June 2022 regarding the above Planning 
Application. Cumbria County Council as the Local Highway Authority (LHA) and 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and 
our findings are detailed below. 

Local Highway Authority response: 

It is with regret that I am recommending refusal on the grounds that insufficient 
information has been provided and further consideration is required to improve 
pedestrian and cycle routes to the site. 

Due to the existing issues with parking and the proposal that the majority of the 
students will be coming from BAE, where it has been calculated 71% of staff come to 
the area via a car, we have requested that a robust car parking strategy and green 
travel plan is required to better understand these figures and the means in which to 
accommodate the outcome. 

The local highway has pedestrian facilities including a footway along part of 
Buccleuch dock road which stops approximately 175m short of the entry to the site 
and in parts does not meet required standards due to lighting, extensive parking and 
missing footpath. There are opportunities to travel to the site by bicycle on the road 
network, with Buccleuch dock road being accessed from Michaelson road. the local 
cycling and walking infrastructure plan (LCWIP) identifies new cycling infrastructure 
(to be provided on highway) on Michaelson road, which is also identified as a priority 
walking route. Works to improve active transport on Michaelson road / bridge and 
Bridge Road (including a segregated cycleway) is currently being constructed 
(funded through active travel fund). 

Cycle route up to the site will need to be improved to suit the predicted heavy use. 

The closest bus stops to the site are 650m to the west of the proposed development 
on Michaelson road. The bus stops have shelters provided at stops on 
Michaelson road. 

Therefore, as mentioned, a robust car parking strategy and green travel plan is 
required and any under provision from the CDDG levels needs to have robust 
reasoning. The inclusion of staff parking, blue-badge spaces, coach turning and the 
other measures associated with a green travel strategy should be included - electric 
charging points for EVs, high quality secure cycle parking, convenient, direct, safe 
and high quality walking and cycling routes to the public highway. 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 89

Page 176

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 Lead Local Flood Authority response: 

The LLFA will have to recommend refusal of this application due to more information 
being required and that there is a potentially high risk to flooding due to the 
combined tidal lock and storm event. 

The flood risk assessment and surface water drainage strategy is a well-documented 
report that clearly identifies the hazards, demonstrates proposed mitigation 
measures and then maintenance. 

Within the Geology section of the report it is identified that the majority of the 
bedrock is made of permeable layers that can support local water supplies, and may 
form an important source of base flow to the Dock. 

A drainage survey has been undertaken and it has been identified that the surface 
water and foul water are independent with the surface water running into Buccleuch 
Dock and the foul water to be pumped via a new pump that will discharge at 5.73l/s. 
It has been confirmed by CCC that it will be acceptable for the proposed surface 
water from the site boundary to discharge at a rate that will not overload the 
downstream pipework. A survey of the downstream pipework and catchment has not 
been provided. 

It has been estimated that the surface water discharge capacity for the site is capped 
at 35l/s and the following analysis has been based on this limitation. This could vary 
following the capacity assessment downstream and is therefore yet to be concluded. 

The report has calculated exceedance flow routes for a 100 year rainfall event plus 
40% allowance for climate change, however they have modelled a simulation to 
account for a 100 year event + 60% for climate change. the results of the +60% 
assessment could not be found in the Appendix D, but a diagrammatic explanation of 
flooding locations was provided in appendix E. 

In the 30 year critical storm event the drainage system will mostly surcharge 
meaning that the rate in which the water is meeting the proposed system is faster 
than the system is able to get rid of the water. 

In the 100 year + 40% simulation it is identified that the drainage system will mostly 
surcharge and flooded. 

Therefore in the +50% it is likely to see similar, if not a more severe outcome. 

Sediment buildup is proposed to be managed with a regular maintenance 
programme, however it is best practice to provide a passive system that is capable 
of managing the events simulated. 

For tidal flooding; the report identifies that the site is at high risk to flooding 
demonstrating that the 0.5% AEP + climate change (Higher central ) is to be at 
6.887mAOD and 7.113mAOD (upper end), where the site is approximately between 
6.37mAOD and 6.53mAOD. This shows that the site is susceptible to the increasing 
tide levels. The proposal for mitigation is to have a finished floor level of 7.25mAOD. 

Page 9 of 89

Page 177

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This would mean that in this event, the site floor will not flood, however the 
surrounding area would, rendering the site inaccessible. 

In Appendix E the drainage levels show that the proposed levels are from 
5.96mAOD to 5.268mAOD which then fall to Buccleuch Dock at an unknown level. 

It is therefore likely that the surface water drainage system is not viable when the 
rising tides are taken into account. 

In order to manage the surface water drainage, the application has adopted the use 
of Sustainable drainage systems to clean and hold back the water. It is good to see 
the important areas captured within the report, however there is a lot of potential 
space not being used. 

There is also no information on showing how the water will reach the basin's detailed 
within the drawings provided. 

The report mentions that the permeable paving under the car park will be swept 
regularly, but it would be good practice for a contingency measure be listed if the 
permeable paving becomes blocked and the surface water needs to run off. There is 
a drawing in the appendix that shows the water moving around the site in the storm 
events. This shows that the site can remain operational, however some of the 
parking will be lost and the solution is based on runoff into the Dock, which is then 
subject to the tide. 

Please can you provide; 

- any bore hole reports so that the depths of the strata can be determined. 

- levels of the drainage so that the outlet into the Dock can be determined 

- Downstream contributing area and drainage capacity 

- Updated assessment to allow for 50% rainfall exceedance for climate change 

- Mitigation measures for drainage system during tidal lock 

Conclusion: 

Local Highway Authority 

Further information is required to support the traffic assessment via the submission 
of a green travel plan and car parking strategy. More consideration is required to 
improve the safe access from local transport facilities to the site. 

Lead Local Flood Authority 

More information is required to remove the possibility of flooding, including but not 
limited to; 

Page 10 of 89

Page 178

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



downstream information, tidal lock assessment of 50% increase due to CC." 

09/06/2022  

Highways Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
 
"Thank you for your consultation on 29 April 2022 regarding the above Planning 
Application. Cumbria County Council as the Local Highway Authority (LHA) and 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and 
our findings are detailed below. 

Local Highway Authority response: 

It is with regret that I am recommending refusal on the grounds that insufficient 
information has been provided and further consideration is required to improve 
pedestrian and cycle routes to the site. 

Due to the existing issues with parking and the proposal that the majority of the 
students will be coming from BAE, where it has been calculated 71% of staff come to 
the area via a car, we have requested that a robust car parking strategy and green 
travel plan is required to better understand these figures and the means in which to 
accommodate the outcome. 
 
The local highway has pedestrian facilities including a footway along part of 
Buccleuch dock road which stops approximately 175m short of the entry to the site 
and in parts does not meet required standards due to lighting, extensive parking and 
missing footpath. There are opportunities to travel to the site by bicycle on the road 
network, with Buccleuch dock road being accessed from Michaelson road. the local 
cycling and walking infrastructure plan (LCWIP) identifies new cycling infrastructure 
(to be provided on highway) on Michaelson road, which is also identified as a priority 
walking route. Works to improve active transport on Michaelson road / bridge and 
Bridge Road (including a segregated cycleway) is currently being constructed 
(funded through active travel fund). Cycle route up to the site will need to be 
improved to suite the predicted heavy use. 
 
The closest bus stops to the site are 650m to the west of the proposed development 
on Michaelson road. The bus stops have shelters provided at stops on 
Michaelson road. 

Therefore, as mentioned, a robust car parking strategy and green travel plan is 
required and any under provision from the CDDG levels needs to have robust 
reasoning.  The inclusion of staff parking, blue-badge spaces, coach turning and the 
other measures associated with a green travel strategy should be included - electric 
charging points for EVs, high quality secure cycle parking, convenient, direct, safe 
and high quality walking and cycling routes to the public highway. 

Lead Local Flood Authority response: 

No information has been provided. 
 

Page 11 of 89

Page 179

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Conclusion: 

Further information is required to support the traffic assessment via the submission 
of a green travel plan and car parking strategy. More consideration is required to 
improve the safe access from local transport facilities to the site." 

04/05/2022  

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 

"Thank you for consulting us on the above application, which we received 29 April 
2022. 

The northern edge of the proposed development site extends into the edge of Flood 
Zone 2. The proposal is classed as ‘More Vulnerable’ development, deemed as 
appropriate in this flood zone. 

Environment Agency position 

We have no objection to the proposal as submitted". 

The planning application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 
produced by Curtins ref 079019-CUR-XX-XX-T-C-92001 Rev.P04 dated 5 January 
2022. 

We have reviewed the FRA in so far as it relates to our remit and we are satisfied 
that the development would be safe without exacerbating flood risk elsewhere if the 
proposed flood risk mitigation measures are implemented. The proposed 
development must proceed in strict accordance with this FRA and the mitigation 
measures identified as it will form part of any subsequent planning approval. Any 
proposed changes to the approved FRA and / or the mitigation measures identified 
will require the submission of a revised FRA". 
 

22/06/2022  

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) received 21.06.22 

"Thank you for consulting us on the above amended plans. 

Environment Agency position 

We have no objection to the proposal as submitted. 

We have reviewed the amended red line boundary for the site DAY-XX-00-DR-A-
0001 Rev C 27 May 2022. We are satisfied that our comments remain as per our 
previous response (Our ref NO/2022/114434/01 dated 4 May 2022)." 

 

Page 12 of 89

Page 180

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



03/05/2022  

Health and Safety Executive (Planning Advice Web App) 

Land Use Planning Consultation with Health and Safety Executive [Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 
2012, or Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2013] The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) is a statutory 
consultee for certain developments within the Consultation Distance of Major Hazard 
Sites/ pipelines. This consultation, which is for such a development and is within at 
least one Consultation Distance, has been considered using HSE's planning advice 
web app, based on the details input on behalf of Barrow-in-Furness District (B). 

HSE's Advice: Do Not Advise Against, consequently, HSE does not advise, on safety 
grounds, against the granting of planning permission in this case. 

Breakdown: 

Indoor Use By Public  :   Do Not Advise Against 

What is the total floor space of the development (that lies partly or wholly within a 
consultation distance)? 250 to 5000 square metres inclusive 

This advice report has been generated using information supplied by Pam Kayes at 
Barrow-in-Furness District (B) on 03 May 2022. 

Note that any changes in the information concerning this development would require 
it to be re-submitted." 

27/05/2022  

Natural England 

"Thank you for consulting Natural England on this application and apologies for the 
delay in our response. 

Natural England agree with the conclusion of the submitted Habitats Regulations 
Assessment that there will be no adverse effect on the European sites subject to the 
provision of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and the 
following mitigation for SPA/Ramsar impacts being secured: 

Any demolition works should take place outside of the breeding bird season (March 
to September).  If this is not possible then an ecologist should be present on site to 
check any roofs and suitable ledges for the presence of nests, eggs, and/or chicks 
prior to demolition commencing. 

It is recommended that a sensitive lighting scheme is implemented for this site to 
minimise disturbance to any nocturnal bird movement along the site boundaries." 

Page 13 of 89

Page 181

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

20/06/2022  

Natural England 

"Thank you for your consultation. 

Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and made comments to 
the authority in our letter dated 27 May 2022 (Ref. 390956). 

The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this amendment 
although we made no objection to the original proposal. 

The proposed amendments to the original application are unlikely to have 
significantly different impacts on the natural environment than the original proposal.  

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on 
the natural environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted 
again.  Before sending us the amended consultation, please assess whether the 
changes proposed will materially affect any of the advice we have previously 
offered.  If they are unlikely to do so, please do not re-consult us." 

13/05/2022  

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 

"I have consulted with the emergency planners within Barrow-in-Furness Borough 
Council, which is responsible for the preparation of the Devonshire Dock Complex 
(Barrow) off-site emergency plan required by the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations (REPPIR) 2019. They have 
provided adequate assurance that the proposed development can be 
accommodated within their off-site emergency plan arrangements.  

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the 
safety of the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development." 

30/05/2022  

United Utilities 

United Utilities wish to make the following comments regarding the proposal detailed 
above. 

 

 

Page 14 of 89

Page 182

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



DRAINAGE 

Following our review of the submitted Drainage Strategy, we can confirm the 
proposals are acceptable in principle to United Utilities and therefore should planning 
permission be granted we request the following condition is attached to any 
subsequent Decision Notice: 

The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in 
accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment 
and Drainage Strategy (ref 079019- CUR-XX-XX-T-C-92001, Revision P04, dated 
05/01/2022). For the avoidance of doubt no surface water will be permitted to 
drain directly or indirectly into the public sewer. Prior to occupation of the 
proposed development, the drainage schemes shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter for the lifetime of 
the development. 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an 
undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding. 

The applicant can discuss any of the above with Developer Engineer, Tom Bethell, 
by email at wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please note, United Utilities is not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to 
the local watercourse system. This is a matter for discussion with the Lead Local 
Flood Authority and / or the Environment Agency (if the watercourse is classified as 
main river). 

United Utilities Water Limited 

Registered in England & Wales No. 23 666 78  Registered Office: Haweswater 
House, Lingley Mere Business Park, Lingley Green Avenue, Great Sankey, 
Warrington, WA5 3L P 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United 
Utilities, their proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by our 
Developer Services team and must meet the requirements outlined in ‘Sewers for 
Adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards’. This is important as drainage design 
can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 

Acceptance of a drainage strategy does not infer that a detailed drainage design will 
meet the requirements for a successful adoption application. We strongly 
recommend that no construction commences until the detailed drainage design, has 
been assessed and accepted in writing by United Utilities. Any work carried out prior 
to the technical assessment being approved is done entirely at the developer’s own 
risk and could be subject to change. 

 

 

Page 15 of 89

Page 183

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can 
fail or become ineffective. As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have 
a duty to advise the Local Planning Authority of this potential risk to ensure the 
longevity of the surface water drainage system and the service it provides to people. 
We also wish to minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage system having a 
detrimental impact on the public sewer network should the two systems interact. We 
therefore recommend the Local Planning Authority include a condition in their 
Decision Notice regarding a management and maintenance regime for any 
sustainable drainage system that is included as part of the proposed development. 
You may find the condition below a useful example. 

Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum: 

a.   Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, 
or, 

management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 

b.   Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage 
scheme throughout its lifetime. 

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan. 

Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable 
drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the 
lifetime of the development. 

Please note United Utilities cannot provide comment on the management and 
maintenance of an asset that is owned by a third party management and 
maintenance company. We would not be involved in the discharge of the 
management and maintenance condition in these circumstances. 

WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICES 

If the applicant intends to receive water and/or wastewater services from United 
Utilities, they should visit our website or contact the Developer Services team for 
advice. This includes seeking confirmation of the required metering arrangements for 
the proposed development. 

If the proposed development site benefits from existing water and wastewater 
connections, the applicant should not assume that the arrangements will be suitable 
for the new proposal. 

Page 16 of 89

Page 184

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



In some circumstances we may require a compulsory meter is fitted. For detailed 
guidance on whether the development will require a compulsory meter please visit 
https://www.unitedutilities.com/my-account/your-bill/our-household-charges-
20212022/ and go to section 7.7 for compulsory metering. 

If reinforcement of the water network is required to meet potential demand, this could 
be a significant project and the design and construction period should be accounted 
for. 

To avoid any unnecessary costs and delays being incurred by the applicant or any 
subsequent developer, we strongly recommend the applicant seeks advice regarding 
water and wastewater services, and metering arrangements, at the earliest 
opportunity. Please see ‘Contacts’ section below. 

UNITED UTILITIES PROPERTY, ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

United Utilities will not allow building over or in close proximity to a water 
main. United Utilities may not allow building over or in close proximity to a 
public sewer. 

It is the applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship 
between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. 
Developer’s should investigate the existence and the precise location of water and 
wastewater pipelines as soon as possible as this could significantly impact the 
preferred site layout and/or diversion of the asset(s) may be required. Where United 
Utilities’ assets cross the proposed red line boundary, developers must contact our 
Developer Services team prior to commencing any works on site, including trial 
holes, groundworks or demolition. 

Unless there is specific provision within the title of the property or an associated 
easement, any necessary disconnection or diversion of assets to accommodate 
development, will be at the applicant/developer's expense. In some circumstances, 
usually related to the size and nature of the assets impacted by proposals, 
developers may discover the cost of diversion is prohibitive in the context of their 
development scheme. 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to United Utilities pipelines and 
apparatus must not be compromised either during or after construction and there 
should be no additional load bearing capacity on pipelines without prior agreement 
from United Utilities. This would include earth movement and the transport and 
position of construction equipment and vehicles. 

Consideration should also be applied to United Utilities assets which may be located 
outside the applicant’s red line boundary. Any construction activities in the vicinity of 
our assets must comply with our ‘Standard Conditions for Works Adjacent to 
Pipelines’ or national building standards. 

The applicant or developer should contact our Developer Services team for 
advice if their proposal is in the vicinity of water or wastewater pipelines and 
apparatus. It is their responsibility to ensure that United Utilities’ required 

Page 17 of 89

Page 185

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



access is provided within their layout and that our infrastructure is 
appropriately protected. The developer would be liable for the cost of any 
damage to United Utilities’ assets resulting from their activity. See ‘Contacts’ 
section below. 

CONTACTS 

Website 

For detailed guidance on water and wastewater services, including application forms 
and the opportunity to talk to the Developer Services team using the ‘Live Chat’ 
function, please visit: 

http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx 

Email 

For advice on water and wastewater services or to discuss proposals near to 
pipelines, email the 

Developer Services team as follows: 

Water mains and water supply, including metering - 
DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 

Public sewers and drainage - WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

Telephone - 0345 072 6067 

Property Searches (for asset maps): 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. For 
more information, or to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please 
visit https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/ 

Water and sewer records can be viewed for free at our Warrington Head Office by 
calling 0370 

751 0101. Appointments must be made in advance. Public sewer records can be 
viewed at local authority offices. Arrangements should be made directly with the local 
authority. 

The position of the underground apparatus shown on asset maps is approximate 
only and is given in accordance with the best information currently available. United 
Utilities Water will not accept liability for any loss or damage caused by the actual 
position being different from those shown on the map." 

 

 

Page 18 of 89

Page 186

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



29/04/2022  

Health and Safety Executive (Hazardous Substances Consents) 

"Thank you for your letter/email of below, seeking HSE's observations on planning 
application  B12/2022/0263 for land adjacent to BAE Systems SASK Buccleuch 
Dock Road Barrow in Furness – new university campus and associated works. 

HSE is a statutory consultee for certain developments within the consultation 
distance (CD) of major hazard sites and major accident hazard pipelines, and has 
provided planning authorities with access to HSEs Planning Advice WebApp 
https://pa.hsl.gov.uk 

I should therefore be grateful if you would arrange for HSEs Planning Advice 
WebApp to be used to consult HSE for advice on this application, which lies within 
the CD of Major Hazard site HSE Ref1821 Condensate Storage & Dist Facility , 
Ramsden Dock Rd, Barrow in Furness. 

Should you or your colleagues need any additional help in using the new WebApp to 
obtain HSE's advice on a proposed development, a central support service is 
available at lupenquiries@hse.gov.uk  or by telephoning on 01298218159. 

NB On 1 August 2021 HSE became a statutory consultee with regard to building 
safety (in particular to fire safety aspects) for planning applications that involve a 
relevant building.  

A relevant building is defined in the planning guidance at gov.uk as:   

• containing two or more dwellings or educational accommodation and 
• meeting the height condition of 18m or more in height, or 7 or more storeys 

There is further information on compliance with the Building Safety Bill at 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/fire-safety-and-high-rise-residential-buildings-from-1-
august-2021 . HSE’s team can be contacted by email via 
PlanningGatewayOne@hse.gov.uk” 

22/06/2022  

Health and Safety Executive (Planning Advice Web App) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19 of 89

Page 187

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application is located within the secured Buccleuch Dockyard area of BAE 
Systems operational land adjacent to the waterfront on Barrow Island. The site area 
where the university is proposed measures 2.76 hectares (6.82 acres) and  is 
currently occupied by a large portal framed BAE storage building which is to be 
partially demolished to facilitate the new build. To the east of it would remain some 
other BAE storage buildings and land,  and to the west the recently constructed BAE 
Submarine Academy for Skills and Knowledge (SASK)  building which would also be 
utilised for some university learning. The site is currently accessed via existing 
security gates off Michaelson Road and Buccleuch Dock Road.  

1.2 The surrounding area features a mix of other industrial elements associated with 
the shipyard including a number of large portal framed buildings and car parking. 
Residential areas are located to the south west (Dunoon/Dundee Street) and a pair 
of dwellings are located only around 11m from the site boundary, opposite the 
existing gate to this section of the yard (1/1a Buccleuch Dock Road, Cricket Field 
Cottages).To the end of Buccleuch Dock Road, beyond the cottages, the road 
becomes a track giving access to allotment gardens. Cavendish Park is located to 
the south west. 

1.3 In terms of constraints, the site borders areas identified as Flood Risk Zones 2 
and 3 as well as a variety of designated sites including the Morecambe Bay Special 
Protection Area (SPA); Morecambe Bay Special Area of Conservation (SAC); 
Morecambe Bay Ramsar site and the South Walney and Piel Channel Flats Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Barrow Island Conservation Area is to the south 
west and there are a number of listed buildings to the west and south west. 

Background 

1.4 The proposal is an element of the Barrow Learning Quarter (BLQ) which is a 
partnership between the University of Cumbria, Furness College, Barrow Borough 
Council, BAE systems and local businesses. The proposal is one of seven short-
listed priority projects which comprise the Brilliant Barrow Investment Plan. The  BLQ 
seeks to enhance progression into further education for people within the Borough 
and it aims to achieve three objectives which should have a transformative impact on 
people's outlook and the economic performance of the Borough. These objectives 
are:  

-To develop a workforce-focused and relevant higher education offer that prepares 
graduates for success in future employment. 

-To improve progression from secondary to higher education in a town where 
opportunities to go to university are well below those nationally. 

-To increase the higher education participation rate so it moves towards the England 
average improving the future prospects of individuals, especially young people 
growing up and living in Barrow. 

Page 20 of 89

Page 188

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



2.Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal is a full planning application for the construction of a new University 
of Cumbria Barrow Campus, creation of a new car park and external landscaping 
works. 

2.2 The proposed building would be located in the western part of the site on a 
slightly splayed north south axis,  positioned at a slight angle such that the main 
entrance would face north-west towards the waterfront. It takes the form of a two 
storey building with curved roof line, taking design cues from  the surface of a 
submarine with extensive glazing. Materials include a mixture of aluminium coated 
curtain walling, cladding and glazing panels. It will exhibit an industrial inspired 
material palette with a corten curved entrance; half and half glazing cladding 
elements are proposed to the primary façade offering panoramic views across the 
dock and allowing natural daylight to infiltrate its internal spaces. 

2.3 The proposed building will have a gross internal floor area of circa 2265sqm. 
Internally various adaptable teaching spaces are proposed including small capacity 
rooms, large seminar rooms , specialist teaching labs and interactive learning space. 
Externally landscaping is used to provide interesting social spaces and green 
infrastructure. 

2.4 Access to the proposed development site is via Buccleuch Dock Road, which 
forms a cul-de-sac leading to allotment gardens. The site is towards the end of this 
cul-de-sac. Buccleuch Dock Road connects to Michaelson Road, which links to 
Bridge Road / Island Road to the South and Barrow town centre to the North. Works 
are currently underway on Michaelson Road to encourage more sustainable forms of 
travel, with works including segregated cycleways, enhanced pedestrian crossings 
and junction improvements for both cyclists and pedestrians. This forms part of an 
£886k scheme to implement permanent active travel infrastructure in this area. 
There are existing bus stops close to the junction for Buccleuch Dock Road. 

2.5 A new car park is proposed to the east of the site, also with access from 
Buccleuch Dock Road; pedestrians and cyclists would also  access the site along 
Buccleuch Dock Road, although there is currently no cycle way or continuous 
footpath along this road. 48 car parking spaces and 2 accessible spaces are 
proposed (50 in total) for teaching staff and visitors only; no student car parking is 
proposed. A covered bike store is proposed to the north west of the site and a 
covered bin store to the south west, details of which are to be provided. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 1988/0956 Land south east of Cricket Field Cottages, Buccleuch Dock Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from allotment gardens to car and van hire area 
Appcond 15/12/1988 
 
3.1 45/1996/0281 The Old CPU Building Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Erection of a portable building as additional office accommodation to the north 
elevation Appcond 24/06/1996 
 

Page 21 of 89

Page 189

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



3.2 B06/2018/0340 Car Park at Former Hip Building Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Construction of a car park with mezzanine deck to provide a total 
of 841 spaces, vehicle access and egress to Buccleuch Dock Road and Michaelson 
Road, hard and soft landscaping, security fencing lighting, vehicle barriers and 
infrastructure and ancillary works. APPCOND 07/08/2018 
 
3.3 B06/2019/0406 Car Park at Former HIP Building, Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria Application for a minor material amendment following the grant 
of planning permission 2018/0340 (Construction of a car park with mezzanine deck 
to provide a total of 841 spaces, vehicle access and egress to Buccleuch Dock Road 
and Michaelson Road, hard and soft landscaping, security fencing lighting, vehicle 
barriers and infrastructure and ancillary works) to reduce exit on Buccleuch Dock 
Road to single lane,reduce mezzanine footprint at east, relocate up ramp,provide 
kiosk in NE corner,amend landscaping,add lighting columns, relocate access stairs 
and  re-configure  weld mesh panels, timber panels  and green screen at ground 
floor level. APPCOND 24/07/2019 
 
3.4 B06/2019/0434 Car Park at Former HIP Building, Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria Minor Material Amendment following grant of planning 
permission B04/2018/0340 (841 space car park with mezzanine deck) to provide 
revised surface water drainage details. APPCOND 19/07/2019 
 
3.5 B12/2015/0051 Proposed Carpark Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Creation of a 436 space private car park, new security fencing and 
pedestrian access gates, pedestrian crossing to Michaelson Road, hard and soft 
landscaping and security lighting. Appcond 30-APR-2015 
 
3.6 B12/2016/0062 Proposed Carpark Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Variation of condition number 2 (Carpark Layout) for planning permission 
B12/2015/0051 to allow for the increase of car parking space from 436 to 490 space 
car park. Appcond 11/04/2016 
 
3.7 B12/2016/0389 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria New training facility comprising part single storey 
teaching accommodation and part double storey workshop and ancillary 
accommodation with hard standing service yard area and amenity space. Demolition 
of existing buildings and structures on site. Appcond 18/08/2016 

3.8 B18/2012/0734 Cavendish Park Car Park Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Installation of 18no new 400W metal halide floodlights, including 
the replacement of 3 existing lighting columns to improve car park lighting facilities. 
Appcond 21-FEB-2013 
 
3.9 B18/2017/0198 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Provision of enclosure for compressed air system to 
north-west of centralised training facility building APPCOND 23/05/2017 

 

 

Page 22 of 89

Page 190

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
3.10 B18/2017/0328 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Application for variation of condition no. 3 of planning 
permission 2016/0389 to allow a variation of approved delivery hours. APPCOND 
16/08/2017 
 
3.11 B18/2017/0600 Building B30 BAE Systems Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Extensions to Building B30, refurbishment of the building including 
re-cladding, new and replacement windows and doors, two ventilation cowls and 
associated external and other works. APPCOND 14/11/2017 
 
3.12 B18/2018/0610 Land adjacent to Proposed Centralised Training Facility 
Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Amended gate position and road 
layout to Crossfields Gate (Gate 10) to allow for two way traffic and use by all vehicle 
types and new vehicle turning and waiting bay. New landscaped area for visual 
screening. APPCOND 06/02/2019 
 
3.13 B27/2013/0439 WIP Building (B40) BAE SYSTEMS Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Application for Prior Notification of proposed demolition 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 Schedule 
2 part 31 Appcond 31-JUL-2013 
 
3.14 B28/2016/0307 Proposed Carpark Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Application for approval of detail reserved by condition No. 2 (Phase 2 
Intrusive Investigation) and Condition No. 4 (Drainage Strategy) of Variation of 
condition number 2 (Carpark Layout) for planning permission 2016/0062 APPLETT 
04/08/2016 
 
3.15 B28/2016/0360 Various Locations BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 1AF Approval of details reserved by condition No. 4 (Details of all 
offsite highway works) relating to planning application B31/2016/0013 (Central Yard 
Complex) Appcond 13/07/2016 
 
3.16 B28/2016/0370 Various Locations BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 1AF Approval of details reserved by condition No. 4 (Details of all 
offsite highway works) relating to planning application B08/2015/0417 (Paint Facility) 
Appcond 15/06/2016 
 
3.17 B28/2016/0371 Various Locations BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 1AF Approval of details reserved by condition No. 4 (Details of all 
offsite highway works) relating to planning application B06/2015/0179 (Devonshire 
Dock Hall Extension) Appcond 15/06/2016 
 
3.18 B28/2016/0518 Proposed Carpark Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Approval of details reserved by condition no.7 (Landscape) for planning 
permision B12/2016/0062 (Variation of condition no. 2 of planning permission 
2015/0051, creation of a 436 space car park increasing to allow 490 car parking 
spaces) APPLETT 05/09/2016 

 

Page 23 of 89

Page 191

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
3.19 B28/2016/0920 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Approval of details reserved by condition No. 
(Construction environment method statement), No. 4 (Foul and Surface Water 
Drainage) and No. 10 (Soil Import Strategy) for planning permission B12/2016/0389 
_ New training facility comprising part single sto SPLIT 09/02/2017 
 
3.20 B28/2018/0062 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Approval of details reserved by condition No. 8 
(landscaping scheme) for planning permission B12/2016/0389 _ New training facility 
comprising part single storey teaching accommodation and part double storey 
workshop and ancillary accommodation with hard standing service yard area and 
amenity space. Demolition of existing buildings and structures on site. APPCOND 
02/03/2018 
 
3.21 B28/2019/0163 Car Park at Former HIP Building, Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
(Construction Traffic Management Plan) of planning permission 2018/0340 
Construction of a car park with mezzanine deck to provide a total of 841 spaces, 
vehicle access and egress to Buccleuch Dock Road and Michaelson Road, hard and 
soft landscaping, security fencing lighting, vehicle barriers and infrastructure and 
ancillary works. APPROVED 18/04/2019 
 
3.22 BSS/2014/0523 BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 
1AF Town & Country Planning under regulation 5 (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2011- Screening opinion for the Barrow Site 
Redevelopment Programme (BSRP) BSSNEA 17/11/2014 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The NPPF recognises that the planning system has three  overarching objectives 
in achieving sustainable development , which are interdependent and need to be 
pursued in mutually supportive ways:   an economic objective, a social objective and 
an  environmental objective. 

4.2 Chapter 6 of the Framework covers  building a strong, competitive economy. 
Paragraph 81 advises:  planning policies and decisions should help create the 
conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking 
into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for development.  

4.3 Chapter 8 covers promoting healthy and safe communities and Paragraph 92 
advises planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and 
safe places with street layouts that allow for easy pedestrian and cycle connections 
within and between neighbourhoods and which are  are safe and accessible through 
the use of attractive, well-designed, clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes 
and   support healthy lifestyles by encourage walking and cycling.  

Page 24 of 89

Page 192

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.4 Paragraph 96 advises to ensure faster delivery of  public service infrastructure 
such as further education colleges local planning authorities should also work 
proactively and positively with promoters, delivery partners and statutory bodies to 
plan for required facilities and resolve key planning issues before applications are 
submitted. Pre-application advice was given and key concerns identified early in the 
process to try and ensure a right first time application.  

4.5 Chapter 9 is particularly relevant to this application and relates to promoting 
sustainable transport. Paragraph 104 advises transport issues should be considered 
from the earliest stages of plan-making and development proposals, so that: 

a) the potential impacts of development on transport networks can be addressed; 

b) opportunities from existing or proposed transport infrastructure, and changing 
transport technology and usage, are realised – for example in relation to the scale, 
location or density of development that can be accommodated; 

c) opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use are identified 
and pursued; 

d) the environmental impacts of traffic and transport infrastructure can be identified, 
assessed and taken into account – including appropriate opportunities for avoiding 
and mitigating any adverse effects, and for net environmental gains; and 

e) patterns of movement, streets, parking and other transport considerations are 
integral to the design of schemes, and contribute to making high quality places. 

4.6 Paragraph 105 continues: the planning system should actively manage patterns 
of growth in support of these objectives. Significant development should be focused 
on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to 
travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to reduce 
congestion and emissions, and improve air quality and public health. However, 
opportunities to maximise sustainable transport solutions will vary between urban 
and rural areas, and this should be taken into account in both plan-making and 
decision-making.   

4.7 Paragraph 110 advises : in assessing sites that may be allocated for development 
in plans, or specific applications for development, it should be ensured that: 

a) appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be – or 
have been – taken up, given the type of development and its location; 

b) safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; 

c) the design of streets, parking areas, other transport elements and the content of 
associated standards reflects current national guidance, including the National 
Design Guide and the National Model Design Code ; and 

 

Page 25 of 89

Page 193

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



d) any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of 
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to 
an acceptable degree.  

Paragraph 111 advises development should only be prevented or refused on 
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or 
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 

4.8 Paragraph 112 advises within this context, applications for development should: 

a) give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and 
with neighbouring areas; and second – so far as possible – to facilitating access to 
high quality public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus 
or other public transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public 
transport use; 

b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all 
modes of transport; 

c) create places that are safe, secure and attractive – which minimise the scope for 
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street 
clutter, and respond to local character and design standards; 

d) allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency 
vehicles; and 

e) be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in 
safe, accessible and convenient locations.  

4.9 Paragraph 113 advises all developments that will generate significant amounts of 
movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application should be 
supported by a transport statement or transport assessment so that the likely 
impacts of the proposal can be assessed.   

4.10 Chapter 12 covers achieving well-designed places and shows the governments 
recent emphasis on design quality. Paragraph 126 notes that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work 
and helps make development acceptable to communities. Being clear about design 
expectations, and how these will be tested, is essential for achieving this. So too is 
effective engagement between applicants, communities, local planning authorities 
and other interests throughout the process. 

4.11 Paragraph 130 advocates that planning policies and decisions should ensure 
that developments: 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping;   

Page 26 of 89

Page 194

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience.  

4.12 Paragraph 131 encourages tree planting  in developments (such as parks and 
community orchards), that appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term 
maintenance of newly-planted trees, and that existing trees are retained wherever 
possible. 

4.13 Chapter 14 covers meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change. Paragraph 152 advises the planning system should support the transition to 
a low carbon future in a changing climate, taking full account of flood risk and coastal 
change. It should help to: shape places in ways that contribute to radical reductions 
in greenhouse gas emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve resilience; 
encourage the reuse of existing resources, including the conversion of existing 
buildings; and support renewable and low carbon energy and associated 
infrastructure.  

4.14 Paragraph 154 advises that new development should be planned for in ways 
that: 

a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change. 
When new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care 
should be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation 
measures, including through the planning of green infrastructure; and 

b) can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, 
orientation and design. Any local requirements for the sustainability of buildings 
should reflect the Government’s policy for national technical standards. 

4.15 Paragraph 180 states: when determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should apply the following principles: 

a) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided 
(through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately 
mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be 
refused; 

Page 27 of 89

Page 195

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



b) development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and 
which is likely to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination 
with other developments), should not normally be permitted. The only exception is 
where the benefits of the development in the location proposed clearly outweigh both 
its likely impact on the features of the site that make it of special scientific interest, 
and any broader impacts on the national network of Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest. 

4.16 Chapter 16 covers conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 
Paragraph 195 advises local planning authorities should identify and assess the 
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal 
(including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset). 

4.17 Paragraph 197 advises in determining applications, local planning authorities 
should take account of the desirability of new development making a positive 
contribution to local character and distinctiveness. 

Planning Policy 

4.18 Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, require that  applications are 
determined in accordance with the  Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.   

4.19 Other relevant material planning considerations are the  National Design Guide, 
Draft Green Infrastructure  SPD, Biodiversity and Development SPD, Affordable 
Housing and Developer Contributions SPD and the Cumbria Development Design 
Guide. 

4.20 The Barrow Borough Local Plan is the statutory development plan for the area 
and key policies are addressed below: 

4.21 Policy DS1 seeks to encourage sustainable development and commits the 
Council to work pro-actively with applicants to find positive solutions and to enable 
sustainable development to be approved. In this case your officers have been 
working with the applicants to try and overcome the issues around sustainable 
transport, safe and legible pedestrian and cycling routes, particularly the upgrading 
of Buccluech Dock Road, and drainage. 

4.22 Policy DS2 supports sustainable development subject to a series of criteria. Of 
particular relevance to this application is criteria (a): ensuring that proposed 
development incorporates green infrastructure designed and integrated to enable 
accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel purposes, 
particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education facilities. 

4.23 Policy DS5 seeks to encourage good design and the creation of attractive and 
vibrant places. It sets out a series of criteria to help in achieving this objective, 
including the need to: 

 

Page 28 of 89

Page 196

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private 
spaces that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating 
environment; 
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding 
areas, placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of 
the motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups 
and people with disabilities; 
 
4.24 Whilst the building itself is well designed and it responds well to the waterfront 
setting and incorporates green infrastructure, as originally submitted the proposals 
were less successful around the issue of accessibility  and we are working with the 
applicants to try and resolve this. 

4.25 Policy C3a covers water management and encourages water efficiency and 
SUDS as well as encouraging landscaping proposals to  contribute  towards 
reducing surface water discharge. The proposal includes SUDS drainage and a high 
quality landscaping scheme that can also contribute towards SUDS. Good practice 
techniques will contribute towards water efficiency once operational. 
 
4.26 Policy C4 covers contaminated and unstable land. A package of supporting 
information has been provided in relation to this and the Council's Public Protection 
Officer has recommended standard conditions in relation to further investigations 
and good practice. 

4.27 Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy-requires that new development must 
take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use of energy efficient 
methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment. Proposals will 
be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their layout and 
orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible. An energy statement has 
been submitted with the application and the proposal scores highly in this regard. 

4.28 Policy DS6 advises that landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the 
design process and should include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, 
lighting and public art where appropriate. A landscaping scheme and maintenance 
regime is required as part of a full planning application. A landscaping scheme has 
been submitted with the application which meets the requirements of this policy. 
Conditions are suggested around implementation and on-going maintenance. 

4.29 Policy HC1 relates to health and wellbeing. The policy acknowledges that this 
can be encouraged through encouraging travel by sustainable means including use 
of public transport walking and cycling; promoting the use of sustainable construction 
materials and methods where appropriate; encouraging use of renewable energy 
technologies where appropriate; and promoting inclusive design which meets the 
needs of all, including those with mobility challenges. Sustainable construction and 
energy efficiency measures are included in the proposals where possible however 
the original submission did not score highly in terms of encouraging walking and 
cycling. 

Page 29 of 89

Page 197

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.30 Policy HC15  covers education provision and acknowledges that proposals for 
the development of new educational facilities  will be supported where they are well 
related to the catchment that they will serve. The Policy advises where there is a 
need for a new educational site, the location should be close to the intended 
catchment in order to minimise travel in line with sustainable development principles. 
The proposed site is on the edge of the urban area and whilst it is somewhat isolated 
from the town centre, more so from the train station, there are logistical reasons for 
the chosen site being next to BAE's SASK facilities in terms of sharing some campus 
and training facilities, time-tabling and economies of scale to make the project a 
viable reality. On balance the proposal accords with this policy. The policy also 
requires the provision of on site recycling facilities  to minimise waste and this can be 
covered by condition. 

4.31 Policy HC4 covers access to buildings and open spaces and advocates that 
development proposals should make provision for easy, safe and inclusive access 
to, into, within and out of buildings, spaces and facilities. The layout and design of 
developments should meet the requirements of accessibility and inclusion for all 
potential users regardless of disability, age or gender. The building design is 
considerate of accessibility needs and disabled car parking spaces are provided next 
to the building. Criteria within the policy seek well designed pedestrian routes and 
consideration of the  location of any development proposal in relation to its potential 
users. Given the relative remoteness of the site and the current poor pedestrian 
access along Buccleuch Dock Road for all users your officers are working with the 
applicants to obtain suitable amended plans. Criteria c)    seeks accessibility to all 
transport modes, including walking and cycling, and provision of  adequate parking 
with the appropriate number of parking bays designated for cycles and motor 
vehicles, including specified disabled bays; amended plans are being discussed to 
improve walking and cycling. 
 
4.32 Policy HC5 relates to crime prevention and acknowledges that the design, layout 
and location of new development should contribute towards the creation of a safe 
and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of crime. As a 
secure industrial site the site is safe from intruders, although it is relatively isolated 
for pedestrians, particularly after dark. Your officers are working with the applicants 
to enhance safe walking routes, provide additional street lighting  and create clear 
and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that improve the perception of a safe public 
route. 
 
4.33 Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices, is particularly relevant to this application. 
The policy requires that development will be accessible by a range of sustainable 
transport options, including walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement 
with the Borough Council and the Local Highways Authority is encouraged and this 
material consideration was discussed frequently in pre-application 
meetings. Proposals are required to  provide direct and safe access to the existing 
footpath and cycle network including pedestrian links between developments and 
bus stops to maximise the opportunities for use of public transport to access green 
space, shopping, schools, health and other amenities. Where this would require the 
provision of links beyond the development site, such as provision of new footpaths 
and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service, an appropriate planning obligation 
will be negotiated between the planning authority and the applicant. As originally 

Page 30 of 89

Page 198

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



submitted the proposals did not meet the requirements of this policy and significant 
delays have arisen as amended plans have been negotiated; your officers are also 
discussing the best mechanism to secure the necessary improvements and this has 
involved the applicant in discussions with other third parties.  As a Brilliant Barrow 
initiative it is important that not only is there sustainable access to the site but that 
there is an identifiable synergie between other projects in order to maximise wider 
benefits for the Borough, particularly in terms of regeneration. 

4.34 The policy also requires that pedestrian and cycle routes within new 
developments must be suitably lit so as to create a safe, attractive and useable 
environment for all users and your officers have negotiated improved street lighting 
along the access route. 

4.35 The policy also requires that development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a 
proposed network of cycle routes should incorporate the appropriate section of route, 
and / or links to it. It was disappointing that the original submission did not include 
linkages to the recently provided  cycle route on Michaelson Road in order to 
maximise opportunities however it is hoped that  this can be resolved. 

4.36 Policy I4 also requires secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the 
Council’s adopted guidelines, in all new car parks, particularly those associated with  
educational developments. This is addressed in more detail below.  In addition the 
policy encourages the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating 
developments and these are incorporated in the proposals. 

The  policy also encourages the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within 
new development and EVCP's have been included. 

4.37 Policy I5 requires that development which generates a significant amount of 
movement will require the submission of a Travel Plan. As set out in national 
guidance the Travel Plan will demonstrate how: 

a) The needs of cyclists and pedestrians will be met and prioritised on site; 
 
b) The development will help to reduce the need to travel, particularly by private car; 
 
c) Relevant information about existing travel habits in the surrounding area has 
been assessed; 
 
d) Provision has been made for improved public transport services; 
 
e) The site will safely and conveniently connect to public rights of way and the wider 
green infrastructure network; 
 
f) The impact of the proposed development and the forecast level of trips by all 
modes of transport likely to be associated with the development, particularly of heavy 
goods vehicles accessing the site, has been minimised; and 
 
g) The movement of freight and goods by rail will be maximised where possible. 

Page 31 of 89

Page 199

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.38 An interim Travel Plan has been submitted with the application and following a 
request for more information an addendum has been provided. This is discussed in 
more detail below. 
 
4.39 Policy I6 relates to car parking and requires proposals for new developments  to 
provide evidence to demonstrate that adequate parking provision has been provided 
in consultation with the Local Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking 
standards in the “Parking Guidelines in Cumbria” SPG or any update to it. Our initial 
view was that inadequate car parking had been provided and insufficient justification 
for this approach. This is discussed in more detail below.  
 
4.40 Policy N3 acknowledges that the Council will support development which 
maintains, protects and enhances biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for 
new development should minimise impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in 
biodiversity where possible. A BNG report has been submitted with the application 
which demonstrates gains are achievable, with a 30 year management plan 
recommended. 

4.41 Policy P1 includes requirements for proposals within the “Port Area” on the Local 
Plan Proposals Map. However, the proposal site is outside of this area, which means 
that there are no specific current allocations on this site. Policy P1 does include 
requirements for development proposals on land in close proximity to the Port Area, 
stating that such proposals will be required to fully assess the potential impact on the 
Port, and where necessary provide mitigation as part of the new development to 
ensure that there is no unacceptable impact on the Port. The proposals do not 
compromise access to the Port since this is still maintained adjacent to the site. ABP 
have been consulted and have raised no objections. 

4.42 In terms of light pollution, Policy C7 seeks to  minimise light pollution and 
applications which propose new external lighting will be expected to demonstrate 
light pollution is minimised through a series of criteria assessments including 
assessing lighting impact on species, dark sky and water environments. This can be 
addressed through a CEMP and planning conditions. 

4.43 Policy EC3 advises proposals for new employment uses (classes B1, B2 and 
B8), or the extension of existing premises used for employment uses, will be 
approved subject to meeting a series of criteria. Whilst the proposal does not involve 
an extension of the existing employment use it will generate different employment on 
the site  through the need for lecturers and ancillary staff. The criteria are considered 
below: 

a)    The site is located within or directly adjoining the built up area of Barrow or 
Dalton, or within the development cordons identified in the housing chapter;  

The site is on the edge of the built up area. 

b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed 
comprehensively; 

Yes 

Page 32 of 89

Page 200

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



c)    The use will not unduly impact upon the residential amenities of those living 
nearby due to noise, disturbance from traffic, hours of operation, external storage, 
light pollution, vibration or airborne emissions including odours; 

Addressed elsewhere in this report. 

d)    Traffic generated by the proposal is capable of being satisfactorily 
accommodated within the highway network; 

Addressed elsewhere in this report. 

e)    A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) will be required for proposals for major sites 
(sites over 5,000 m²), schemes likely to generate in excess of 100 HGV movements 
daily, or any development that may impact on the Trunk Road network; 

Not applicable. 

f)    The site has been designed to promote user accessibility by walking, cycling and 
public transport;   

Addressed elsewhere in this report-improvements required. 

g)    The layout of the site has suitable space for landscaping, parking (including for 
large vehicles where appropriate), loading and unloading and any other operational 
requirements, and responds to natural drainage flow patterns;  

4.44 Proposals generally considered to be acceptable; car parking strategy to be 
required by condition. 

h)    Development must create safe and secure environments that minimise 
opportunities for crime and promote community safety;  

Addressed elsewhere in this report. 

i)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, 
waste management, flood risk and transport implications;  

Generally considered acceptable. 

j)    Adequate protection of groundwater from pollution from the storage, handling or 
use of chemicals can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority; especially on sites within the St. Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer as shown 
on the Proposals Map;  

4.45 No use of chemicals proposed; pollution safeguarding measures for watercourse 
can be required by condition. 

k)    The proposal does not use the best and most versatile agricultural land (grade 
3a and above) unless it is demonstrated that the loss is outweighed by other 
planning considerations; 

Page 33 of 89

Page 201

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Not applicable. 

l)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan; and 

4.46 Addressed above. 

m)    The proposal should make effective use of previously developed land where 
possible.  

The proposal re-uses a brownfield site. 

4.47 Policy I1 relates to  developer contributions and has recently been supplemented 
by the Council's Affordable Housing and Developer Contributions SPD. 

4.48 The Policy recognises that where  developments will create additional need for 
improvements / provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an 
existing deficiency, contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate 
enhancements / improvements are made, and appropriate management 
arrangements are in place. The policy advises that financial contributions may be 
sought towards transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any 
associated facilities). In this case Buccleuch Dock Road is an un-adopted road so 
any financial contribution might  relate to Council owned land or for cycle linkages 
from Michaelson Road. The policy also suggests where appropriate, the Council will 
permit developers to provide the necessary infrastructure themselves as part of their 
development proposals, rather than making financial contributions, subject to 
agreement with relevant consultees; this may be appropriate for some/all of the 
works on Buccleuch Dock Road. 

4.49 Policies HE1,2,3 and 4 seek to safeguard heritage assets and their setting. A 
heritage assessment has been submitted with the application and the proposals 
meet the requirements of the policies. 

4.50 Green infrastructure is required in accord with policy GI1 of the Local Plan 
and  the submitted plans incorporate  green infrastructure into the proposed scheme, 
including native trees, herbaceous planting and wetland planting. 

Barrow Port Area Action Plan 

4.51 Policy BP2. 

Supplementary Planning Documents 

4.52 The Biodiversity and Development SPD and the Draft Green Infrastructure SPD 
are material considerations as is the recently adopted developer contributions SPD. 

 

 

 

Page 34 of 89

Page 202

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Policy Section view 

4.53 The Council's Policy Section advise: "The principle of the development of an 
education facility on this site is accepted. To support the planning application, it is 
recommended that more information should be submitted showing the measures that 
will be implemented to ensure that the site can be more easily accessed by 
sustainable modes of travel along Buccleuch Dock Road, and that proposals are 
submitted which show that the site can be safely accessed on foot along the 175m of 
highway leading to the site entrance." 

Other relevant legislation 

4.54 In addition to the planning framework which is primarily set out in the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 provides specific protection for buildings and areas of special architectural 
or historic interest and their setting. Any decisions where listed buildings and their 
settings and conservation areas are a factor must address the statutory 
considerations of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
(in particular sections  66 and 72) as well as applying the relevant policies in the 
development plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. Whilst the site itself 
does not include any listed buildings and falls outside of the Barrow Island 
Conservation Area there is the potential to impact on the setting of heritage assets 
and so the relevant sections in the legislation are triggered. 

Pre-application advice 

4.55 Paragraph 39 onwards of the  NPPF places a strong emphasis on  engagement 
with the Planning Authority before an application is submitted.   Prior to the 
submission of this application, there were detailed  pre-application discussions 
between the applicants, agent and relevant officers from the Borough and County 
Council and a written response was issued in August 2021. Advice was given around 
detailed design and planning constraints and our key concern at that stage was that 
a site closer to the town centre would have offered significantly more benefits in 
terms of wider  town centre regeneration and footfall, accessibility and providing the 
University with a highly visible presence in the town. 

4.56 However, the applicants put forward logistical reasons for the chosen site  and 
the need to be next to the BAE SASK building to co-ordinate shared learning and the 
Brilliant Barrow bid progressed on this basis.  Given the site's relative isolation, key 
concerns principally related to the need to provide legible, safe and well designed 
pedestrian and cycle routes for staff and students, good linkages with the town 
centre, and a robust Green Travel Strategy in line with national government 
policy.  The Highway Authority required a robust car parking strategy and green 
travel plan and were clear that any under- provision in parking  from the CDDG 
levels needed to have robust reasoning.  The inclusion of staff parking, blue-badge 
spaces, coach turning and the other measures associated with a green travel 
strategy were required together with electric charging points for EVs, high quality 
secure cycle parking, and convenient, direct, safe and high quality walking and 
cycling routes to the public highway.  

Page 35 of 89

Page 203

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.57 Given that paragraph 96 of the NPPF states that to ensure faster delivery of 
other public service infrastructure such as further education colleges, local planning 
authorities should work proactively and positively with promoters, delivery partners 
and statutory bodies to plan for required facilities and resolve key planning issues 
before applications are submitted it was  anticipated that the concerns raised at pre-
application stage around accessibility would be resolved by the time of submission. 

Principle of the development 

4.58 The overarching aim of the proposal is to create a new campus development for 
the University of Cumbria within Barrow that will allow higher level education to be 
provided within the Borough; in turn this will improve educational qualifications for 
local residents, retain talented young people within the Borough and provide local 
employers with a well qualified workforce. 

4.59 Whilst it would be preferable for the proposal to be situated closer to Barrow 
town centre, the proposed use is not identified as a Main Town Centre Use in the 
NPPF, therefore no sequential assessment would be required. There are long-
standing proposals for a foot bridge linking Barrow Island to Marina Village, and if 
this is ever implemented it would better connect the site to the town centre. The 
proposed development would support objectives 1 and 6 of the Local Plan, regarding 
economic growth and access to the highest levels of education. 

4.60 The NPPF encourages planning decisions to create the conditions in which 
businesses can invest, expand and adapt, adding that ‘significant weight should be 
placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account 
both local business needs and wider opportunities for development’. In addition, 
planning decisions should aim to promote and support the development of under-
utilised land and buildings, especially if this would allow available sites to be used 
more effectively (Paragraph 120 of the NPPF, 2021). The site itself does not have 
any specific allocation within the Local Plan and the principle of the development of 
an education facility on this site is accepted subject to conformity with other relevant 
Local Plan policies and material considerations. 

Design, Layout and Impact on Visual amenity 

4.61 The design of the building takes cues from the form of a submarine and should 
result in a high quality and attractive contemporary design on the waterfront which 
will sit well with the adjacent SASK building. The massing, form and materials echo 
Barrow's industrial heritage and the Design and Access statement demonstrates 
considerable thought has been given to historical context and design evolution. 

4.62 However, the retention of the BAE  building on the site frontage  is a constraint 
which could negatively impact on views of the  university building  from the town 
quayside and re-siting this facility in the long-term would enhance the setting. 

 

 

Page 36 of 89

Page 204

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Access, car parking and sustainable travel, pedestrian and highway safety 

(i) Vehicular Access 

4.63 The proposed vehicular access to the site will be off Buccleuch Dock Road which 
is an un-adopted highway. It runs in a broadly east-west alignment along the 
southern boundary of the site and serves various employment buildings as well as 
residential properties to the east of Buccleuch Dock Road and the allotments 
beyond. The road is subject to a 20MPH speed limit initially, reducing to 5 AND 10 
MPH on approach to the Cavendish Park car park. 

4.64 Our understanding is that BAE operational traffic will principally access their 
facilities to the west and east of the proposed campus via Michaelson Road through 
the access known as Kings Gate and along the internal circulation road adjacent the 
waterfront. Whilst this has some potential to lead to noise and disturbance to 
students of the campus, particularly if construction vehicles pass in front of the 
northern boundary of the campus travelling to the land to the west, this has been 
accepted by the university and would not in itself be a reason for refusal. The 
vehicular access is acceptable but may need to be reviewed as student/staff 
numbers increase or if future shuttle bus proposals are to be developed and a 
turning head/drop off area is required. 

(ii)Pedestrian access 

4.65 This has proved to be a problem, and a cause of considerable delay. In terms of 
pedestrian access, the submission indicated the use of an unchanged Buccleuch 
Dock Road. In time there may be opportunities to open up a waterfront route from 
Michaelson Road Bridge but this cannot be secured as part of this planning 
application, and is dependent upon the future needs of BAe along the quayside. A 
notable omission, given the pre-application advice explained above and the 
governments strong emphasis that new development should prioritise pedestrians 
and cyclists over cars, was the lack of better provision for pedestrian links given the 
existing poor facilities. 

4.66 Images in the appendix to this report indicate the current route along Buccleuch 
Dock Road. On the northern side of the road the footpath stops 175m short of the 
entrance to the site. Towards the eastern end of Buccleuch Dock Road pedestrian 
safety is compromised as a result of on street car parking, poor visibility  and unsafe 
crossing points as well as conflict between pedestrians and traffic. The route 
features a mix of poor surfacing, making it virtually inaccessible for wheelchair 
users and would be difficult for those with limited mobility. Alongside this there is no 
dedicated cycling provision on Buccleuch Dock Road and it seemed a lost 
opportunity not to try and feed into the recent cycleway on Michaelson Road. 

4.67 The Highway Authority share our concerns and also recommended refusal on 
the grounds that insufficient information had been provided and further consideration 
was required to improve pedestrian and cycle routes to the site. They comment: "The 
local highway has pedestrian facilities including a footway along part of Buccleuch 
dock road which stops approximately 175m short of the entry to the site and in parts 
does not meet required standards due to lighting, extensive parking and missing 

Page 37 of 89

Page 205

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



footpath.  "  

4.68 The submitted proposals conflicted with national policy and policies EC3, DS2, 
DS5,HC1,HC4,I4,I5 and I6 of the Local Plan which seek to encourage sustainable 
travel and good accessibility. Your officers suggested a simple solution would be if 
the existing on-street car parking on the northern side of Buccleuch Dock Road was 
re-located to facilitate a continuous pavement to the site with urban design 
techniques such as differentiation in paving, street lighting and landscaping utilised 
to give a better perception of a safe and accessible public route. This needed the 
agreement of BAE, who are not the applicants and discussions are on-going; all 
parties seem keen to resolve this key constraint. 

(iii) Car parking 

4.69 A car park is shown to the southern boundary of the site to be accessed off 
Buccleuch Dock Road; 48 car parking spaces and 2 accessible spaces are proposed 
(50 in total) for teaching staff and visitors only; no student car parking is proposed. 
Officers have negotiated the inclusion of EV charging points here. The University 
advise that they do not allow student parking on site (other than in exceptional 
circumstances) in order to encourage students to use sustainable travel, although 
this could have the knock-on effect of dispersing car parking onto nearby streets if 
not managed carefully.  

4.70 The car parking provision is below the requirements in the County Highways 
Design Guide and this low provision is partly justified by the applicant on the basis 
that in initial years the majority of the students will be existing BAE staff who already 
use BAE car parks. Your officers have sought additional information to understand 
how student numbers are anticipated to grow over the next 10 years in order to try 
and  ensure that parking problems do not arise in the vicinity in the future. Submitted 
information suggests that there will be a modal shift between BAE and non BAE 
student numbers from 2026 onwards and the impact of this will need to be closely 
monitored, particularly since there is limited space within the site footprint to provide 
additional car parking and this would also result in a loss of biodiversity. In addition, 
the University would need the co-operation and commitment of third parties to 
provide any additional land for car parking within or close to the site and this cannot 
be guaranteed. 

4.71 The Highway Authority have also commented that: "Due to the existing issues 
with parking and the proposal that the majority of the students will be coming from 
BAE, where it has been calculated 71% of staff come to the area via a car, we have 
requested that a robust car parking strategy and green travel plan is required to 
better understand these figures and the means in which to accommodate the 
outcome." 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 89

Page 206

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.72 At our request the Transport Assessment has been updated which provides 
more information around anticipated student numbers and identifies public car parks 
within a 20 minute walk (although notably there are no public car parks on Barrow 
Island). However, the potential capacity of these car parks is not addressed, 
particularly as several are well used, and consideration has not given to any on-
going projects in the town that could have a cumulative impact on future parking 
demand. There will need to be further discussions as to the robustness of this study. 

4.73 The university are keen to develop a Green Travel Plan and there is now a 
stronger commitment to work with the Council should future car parking be 
required, to improve cycling and walking provision on Buccleuch Dock Road and to 
work with BAE in relation to potential shuttle buses and shared car parking provision 
should this be necessary. 

4.74 This is an important issue and a  concern which has also been raised by 
residents at the pre application engagement stage, and I have suggested that a car 
parking management strategy and management plan be required by condition and 
submitted for future approval; this should be viewed as a live document with future 
monitoring and a regular series of updates to take account of increasing student 
numbers, change in modal split and the effectiveness (or failings) of the Green 
Travel Plan. This should in theory enable any issues around car parking to be 
resolved before they become problems. In some ways future car parking demand 
involves crystal ball gazing to some extent at this stage since the success of the 
University, the courses to be provided and the demand outside the immediate 
Barrow area is as yet unknown. However, a car parking strategy and management 
plan should assist in mitigating any issues and allow the development to comply with 
Policy I6. 

(iv) cycle parking and provision 

4.75 A cycle parking shed is proposed (the design of which is yet to be agreed) which 
should accommodate 32 cycles with 2 electric bike charging points. The CCC Design 
Guide suggests a requirement for 91 cycle spaces (4 for staff and 87 for students) 
and so the suggested provision would only be sufficient for the first three academic 
years (up to 2026/27).This is disappointing since much of the argument for the 
under-provision of car parking relies on the Green Travel Plan and encouraging 
cycling and walking. Similarly to the car parking issue above,  it is suggested that a 
review document be submitted (incorporated within the car parking strategy and 
management plan) to address the future under-provision. There is sufficient space 
within the site to accommodate additional cycle parking. 

4.76 The Highway Authority are also keen to encourage better provision for cyclists 
and to ensure safe linkages to the recently constructed works on Michaelson Road, 
facilitated through the LCWIP. Discussions are on-going in relation to provision and 
the mechanism for facilitating the linkages in order to comply with national and Local 
Plan policy. It is anticipated that amended plans can be provided to include better 
provision for cyclists. 

 

Page 39 of 89

Page 207

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



(v) Sustainable travel 

4.77 The NPPF devotes several paragraphs to encouraging sustainable travel and 
Policy I4 of the Local Plan requires development to be accessible by a range of 
sustainable transport options, including walking, cycling and public transport. The 
NPPF, paragraph 104, states that transport issues should be considered early so 
that opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use are identified 
and pursued. Paragraph 105 states that significant development should be focused 
on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to 
travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. As explained above,  in 
accord with paragraph 110, discussions are on-going to ensure  opportunities to 
promote sustainable transport modes are taken up, given the type of development 
and its location; and that safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all 
users. 

4.78 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that development should be refused on 
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety. The 
local highway authority has stated that the highway only has pedestrian facilities 
including a footway along part of Buccleuch Dock Road which stops approximately 
175m short of the entry to the site. In parts it does not meet required standards due 
to lighting, extensive on street parking and missing footpath. This issue needs to be 
addressed in accordance with advice from the Local Highway Authority. 

4.79 The proposed development site entrance is approximately 540m from 
Michaelson Road [approximately 6 mins walk]. Whilst there are existing proposals to 
improve sustainable transport options along Michaelson Road, the original planning 
submission did not include any proposals. To comply with the NPPF and Policy I4 of 
the Local Plan, the applicants were advised, early in the process, that more 
information should be submitted showing the measures that will be implemented to 
ensure that the site can be more easily accessed by sustainable modes of travel 
along Buccleuch Dock Road. 

4.80 In terms of sustainable travel, the University have submitted an indicative Green 
Travel Plan and this has been updated at our request to include some stronger 
commitments. Like many aspirational documents the success of the strategy will only 
be understood if robust monitoring takes place and again a condition is 
recommended  to obtain a regular series of updates once the university is 
operational. The Highway Authority share our concerns and requested that "further 
information is required to support the traffic assessment via the submission of a 
green travel plan and car parking strategy. More consideration is required to improve 
the safe access from local transport facilities to the site." 

 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 89

Page 208

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.81 Whilst the initial submission did not comply with national and Local Plan policy all 
parties now seem more committed  to securing improvements in relation to 
pedestrian and cycle provision. This is in order to meet the requirements of 
government policy whilst also meeting aspirations in terms of good design and we 
are hopeful that this can be resolved quickly. However, the matter is further 
complicated by land ownership issues  in the area and potential for works outside of 
the red line and the need for a realistic mechanism to secure the provision in 
perpetuity. Discussions are continuing and we are awaiting amended plans form the 
agent but this has caused inevitable delays with the application. 

Encouraging linkages with town centre 

4.82 The Brilliant Barrow projects are a series of regeneration initiatives to improve 
environmental, educational, economic and social infrastructure within the Borough. It 
is important that the wider synergies between projects are realised and your officers 
have sought to improve linkages with the town centre and train station. This could be 
improved further through way finding and signage initiatives and the various partners 
are keen  to work together in the future to feed into other place shaping initiatives. 
The University have committed to providing signage and proposals will be developed 
at a later date and improving cycling and walking linkages with the town centre will 
help improve footfall. 

Impact on residential amenity 

4.83 The closest residential properties to the development are 1/1a Buccleuch Dock 
Road, Cricket Field Cottages. In terms of context they currently face onto the BAE 
site and building B29 which is a large portal framed industrial shed. Gate 10 is to the 
north west of them and there is fairly regular vehicular activity from deliveries and 
access to SASK. The front boundary is approximately 11m from the application site 
boundary and the building line of the dwellings around 17m. Impact during the 
construction/demolition phase can be mitigated to some extent through a 
construction management plan and construction and demolition management plan.  

4.84 Once operational any impact on daylight and sunlight and residential amenity is 
judged as negligible given the existing context of the setting adjacent a major 
industrial site. In some ways the outlook for residents could be improved since an 
industrial shed is partly replaced by a well designed contemporary building and there 
is to be an increase in landscaping along the southern boundary. No neighbour 
objections have been received. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 89

Page 209

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Impact on heritage assets and their setting 

4.85 A proportionate Heritage Impact Assessment has been submitted with the 
application and it identifies heritage assets within the vicinity of the site; 
namely Barrow Island Conservation Area to the south west and St George's 
Conservation Area to the north west (over the water) as well as listed buildings to the 
west and south west on Barrow Island and a cluster of listed buildings around the 
former Railwayman's around Salthouse Road. Whilst there will be a temporary 
negative impact on setting during the construction phase, once completed the 
proposal has the potential to have a positive impact, introducing an attractive 
contemporary building into the skyline. This accords with national and Local Plan 
policy and the requirements of the Act in relation to heritage assets (in particular 
Sections 66 and 72). 

Air quality 

4.86 An air quality assessment has been submitted with the application and suggests 
with the inclusion of mitigation measures residual impacts from construction works 
are considered to be not significant. The Council's public protection officer has raised 
no objection and a condition is recommended to secure the mitigation measures. 

Sustainability and energy efficiency 

4.87 The proposed development will incorporate passive energy techniques to reduce 
energy consumption and an interim energy statement has been submitted with the 
aim of reducing demand in energy to heat, ventilate and light the building. 
Renewable and low carbon energy techniques comprising PV panels and air to 
water source heat pumps are proposed. Electric vehicle charging points and cycle 
parking spaces also help contribute towards energy efficiency and all of these 
proposals support Policy C5. A final energy statement is to be submitted once more 
information is known. 

Landscaping 

4.88 Interesting and thoughtful landscape design proposals have been submitted with 
the application which include wetland planting and shingles which take cues from the 
coastal environment as well as social spaces and grassed areas. Native tree 
planting is proposed throughout the site alongside hedge planting along the southern 
and eastern boundaries and in between the car park area to the south and the 
existing BAE buildings. Hard landscaping includes an outdoor learning area, outdoor 
cafe seating area and covered learning space. This enhances the overall design and 
should allow future students to enjoy the waterfront setting, enhancing health and 
well-being. However, there is some potential for conflict since land to the west will be 
retained by BAE with vehicular access running along the front (northern) boundary of 
the site and this could result in some noise and disturbance, particularly if larger 
vehicles and skips are to utilise this area. 

 

 

Page 42 of 89

Page 210

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.89 A planning condition can cover implementation and management of the 
landscaping. 

Daylight and sunlight 

4.90 The building has been specifically designed such that natural daylight forms a 
key part of the environmental strategy with a specific focus on controlled "half and 
half" glazed cladding elements. 

4.91 Since the new building is to the north of the nearest residential property and the 
boundaries are over 17m apart there is unlikely to be any impact in terms of daylight 
and sunlight. The applicants daylight and sunlight assessments assess impact as 
negligible. 

Ecology and biodiversity 

4.92 The NPPF, paragraph 174, states that planning decisions should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment by providing net gains for 
biodiversity, and paragraph 180 makes reference to measurable net gains. Net gain 
is also referenced in Policy N3 of the Local Plan and the Council’s Biodiversity and 
Development SPD. Biodiversity Net Gain sits within the Environment Act, which 
requires development schemes to deliver 10% net gain to be maintained for a period 
of at least 30 years. 

4.93 A series of ecological reports have been submitted with the application including 
a phase one habitat survey, shadow HRA and BNG assessment. 

4.94 4.1 In terms of BNG and the requirements in the NPPF, Local Plan policy N3 and 
our biodiversity and development SPD a biodiversity net gain assessment has been 
submitted. Much of the land is currently hard standing with some poor quality scrub 
to the south of the site and overall existing biodiversity is poor. The proposals include 
several components of habitat creation including: 

-new SUDS on the northern part of the site boundary to permanently hold water 
which will provide a new aquatic habitat as well as marginal planting; 

-new native trees across the car park; 

-areas of shingle with coastal planting, grass and shrubs with high floristic diversity; 

-an area of grassland to the east of the site as a habitat of amenity value; 

-new hedgerows to the southern  and eastern boundaries and within the car park 
which will benefit birds, bats and terrestrial mammals, providing commuting rotes 
and foraging opportunities. 

4.95 Overall the report concludes there is a 258.48% gain in area habitats and a 
100% gain in linear habitats. It is recommended that a long term management plan 
(30 years) is required due to the complex nature of the habitats to be created and the 
high value they will provide and this can be required by planning condition. 

Page 43 of 89

Page 211

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

4.96 Natural England have suggested conditions re mitigation for breeding birds and 
limitations on the use of artificial lighting across the site to reduce impact on adjacent 
ecologically important land. 

HRA 

4.97 The application underwent screening in relation to the Habitats Regulations and 
potential impacts in relation to change in species distribution and water pollution 
during construction activities were screened in as a likely effect. 

4.98 This  triggered the submission of a  shadow HRA and winter bird survey; the 
HRA recommended the provision of a CEMP alongside a series of good practice 
mitigation measures and with these in place concluded  no likely significant effects. 
Natural England have been consulted and concur with this conclusion and 
recommend the inclusion of a CEMP condition. 

EIA screening 

4.99 A parallel application has been submitted for EIA screening and was covered by 
a delegated report. In summary, the proposal is not considered to be EIA 
development. 

Regeneration 

4.100 Whilst a site closer to the town centre would potentially have greater benefits in 
terms of wider regeneration, increased  footfall and bringing vacant buildings back 
into use, (as well as providing the university with a much more visible presence in 
the town), the proposal should contribute towards wider regeneration objectives of 
increasing local employment, providing a skilled workforce and supporting local 
employers. Information submitted with the application advises that during the 
construction phase (15 months) the development has the potential to facilitate the 
creation of 44 FTE construction jobs and 66 FTE jobs per annum (pro rata). Once 
constructed, the university building is estimated to provide 50 FTE jobs. In time some 
student accommodation is likely to be required and this too has the potential for 
wider regeneration benefits. Overall, the presence of a university campus within the 
town should have wider regeneration benefits for the borough in terms of 
employment and economic development, town centre footfall and the built 
environment. 

Flood risk and drainage 

4.100 A Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water Drainage Strategy have been 
submitted with the application.  

 

 

Page 44 of 89

Page 212

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

4.101 Whilst UU have raised no objections and suggest a standard drainage condition 
and the Environment Agency suggest a condition that the works are carried out 
strictly in accordance with the FRA, the LLFA have  recommend refusal of this 
application due to more information being required and that there is a potentially high 
risk to flooding due to the combined tidal lock and storm event. They suggest that it 
is likely that the surface water drainage system is not viable when the rising tides are 
taken into account.  

4.102 In addition, in order to manage the surface water drainage, the application has 
adopted the use of Sustainable drainage systems to clean and hold back the water. 
However, there is  no information  showing how the water will reach the basin's 
detailed within the drawings provided. 

4.103 The report mentions that the permeable paving under the car park will be swept 
regularly, but it would be good practice for a contingency measure be listed if the 
permeable paving becomes blocked and the surface water needs to run off. There is 
a drawing in the appendix that shows the water moving around the site in the storm 
events. This shows that the site can remain operational, however some of the 
parking will be lost and the solution is based on runoff into the Dock, which is then 
subject to the tide. The LLFA have requested more information  on  any bore hole 
reports so that the depths of the strata can be determined,  levels of the drainage so 
that the outlet into the Dock can be determined, downstream contributing area and 
drainage capacity, an updated assessment to allow for 50% rainfall exceedance for 
climate change and mitigation measures for drainage system during tidal lock. 

4.104 Discussions are continuing with the LLFA and subject to these issues being 
resolve suitable conditions can be applied. 

Contamination 

4.105 The Council's public protection officer has raised no objection to the proposals 
and recognises that intrusive investigation is required and  suggests standard 
conditions. 

UXO 

4.106 Due to the docks location, an unexploded ordnance report and risk assessment 
has been submitted with the application and mitigation measures suggested in 
Section 7 of that report which can be required by planning condition. 

Noise 

4.107 A noise assessment has not been submitted with the application. However, 
noise is likely during the demolition and construction phase rather than the 
operational phase and a CEMP/CMP can address noise and include appropriate 
mitigation. The Council's public protection officer has also suggested a standard 
condition. 

Page 45 of 89

Page 213

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

4.108 One other issue that has arisen elsewhere on the BAE estate recently is the 
potential need for piling due to ground conditions. It is recommended that a condition 
similar to that recently imposed on the SGF development is applied given the close 
proximity to residential property should piling subsequently be found to be 
necessary. 

Construction management 

4.109 One challenge for the developer is managing the construction process within a 
high security site which is also in close proximity to residential development. The 
current BAE site has security fencing and gated access and this provides some 
challenges in facilitating a university campus that is to be open to the public; 
however,  the University and BAE are working collaboratively to facilitate the 
development. 

4.110 The works involve an element of demolition works in that part of a BAE 
warehouse building (B29)is to be demolished and this, alongside construction noise, 
has the potential to cause disturbance to adjacent residents and species. In addition, 
Gate 10 on Buccleuch Dock Road (the current entrance to the site)has a restricted 
weight limit condition. It is recommended that a construction management plan and a 
construction traffic management plan are required by planning condition prior to 
commencement of works. This also  gives the developer some time to resolve any  
issues around security and access. 

Security, crime prevention and public safety 

4.111 The NPPF states that planning decisions should aim to achieve healthy, 
inclusive and safe places. Paragraph 97 states that planning policies and decisions 
should promote public safety and take into account wider security and defence 
requirements. Since the site is located within the overall BAE estate there is a high 
level of site security. Conversely however, this can sometimes result in the 
perception of an  intimidating approach along Buccleuch Dock Road  which could 
discourage  walking; government advice notes the propensity to walk is increased by 
the attractiveness of the environment and the applicants are keen to improve the 
design quality of the approach where this is within their control.   The agents are 
considering improved paving, lighting and planting to improve the approach and 
make it feel safe, appealing  and accessible for pedestrians and this should help in 
encouraging future staff and students. 

4.112 In terms of government advice, Buccleuch Dock Road may not currently have 
the perception of  a safe, well lit and accessible route for pedestrians or cyclists to 
get to the university campus.  It also  passes the derelict Cavendish Villas site which 
could add  to the sense  of unease. Overall, for some users it may not have the  feel 
of a pleasant, accessible and safe route for pedestrians and your officers have 
worked with the applicants to try and resolve this through improved pedestrian 
facilities, street lighting and landscape and urban design.  

Page 46 of 89

Page 214

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

Sustainable development objectives 

4.113 The NPPF makes it clear that achieving sustainable development means that 
the planning system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and 
need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken 
to secure net gains across each of the different objectives): 

a) an economic objective - to help build a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; 
and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure; 

b) a social objective - to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by 
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the 
needs of present and future generations; and by fostering well-designed, beautiful 
and safe places, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and 
future needs and support communities' health, social and cultural well-being; and 

c) an environmental objective - to protect and enhance our natural, built and historic 
environment; including making effective use of land, improving biodiversity, using 
natural resources prudently, minimising waste and pollution, and mitigating and 
adapting to climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy.  

4.114 In terms of the economic objective the proposals aim to help local businesses 
such as BAE attract and retain  graduate level workers, which will help address the 
demographic and higher levels skills shortage identified in the area. Attracting more 
students, learners and a skilled workforce should contribute to the local economy 
and potentially increase footfall within the town centre with a knock-on beneficial 
impact. In addition, the proposed development will create numerous direct and 
indirect jobs throughout the construction and operational  phases of the 
development. 

4.115 In terms of social benefits,  the new campus will deliver a modern university 
campus with outdoor learning space for ultimately over 1400 students by year 10. 
There is also the potential for the wider community and local groups to take 
advantage of the university facilities. 

4.116 In terms of environmental benefits, the application involves the redevelopment 
of a brownfield site on industrial land for educational use. It will result in a high 
quality development along the waterfront and could act as a catalyst for wider 
regeneration including on nearby sites such as Marina Village and Salthouse Mills. 
The proposal includes attractive landscaping and green infrastructure and 
biodiversity enhancements and alongside the SASK building contributes to high 
quality design along the waterfront. 

 

Page 47 of 89

Page 215

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



4.117 Energy efficiency, sustainable construction methods and the inclusion of 
EVCP's and cycle parking also help contribute towards the environmental objective. 

4.118 However, the relatively isolated location of the site from the town centre and 
train station and the poor local environment  mean that it is not particularly 
accessible in terms of walking and cycling and the challenge for the applicant is 
to produce a robust green travel plan that will encourage sustainable modes of 
transport. 

Community engagement 

4.119 The NPPF places increased emphasis on pre-application engagement and 
front-loading of applications and it encourages engagement with local communities 
before an application is submitted (NPPF P40). In this case a public exhibition was 
undertaken alongside a consultation website and direct mailing to circa 1500 
residents and businesses. Whilst no neighbour representations have been received 
as part of the application process, feedback from the earlier engagement suggests 
the proposal is welcomed and the benefits of the wider learning quarter proposals 
supported; the benefits for the town, businesses and youth employment are 
welcomed and the proposals are referred to as "transformational". Responses citing 
negative impact mostly related to concerns around car parking and current problems 
being experienced around the Dundee Street area. 

5. Conclusions and planning balance 

5.1 The creation of a university facility in the town will have immense social and 
economic benefits for the Borough and surrounding Furness area, and in principle it 
is welcomed. As a piece of inward investment, it will offer construction job and supply 
chain opportunities, and when complete it will help to retain and also attract young 
people; the economic and social benefits score highly in the planning balancing 
exercise.  The design is of a high standard and should result in a unique 
contemporary building along the waterfront  in contrast against the surrounding 
anonymous industrial sheds. Overall the proposals also score highly in terms of 
biodiversity gains, landscaping and SUDS. Impact on residential amenity should be 
modest given the existing industrial context and a construction management plan 
and construction traffic management plan should help mitigate any impact. Any 
adverse impact on heritage assets is considered to be only temporary and eventually 
impact should be beneficial. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 89

Page 216

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



5.2 However, the chosen site presents several challenges, especially in relation to its 
location in a position which currently displays poor pedestrian and cycling linkages 
with the town centre. Developing these linkages as part of the campus project is 
crucial and is a key requirement within national government guidance which stresses 
the need to prioritise pedestrians and cyclists before cars. It is in the university's 
interests to ensure safe routes for students and staff  and this will also benefit the 
adjacent SASC training facility run by BAE, as well as improving movement across 
the town centre as a whole.   The County Council are working on a  Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for Barrow  and updating the Barrow 
Transport Model to assist in assessing the transport impact of this type of strategic 
development and all parties are keen to work together to try and overcome this 
significant  constraint. There are also unresolved issues around drainage with an 
outstanding objection from the LLFA. Your officers, together with County Council 
colleagues, have tried to work with the applicants in a positive and proactive way to 
overcome constraints and find solutions and discussions are on-going. Another 
complication is the mechanism for securing any necessary pedestrian/cycling 
improvements given the varying land ownerships, specifically along and adjacent to 
Buccluech Dock Road. Currently, the lack of adequate cycling and walking provision 
is a significant negative in the planning balancing exercise. 

5.3 Overall, at this stage, the Planning Authority remains supportive of this 
opportunity to regenerate and enhance this part of Barrow Island, in accordance with 
local strategic policies, statutory obligations and national planning guidance. Your 
officers will continue to work with the applicants to try and overcome any constraints 
and concerns and to ensure that the wider benefits for the Borough are realised. The 
need to keep up momentum with the application as one of the Brilliant Barrow 
initiatives, and in light of the funding window, has led to tabling it at this committee, 
albeit there are still some outstanding key  issues, which are not insurmountable. 

5.4 In the meantime Members are requested to support the principle of the 
application delegating authority to the Head of DM to resolve issues around 
drainage, car parking and accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists, including 
formulating any planning conditions and  legal agreements  as required; topic 
headings for conditions are set out below. 

6.Recommendation 
 
Members agree to support the principle of the scheme subject to the satisfactory 
resolution of issues around drainage, car parking and accessibility for pedestrians 
and cyclists, but giving delegated authority to the Head of Development 
Management to determine the application including formulating any planning 
conditions and  legal agreements  as may be required. Should these issues not be 
suitably resolved then the application be reported back to Members with a further 
update. 

 Recommended condition topic headings 

1. standard duration limit 

2. Schedule of approved plans and documents 

Page 49 of 89

Page 217

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



3. CMP 

4.CTMP 

5. landscape and management 

6.boundary treatment 

7.drainage (UU/LLFA) 

8.new footway and cycle lane provision 

9.external lighting 

10.cycle storage facilities design details 

11.final green travel plan 

12.EVCP provision 

13.energy statement 

14.contamination/UXO (Env health conditions) 

15.no nesting sites for gulls on roof 

16.servicing statement 

17.works in accordance with FRA (EA) 

18.CEMP (Natural England) and HRA mitigation measures 

19. piling  

20. car parking and cycling strategy and management plan 

21. 30 year management plan re BNG 

22. Air quality mitigation measures 

23. Entrance gate weight limit 

24.on site re-cycling facilities 

25. Materials 

Informative-Emergency Planning and Fire Safety 

 
 

Page 50 of 89

Page 218

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Informative 
  

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

   

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting 
United Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

   

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 51 of 89

Page 219

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



1 : 1250
Location Plan1

50m10m

SCALE BAR 1:1250

BUCCLEUCH DOCK ROAD

GENERAL NOTES:

DAY Architectural Ltd accepts no responsibility for any costs, losses or claims whatsoever arising from these drawings, 
specifications and related documents unless there is full compliance with the Client or any unauthorised user of the following:

1 All boundaries, dimensions and levels are to be checked on site before construction and any discrepancies reported to the 
Architect / Designer.
2 Partial Service: Any discrepancies with site or other information is to be advised to the Architect / Designer and direction and / 
or approval is to be sought before the implementation of the detail.
3 Block and site plans are reproduced under license from the Ordnance Survey.
4 Do not scale this drawing.
5 For the purpose of coordination, all relevant parties must check this information prior to implementation and report any 
discrepancies to the Architect / Designer.

DAY Architectural Ltd.
Studio 1, Lancaster Buildings
77 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 
2BW

T: 0161 834 9703
W: www.day-architectural.com

Information contained on this drawing is the sole copyright of DAY Architectural Ltd. and is not to be reproduced without their permission.

CLIENT DRAWING

SCALE

PROJECT

FIRST ISSUED

CLIENT REF DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

ORIGIN VOLUME LEVEL TYPE NUMBER REVISIONROLE

PROJECT

SUITABILITY

1 : 1250 @ A1

D

Location Plan

1181-21 Barrow Campus

University of Cumbria, Barrow Campus

26.11.21

- MDB1181-21 DO

DAY XX XX DR A 0001

PLANNING

BUCCLEUCH DOCK 

DUNDEE STREET

D
U

N
O

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
IC

H
A

E
L

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

B
R

ID
G

E

BUCCLEUCH DOCK ROAD

M
IC

H
A

E
L

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

A5087 THE STRAND

N

REV DESCRIPTION DATE REV BY

A Issued for Planning 20.12.21 MDB

B Issued for Planning 18.03.22 MDB

C Red line Boundary amended 27.05.22 MDB

D Red Line Boundary Amended 26.08.22 MDB

2022/0263

Page 52 of 89

P
age 220

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



optimised environments ltd

EDINBURGH       2nd Floor  |  Quartermile Two  |  2 Lister Square  |  Edinburgh  |  EH3 9GL
t  0131 221 5920    w  optimisedenvironments.com

LONDON        Unit 6  |  36-42 New Inn Yard  |  Shoreditch  | London  |  EC2A 3EY
t  0203 984 4022    w  optimisedenvironments.com

MANCHESTER  86 Princess Street  |  Manchester  |  M1 6NG
t  0161 696 7550    w  optimisedenvironments.com

Optimised Environments Ltd.  Registered in Scotland SC359690.
Registered address: 2nd Floor  |  Quartermile Two  |  2 Lister Square  |  Edinburgh  |  EH3 9GL

Drawing Title

Scale: Date:

By: Status:

Checked: Approved:

Drawing Number Rev

Computer File:

Issue Revision Initial Date

NOTES

Client

Project

Scale Bar North

KEY PLAN

 

 

 

 

1. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other
drawings and specifications.

2. Do not scale off this drawing.  Written dimensions to be
taken only.

3. Any discrepancies found between this drawing and other
drawings and specifications in the construction
documents must be referred to the Landscape Architect
prior to work commencing.

4. This drawing must not be copied in whole or in part
without prior written consent of Optimised Environments
Ltd.

Key

Hardscape

Asphalt

Native tree mix

Herbaceous planting mix

Native Hedge mix

Existing security fencing with native hedge mix 
screening

Proposed 2m cycleway painted on both 
sides of the carriageway 

Exisiting paving

Softscape

1.

2.

3.

Native Wildflower Turf

Aggregate-faced concrete paving

Boulder Feature Elements

Furniture

New illuminated UoC Signage

3.

1.

2.

DAY Architects

A ABRemoved landscaping outside of RLB 25.08.22

Barrow

Landscape Colour Plan

Dock Road Update

L002 A

1:200@A1

EB Planning

25.08.22

AW AW

University of Cumbria

2022/0263

Page 53 of 89

P
age 221

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Level 0

0.0

Level 1

4000.0

Plant Deck Level

7000.0

Parapet Level

8500.0

5 445 2 7 6 6

Level 0

0.0

Level 1

4000.0

Plant Deck Level

7000.0

Parapet Level

8500.0

367

5 1

Level 0

0.0

Level 1

4000.0

Plant Deck Level

7000.0

Roller Shutter

4 1 5

Level 0

0.0

Level 1

4000.0

Plant Deck Level

7000.0

Parapet Level

8500.0

1 4 5 2

APPROX HEIGHT AND POSITION 
OF ADJACENT SASK BUILDING

1 8

BUILDING AMENDMENTS 
SUBJECT TO SEPARATE 
PLANNING APPLICATION

APPROX HEIGHT AND POSITION 
OF ADJACENT BAE BUILDING

Material Legend

01-Aluminium framed curtain walling system with clear glazed panel / variety of fixed panels- exact panel size and 

no. TBC

Frame Colour: (RAL to be confirmed)

Spandrel panel: (RAL to be confirmed)

02-Aluminium framed curtain walling system with semi transparent/frosted panels -- exact panel size and no. TBC

Frame Colour: (RAL to be confirmed)

03-Kalzip Deck Standing Seam Roof System
Colour: (RAL to be confirmed)

04-Equitone Stone Rainscreen Cladding -- exact panel size and no. TBC

Colour: (RAL to be confirmed )

05-Corten Cladding Panels -- exact panel size and no. TBC

06-Louvered Ventilation System - exact panel size and no. TBC

Colour: (RAL to be confirmed )

07-Aluminium framed Window -  openable where shown

Frame Colour: (RAL to be confirmed)
Spandrel panel: (RAL to be confirmed)

08- Aluminium framed curtain walling system with integrated PPC aluminium doorset 

Frame Colour: (RAL to be confirmed)
Spandrel panel: (RAL to be confirmed)

DAY Architectural Ltd.
Studio 1, Lancaster Buildings
77 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 
2BW

T: 0161 834 9703
W: www.day-architectural.com

Information contained on this drawing is the sole copyright of DAY Architectural Ltd. and is not to be reproduced without their permission.

CLIEN
T

DRAWIN
G

SCAL
E

CLIENT REFPROJEC
T

DRAWN BY

GENERAL NOTES:

DAY Architectural Ltd accepts no responsibility for any costs, losses or claims whatsoever arising from these drawings, 
specifications and related documents unless there is full compliance with the Client or any unauthorised user of the following:

1 All boundaries, dimensions and levels are to be checked on site before construction and any discrepancies reported to the 
Architect / Designer.
2 Partial Service: Any discrepancies with site or other information is to be advised to the Architect / Designer and direction and / 
or approval is to be sought before the implementation of the detail.
3 Block and site plans are reproduced under license from the Ordnance Survey.
4 Do not scale this drawing.
5 For the purpose of coordination, all relevant parties must check this information prior to implementation and report any 
discrepancies to the Architect / Designer.

CHECKED BY

ORIGIN VOLUME LEVEL TYPE NUMBER REVISIONROLE

PROJECT

FIRST ISSUED

SUITABILITY

C

As indicated @ A0

Proposed Elevations

- MDB1181-211181-21 Barrow Campus

University of Cumbria, Barrow Campus

MDB

DAY XX XX DR A 0103

16.06.21

PLANNING

1 : 100
ELEVATION 1

REV DESCRIPTION DATE REV BY

A Issued for Planning 20.12.22 MDB

B Issued for Planning 25.03.22 MDB

C Adjacent buildings added to Views 13.04.22 MDB

1 : 100
ELEVATION 2

1 : 100
ELEVATION 3

1 : 100
ELEVATION 4

0

SCALE 1:

543211

m100

1 : 500
Elevation Location Plan

1

2

34

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

N

2022/0263

Page 54 of 89

P
age 222

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



C
B

RL14.13

Track

C
B

C
B

F
H

R
IS
ER

LP

G
EO

1
G

EO
2

G
EO

2A

G
EO

3

G
EO

4

G
EO

1A

P
T

P
T

F
H

RO RO
G

EO
2

G
EO

2A

G
EO

1A

RO

SASK BUILDING

BUCCLEUCH DOCK ROAD

EXISTING ACCESS ROAD TO 
SITE

CAR PARKING SPACES: 48 X SPACES 
2 ACCESSIBLE SPACES
10% EV CHARGING SPACES

BAE STORAGE

BAE MASTERPLAN WORKS 
(INDICATIVE LAYOUT SHOWN)

SHELTERED BIKE STORAGE 
WITH 2NO POWER POINTS

DEMARCATION FENCE LINE 
LOCATION BETWEEN BAE 
SYSTEMS AND UOC 

NEW GABLE END POSITION 
OF EXISTING PARTIALLY 
DEMOLISHED BUILDING.
REFER TO SEPERATE 
DRAWINGS FOR 
INFORMATION

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

Site Plan Legend

Proposed landscaped grass area with new trees, exact species of tree & locations TBC. 
Refer to Op-En Landscape plan drawing ref L001 Rev A Landscape Colour Plan for 
details

Proposed new access/ service road for proposed car parking spaces. 

Proposed hardscaping perimeter path, bounded gravel-  Refer to Op-En Landscape 
plan drawing ref L001 Rev A Landscape Colour Plan for details

Proposed Fire Exits 

Proposed Entrance / Exit

Proposed area of works - BAE 
Masterplan Site

Proposed area of works -
Proposed Site

GENERAL NOTES:

DAY Architectural Ltd accepts no responsibility for any costs, losses or claims whatsoever arising from these drawings, 
specifications and related documents unless there is full compliance with the Client or any unauthorised user of the following:

1 All boundaries, dimensions and levels are to be checked on site before construction and any discrepancies reported to the 
Architect / Designer.
2 Partial Service: Any discrepancies with site or other information is to be advised to the Architect / Designer and direction and / 
or approval is to be sought before the implementation of the detail.
3 Block and site plans are reproduced under license from the Ordnance Survey.
4 Do not scale this drawing.
5 For the purpose of coordination, all relevant parties must check this information prior to implementation and report any 
discrepancies to the Architect / Designer.

DAY Architectural Ltd.
Studio 1, Lancaster Buildings
77 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 
2BW

T: 0161 834 9703
W: www.day-architectural.com

Information contained on this drawing is the sole copyright of DAY Architectural Ltd. and is not to be reproduced without their permission.

CLIENT DRAWING

SCALE

PROJECT

FIRST ISSUED

CLIENT REF DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

ORIGIN VOLUME LEVEL TYPE NUMBER REVISIONROLE

PROJECT

SUITABILITY

As indicated @ A1

D

Proposed Site Plan

1181-21 Barrow Campus

University of Cumbria, Barrow Campus

11/25/21

- MDB1181-21 DO

DAY XX 00 DR A 0003

PLANNING

1 : 250
Proposed Site Plan1

N

REV DESCRIPTION DATE REV BY

A Issued for Planning 20.12.21 MDB

B Issued for Planning 18.03.22 MDB

C Red line Boundary amended 27.05.22 MDB

D EV Parking Noted 17.08.22 MDB

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m250

2022/0263

Page 55 of 89

P
age 223

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 56 of 89

P
age 224

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 57 of 89

P
age 225

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 58 of 89

P
age 226

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 59 of 89

P
age 227

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 60 of 89

P
age 228

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 61 of 89

P
age 229

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 62 of 89

P
age 230

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 63 of 89

P
age 231

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 64 of 89

P
age 232

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 65 of 89

P
age 233

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 66 of 89

P
age 234

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 67 of 89

P
age 235

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



2022/0263

Page 68 of 89

P
age 236

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Buccleuch Dock Road 

Page 69 of 89

Page 237

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
Appendices of Policies 

 
 
Note to Members 

 
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 
agenda today. 

 
 
 
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 

 
 
Policy C3a - Water management 
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following 
measures: 

 
 
a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined 
by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed 
appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue 
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources. 

 
 
b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water. 
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and 
contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage 
Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface 
water should be discharged in the following order of priority: 

 
 
i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system. 
ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse. 
iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another 
drainage system. 
iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer. 

 
 
Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence 
demonstrating why alternative options are not available. 

 
 
c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate 
maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes. 

 
 
d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a 
wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases, 
between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction. 

 
 
e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current 
natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked. 

 
 Page 70 of 89

Page 238

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water 
discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable 
drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include 
clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations 
on rates of discharge. 

 
 
g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site 
can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft 
landscaping such as permeable surfaces. 

 
 
h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface  
water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be 
investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A 
discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment 
Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority. 

 
 
The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be 
supported, subject to the criteria above. 

 
 
Policy C4 - Contaminated and Unstable Land 
Contaminated Land 

 
 
On land known to be or suspected of being contaminated, or where development may 
result in the release of contaminants from adjoining land, development will only be 
permitted where: 

 
 
a) It can be demonstrated that there is no significant harm, or risk of significant harm, to 
health and wellbeing and the environment, including pollution of any watercourse or 
controlled waters; and 

 
 
b) Any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard users or occupiers of the 
site or neighbouring land, and that the environment and any buildings or services during 
development are protected from contamination. 

 
 
All investigations should be carried out in accordance with the advice set out in 
'Development of Potentially Contaminated Land and Sensitive End Uses - An Essential 
Guide for Developers' or any subsequent update of this guidance. 

 
 
Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to the presence of 
contamination (i.e. residential) the planning application must be supported by an 
appropriate assessment of on site contamination including proposals for remediation in 
accordance with the above mentioned document. 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 71 of 89

Page 239

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
Unstable Land 

 
 
On land known or suspected to be unstable, development will only be permitted where it 
can be demonstrated that there is no significant risk of harm to health and wellbeing and 
the environment, and that any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard 
users or occupiers of the site or neighbouring land. 

 
 
Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to land instability, the planning  
application must be supported by a risk assessment report that demonstrates that 
adequate and environmentally acceptable mitigation measures are in place. 

 
 
Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy 
New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use 
of energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment. 
Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their 
layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible. 

 
 
All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production 
equipment, sources of renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for 
renewable, low carbon or decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and 
location of the development provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6. 

 
 
Policy C7 - Light Pollution 
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution and applications which propose new 
external lighting will be expected to demonstrate each of the following: 

 
 
a)    The proposed artificial light has no adverse impact on the locality or measures will 
be taken to avoid, and where appropriate mitigate, any negative impacts of the effects of 
new lighting on local amenity resulting from the development; 

 
 
b)    The proposal has no significant impact on a protected site or species e.g. located 
on, or adjacent to, a designated European site or where there are designated European 
protected species that may be affected; 

 
 
c)    The proposal is not in or near a protected area of dark sky or an intrinsically dark 
landscape where it may be desirable to minimise new light sources; and 

 
 
d)    The proposal has no impact on wildlife (e.g. white or ultraviolet light) when being 
proposed close to sensitive wildlife receptors or areas, including where the light shines 
on water. 

 
 
Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible. 

Page 72 of 89

Page 240

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking  
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 
environmental gains for the Borough. 

 
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

 
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 

 
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

 
 
 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 

 
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 
facilities; 

 
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 

 
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 
infrastructure; 

 
 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,

Page 73 of 89

Page 241

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 

 
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

 
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

 
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 
environmental assets; 

 
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 

 
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 

 
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 

 
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 

 
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 

 
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 
Plan objectives by alternative means. 

 
 
Policy DS5 - Design 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:

Page 74 of 89

Page 242

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 
Documents; 

 
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 

 
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 

 
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 

 
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

 
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 
structured building layout; 

 
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 

 
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 
sourced wherever possible; 

 
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 

 
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 
and public safety; 

 
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 

 
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities; 

 
 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;

Page 75 of 89

Page 243

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
 
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 

 
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 
provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
 
Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should 
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where 
appropriate. 

 
 
A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full 
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a 
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development 
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit 
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the 
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place. 

 
 
All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be 
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees, 
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should 
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent 
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important 
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses. 

 
 
Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive 
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment. 

 
 
In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate 
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use 
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate 
run off. 

 
 
Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning 
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Page 76 of 89

Page 244

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
Policy EC3 - Managing Development of Employment Land 
Proposals for new employment uses (classes B1, B2 and B8), or the extension of 
existing premises used for employment uses, will be approved subject to meeting all of 
the following criteria: 

 
 
a)    The site is located within or directly adjoining the built up area of Barrow or Dalton, 
or within the development cordons identified in the housing chapter; 

 
 
b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 

 
 
c)    The use will not unduly impact upon the residential amenities of those living nearby 
due to noise, disturbance from traffic, hours of operation, external storage, light 
pollution, vibration or airborne emissions including odours; 

 
 
d)    Traffic generated by the proposal is capable of being satisfactorily accommodated 
within the highway network; 

 
 
e)    A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) will be required for proposals for major sites 
(sites over 5,000 m2), schemes likely to generate in excess of 100 HGV movements 
daily, or any development that may impact on the Trunk Road network; 

 
 
f)    The site has been designed to promote user accessibility by walking, cycling and 
public transport; 

 
 
g)    The layout of the site has suitable space for landscaping, parking (including for 
large vehicles where appropriate), loading and unloading and any other operational 
requirements, and responds to natural drainage flow patterns; 

 
 
h)    Development must create safe and secure environments that minimise 
opportunities for crime and promote community safety; 

 
 
i)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, waste 
management, flood risk and transport implications; 

 
 
j)    Adequate protection of groundwater from pollution from the storage, handling or use 
of chemicals can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority; 
especially on sites within the St. Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer as shown on the 
Proposals Map; 

 
 
k)    The proposal does not use the best and most versatile agricultural land (grade 3a

Page 77 of 89

Page 245

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
and above) unless it is demonstrated that the loss is outweighed by other planning 
considerations; 

l)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan; and 

m)    The proposal should make effective use of previously developed land where 
possible. 

 
 
Trade counters and retailing from employment premises will be restricted to those which 
are ancillary for the main operation of the B1/B2/B8 business. 

 
 
Where the development cordon directly adjoins a neighbouring Local Planning Authority 
(LPA), the adjoining LPA's planning policies will apply on land within their boundary. 

 
 
Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy 
SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation, 
enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain, 
enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue 
spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its 
delivery. 

 
 
The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary 
sector, developers and utility providers to: 

 
 
(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of 
the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a 
network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally 
distinctive place making. 

 
 
(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development 
and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional 
layouts. 

 
 
(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic, 
leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage 
improved health, fitness and well-being.

Page 78 of 89

Page 246

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
 
 
(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play 
areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 

 
 
(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well- 
connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist 
undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature; 

 
 
(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable 
urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding 
and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and 

 
 
(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture 

 
 
Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing 
The Council will encourage development which promotes health and wellbeing by: 

 
 
a) Providing access to a range of types of housing in sustainable locations; 

 
 
b) Encouraging travel by sustainable means including use of public transport walking 
and cycling; 

 
 
c) Promoting access to and use of open space; 

 
 
d) Promoting the use of sustainable construction materials and methods where 
appropriate; 

 
 
e) Protecting the Borough's natural and heritage assets; 

 
 
f) Supporting a range of sport, recreation and leisure pursuits; 

 
 
g) Supporting health promotion: Including smoking cessation, healthy eating and 
breastfeeding campaigns; 

 
 
h) Encouraging reuse of existing buildings for health uses where appropriate;

Page 79 of 89

Page 247

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
i) Encouraging use of renewable energy technologies where appropriate; and 

 
 
j) Promoting inclusive design which meets the needs of all, including those with mobility 
challenges. 

 
 
Policy HC15 - Education Provision 
Proposals for the development of new educational facilities as well as for the expansion, 
alteration and improvement of existing educational facilities will be supported where they 
are well related to the catchment that they will serve. 

 
 
Proposals for the development of education facilities should be located within existing 
education sites where possible. Where there is a need for a new educational site, the 
location should be close to the intended catchment in order to minimise travel in line with 
sustainable development principles. 

 
 
Specifically in relation to primary and secondary school provision, Barrow Borough 
Council will continue to work with the Education Authority to identify what new demand 
will be generated from development as well as helping to identify suitable new education 
sites should this be required. 

 
 
To assist in the delivery of additional school places, where required, to meet the needs 
of development, contributions will be sought, using a legal agreement with the 
appropriate Authority. 

 
 
The provision of on site recycling facilities is encouraged to minimise waste 

 
 
Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open spaces 
1)    Development proposals should make provision for easy, safe and inclusive access 
to, into, within and out of buildings, spaces and facilities. The layout and design of 
developments should meet the requirements of accessibility and inclusion for all 
potential users regardless of disability, age or gender. At the design stage consideration 
should be given to the effects of the proposal on the character and appearance of 
heritage assets and their settings, where applicable. 

 
 
The Council will have regard to the following criteria when assessing development 
proposals:

Page 80 of 89

Page 248

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
a)    The design of entrances and exits and ease of movement through and between 
buildings, street furniture, open spaces and pedestrian routes; 

 
 
b)    The location of any development proposal in relation to its potential users; 

 
 
c)    Accessibility to all transport modes, including walking and cycling, and provision of 
adequate parking with the appropriate number of parking bays designated for cycles and 
motor vehicles, including specified disabled bays; 

 
 
d)    Provision of on-site facilities such as public toilets and appropriate signage. 

 
 
 
2) Additionally, where there is a requirement to submit a Design and Access Statement 
as part of a planning application it should: 

 
 
 
a)    Demonstrate the approach to inclusive design; and 

 
 
b)    Acknowledge compliance with Part M of the Building Regulations (Access to and 
use of buildings) and refer to BS8300:2009 (British Standards - Design of buildings and 
their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people - Code of practice) where 
appropriate. 

 
Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention 
The design, layout and location of new development should contribute towards the 
creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of 
crime. 

 
 
Developers should: 

 
a)    Ensure the design, landscaping or any feature does not create isolated or secluded 
areas; 

 
b)    Demonstrate the design, layout, screening/landscaping enables a natural 
surveillance of the surrounding area and promotes neighbourliness; 

 
 
c)    Incorporate adequate lighting and security measures where appropriate e.g. 
communal and parking areas, taking into account the impact on light pollution, the 
natural environment and residential amenity; 

 
 
d)    Design layouts to promote ownership by residents and encourage use of communal 
areas 

 
 
e)    Create clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that prevent unobserved 
access. 

 
 Page 81 of 89

Page 249

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting 
The Council will, through planning decisions and in fulfilling its wider functions, 
proactively manage and work with partners to protect and enhance the character, 
appearance, archaeological and historic value and significance of the Borough's 
designated and undesignated heritage assets and their setting. 

 
 
Opportunities will also be pursued, to aid the promotion, understanding and 
interpretation of both heritage and cultural assets, as a means of maximising wider 
public benefits and in reinforcing Barrow's distinct identity. 

 
 
Key elements which contribute to the Borough's identity, and which will therefore be a 
priority for safeguarding and enhancing into the future, include: 

 
 
1. The Furness Abbey Scheduled Ancient Monument and its setting; 

 
 
2. 14th Century castles such Piel Castle and Dalton Castle and key religious sites and 
their setting; 

 
 
3. Barrow Town Hall, Ramsden Square and Schneider Square and associated statues 
as well as the streets and spaces which interconnect and provide setting for these 
assets; 

 
 
4. Wide, Victorian, tree-lined routes into and around Barrow such as Abbey Road and 
Hartington Street and the grid-iron pattern of areas of terraced housing in and around  
Barrow town centre; 

 
 
5. Remnants of the Borough's industrial heritage including sandstone workshop 
buildings, the imposing former worker's tenement blocks on Barrow Island, the slag 
bank, former iron workings and neighbourhoods of older traditional housing. 

 
 
6. Coastal features including Jubilee Bridge, Roa Island jetty, pill boxes, Walney and 
Rampside lighthouses and Cavendish Dock; 

 
 
7. Barrow Park, including the cenotaph and bandstand; 

 
 
8. Conservation areas and Listed Buildings across the Borough; 

 
 
9. Key cultural assets encompassing parklands, woodland, landscapes, coastlines, 
museums, libraries, art galleries, public art, local food and drink and local customs and 
traditions. 

 
 
As well as fulfilling its statutory obligations, the Council will: 

 
 
a) Seek to identify, protect and enhance local heritage assets; 

 
 
 

Page 82 of 89

Page 250

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



b) Promote heritage-led regeneration including in relation to development opportunities; 
 
 
c) Produce conservation area appraisals and management plans; 

 
 
d) Develop a positive strategy to safeguard the future of any heritage assets that are 
considered to be "at risk"; 

 
 
e) Adopt a proactive approach to utilising development opportunities to increase the 
promotion and interpretation of the Borough's rich archaeological wealth; and 

 
 
f) Develop a positive heritage strategy across the Borough. 

 
 
Policy HE2 - Information required for proposals involving historic assets 
When determining proposals involving heritage assets, or involving sites where there 
are reasonable grounds for the potential of unknown assets of archaeological interest to 
be, the following information shall be submitted by the applicant as part of the 
application:  

 
a) An assessment of the asset's significance including any contribution made by its 
setting, and an assessment of the potential impact of the proposal on that significance, 
using appropriate expertise. The level of information required will be proportionate to the 
assets significance and to the scale of the impact of the proposal and may require, 
where necessary, a desk based assessment and a field evaluation prior to the 
determination of the proposal; and 

 
 
b) A full programme of work together with proposals to mitigate any adverse impact of 
the proposed development. Where appropriate, work will be implemented through 
measures secured by planning condition(s) or through a legal agreement. 

 
 
The Council has prepared a Guidance Document setting out when a Statement of 
Significance is required to accompany heritage applications which contains advice on its 
format and content. 

 
 
Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 
Proposals for works to listed buildings, including alterations, extensions or change of 
use and development affecting setting should not cause unacceptable harm to its 
significance, including those elements which contribute to their special architectural or 
historic interest, and setting. Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their 
significance will be supported. 

 
 
Substantial harm to, or loss of, a Grade II listed building should be exceptional. 
Substantial harm to, or loss of, Grade I and II* listed buildings should be wholly 
exceptional. 
 

 
 

Page 83 of 89

Page 251

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building including to its 
setting, will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is 
necessary to achieve substantial benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the 
following apply: 

 
 
a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; 

 
 
b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term 
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; 

 
 
c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable or public 
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 

 
 
d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.  

 
 
Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance 
of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighted against the public benefits 
of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 

 
Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be permitted 
where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area. Proposals for 
all new development, including alterations and extensions to buildings and their re-use, 
must be sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any replacement feature 
should match the original where it makes a positive contribution to the Conservation 
Area and its setting. 

 
 
Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area Appraisal or 
Management Plan. In particular it should respect all of the following: 

 
 
a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations by having due 
regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure, detailing and use 
of traditional materials; 

 
 
b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, trees, walls and 
surfacing; 

 
 
c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and 

d) Significant views into or out of the Areas. 

Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space which makes a 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and its 
setting. 

 
 

Page 84 of 89

Page 252

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any opportunities for new 
development to enhance or better reveal their significance. 

 
 
Policy I1 - Developer Contributions 
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is 
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The  
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of 
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as 
the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery. 

 
 
All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where 
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements / 
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency, 
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements / 
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place. 
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of 
development. 

 
 
The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions 
towards include, but are not limited to: 

 
 
- Utilities and waste; 

 
 
- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures; 

 
 
- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated 
facilities); 

 
 
- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage 
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.); 

 
 
- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments, 
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally 
sensitive areas); and 

 
 
- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions. 

 
 
 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust 
evidence where applicable. 

 
 
Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary 
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making 
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.

Page 85 of 89

Page 253

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices 
Development will be accessible by a range of sustainable transport options, including 
walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement with the Borough Council and 
the Local Highways Authority is encouraged. Development likely to generate significant 
levels of transport within isolated and poorly accessible areas will be resisted unless a 
clear environmental, social or economic need can be demonstrated. 

 
 
Proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle 
network including pedestrian links between developments and bus stops to maximise 
use of public transport to access green space, shopping, schools, health and other 
amenities. Where this would require the provision of links beyond the development site, 
such as provision of new footpaths and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service an 
appropriate planning obligation will be negotiated between the local planning authority 
and the applicant. 

 
 
Pedestrian and cycle routes within new developments must be suitably lit so as to create 
a safe, attractive and useable environment for all. 

 
 
Development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a proposed network of cycle routes 
should incorporate the appropriate section of route, and / or links to it. Where 
development affects the line of an existing route, the route will be required to be 
reinstated, or an acceptable alternative provided. The continuing integrity of the route 
should be maintained through the construction process. Routes, both interim and 
replacement, should be constructed to a standard and design acceptable to the Council 
and consistent with the Green Infrastructure Strategy requirements. 

 
 
Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will 
be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with housing, 
employment, retail, leisure and educational developments. In addition the Authority will 
encourage the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating developments. 

 
 
The Council will encourage the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within new 
development, particularly commercial development. 

 
 
Policy I5 - Travel Plans 
Development which generates a significant amount of movement will require the 
submission of a Travel Plan. As set out in national guidance the Travel Plan will 
demonstrate how:

Page 86 of 89

Page 254

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
 
 
a) The needs of cyclists and pedestrians will be met and prioritised on site; 

 
 
b) The development will help to reduce the need to travel, particularly by private car; 

 
 
c) Relevant information about existing travel habits in the surrounding area has been 
assessed; 

 
 
d) Provision has been made for improved public transport services; 

 
 
e) The site will safely and conveniently connect to public rights of way and the wider 
green infrastructure network; 

 
 
f) The impact of the proposed development and the forecast level of trips by all modes of 
transport likely to be associated with the development, particularly of heavy goods 
vehicles accessing the site, has been minimised; and 

 
 
g) The movement of freight and goods by rail will be maximised where possible. 

 
 
 
Where the trip reductions proposed to be achieved through a Travel Plan are to be 
considered as the mitigation measure in order to make the development impact 
acceptable, a developer contribution equal to the cost of providing the highway 
infrastructure improvements in the form of a bond will be required.  In the event that the 
Travel Plan objectives are not being met, the bond monies will be used to provide the 
necessary infrastructure.  In exceptional circumstances, should a developer be unwilling 
to commit to including an Action Plan within the Travel Plan, or the development 
proposals are at such a preliminary stage that it is unrealistic to draw up a list of 
measures, then it will be necessary to secure the outcome of the Travel Plan through a 
developer contribution. 

 
 
Policy I6 - Parking 
Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate 
that adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local 
Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the "Parking 
Guidelines in Cumbria" SPG or any update to it.

Page 87 of 89

Page 255

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be 
sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying 
parking standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer 
can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision 
is sufficient, the 'Parking Guidelines in Cumbria' can be relaxed in favour of the 
demonstrated proposal. 

 
 
 
The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate 
to the streetscene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to 
Policy C3 (water management) and Policy DS6 (landscaping).  

 
 
 
Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 
The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 
biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 
impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 
will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required 
to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 
Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 

 
 
Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 

 
 
There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 
international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 
or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 
qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant 
partner organisations are satisfied that: 

 
 
.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 
development on an alternative site); and 

 
 
.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate  habitat 
creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in  
agreement with the Council and relevant partner organisations, via planning 
conditions, agreements or obligations. 

 
 
Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 
residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 
an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 
through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 
 

 
 

Page 88 of 89

Page 256

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 
such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 
reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 
and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 
to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 
protected. 

 
 
Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 
corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 
from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 
demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 

 
 
Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 

 
 
Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 
be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 
identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 
referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 
must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 
for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 
adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 

 
 
Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 
with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 

 
 
Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 
application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 
correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 
proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 

 
 
Policy P1 - The Port of Barrow 
Within the Port Area identified on the Proposals Map, development proposals for port  
and port related use, including those linked to the 'Energy Coast', will be supported and 
where appropriate approved by the Council if the submitted scheme accords with other 
relevant policies in the Development Plan, and can pass the tests of the Habitat 
Regulations. 

 
 
Areas that benefit from existing or potential access from deep water will be protected for 
port and port related uses. 

 
 
Any proposals for new development on land in close proximity to the Port Area will be 
required to fully assess the potential impact on the Port of the proposed use and where 
necessary, provide mitigation as part of the new development to ensure that there is no 
unacceptable impact on the Port. 

Page 89 of 89

Page 257

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

4th October 2022 
 

Extra Information Book  
 

 
Page App. No 

 
Address 
 

10 2022/0616 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness  
 

 
 

Page 259

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

 

 
 

Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners Limited (trading as “Lichfields”) is registered in England, no. 2778116  
Registered office at The Minster Building, 21 Mincing Lane, London EC3R 7AG 

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

Development Services Manager, 

Development Division, 

Town Hall, Duke Street, 

Barrow-in-Furness, 

LA14 2LD 

Date: 26 September 2022 

Our ref: 64878/01/JCO/TR/ 

Your ref: B20/2022/0616 

Dear Mr Adams,  

B20/2022/0616: 152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1PU 

As you are aware, the above application was validated on 19 August 2022 and the consultation period 

ended on 14 September 2022. We understand the application will be determined by Planning 

Committee on 4 October 2022 with an Officer’s recommendation for approval.  

One objection has been received during the consultation period. Based on our national experience, we 

suspect that the objector is acting on behalf of a competing Betting Office in the town centre and it 

appears that the underlying purpose of the objection is aimed at undermining competition. We consider 

that the issues raised appear contrived and fail to grasp the key policy tests thoroughly. 

The objector’s concerns can be categorised in to two key areas:  

1 The proposal fails to accord with Policy R3 for two reasons:  

a The proposal will fail to complement the retail function and will alter and harm the shopping 

character of this prominent location within the Primary Shopping Area.  

b The accumulation of similar uses within a concentrated area and lack of retail diversity would 

have a detrimental impact on the character of this frontage and will harm the amenity of town 

centre residents and visitors; and 

2 The proposal fails to accord with Chapter 8 of the NPPF as it will result in a detrimental impact on 

the health and wellbeing of local residents and could potentially increase existing levels of anti-

social behaviour.  

Point 1A 

We agree with the Objector that Policy R3 is the key policy consideration and welcome recognition by 

the objector that the policy is criteria based, meaning that non-retail uses in the 

primary shopping area can supported subject to meeting certain criteria.   

2022/0616
Page 260

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

 

Pg 2/3 
 

The objector appears to ignore the thorough assessment of the application proposal against the criteria 

comprising Policy R3 which demonstrates that the proposal is in accordance with said Policy.   

It is important to highlight that Policy R3 does not present a blanket restriction on all non-retail uses, it 

allows for such uses in specific circumstances which the application proposal falls squarely within.     

As alluded to by the objector, Policy R3 seeks to deliver proposals that ‘make a positive contribution to 

the vitality and viability, and diversity of town centres’. The application proposal presents a valuable 

opportunity to bring back into beneficial use a long- term vacant unit and to generate additional 

footfall. The positive contribution betting offices can make to the vitality and viability of town centres 

has been clearly demonstrated in the application submission as is supported by numerous appeal 

decisions.  

The attached GOAD plan demonstrates that amongst the large number of vacant units (34 within the 

Primary Shopping Area) traditional retail uses are by far the most predominant use in the town centre, 

with only 3 betting shops being situated within the Primary Shopping Area (209 Dalton Road is outside 

of the Primary Shopping Area).  

It should also be noted that until January 2022, there was an additional betting office serving Barrow 

town centre. In January 2022, Coral bookmakers closed 2 of their 3 trading shops (located at 14-16 

Crellin Street and 122 Church Street) in favour of a single more central betting office located at 140-142 

Dalton Road. As such, this application is seeking to replace this closure and re-establish the number of 

betting shops that have been in Barrow town centre for many years. We therefore consider that the 

diversity of the town centre would remain intact, and the proposal is in accordance with Policy R3.   

Point 1B 

The applicant acknowledges that betting offices often seek to locate in close proximity to each other, this 

should not be confused with ‘proliferation’. Seeking to locate in proximity to each other is not harmful 

to the function and or amenity of the town centre - this is no different to any other town centre use 

which seeks to take advantage of a critical mass i.e., a café quarter, financial district, etc.…  

Point 2 

The assertion that betting offices lead to anti-social behaviour is entirely unjustified and surprising in 

light of the Objector most likely acting for a competing betting office operator in the town centre. There 

is no evidence of anti-social behaviour being linked to existing betting offices in the town centre and in 

any event, measures to mitigate potential issues are a matter for licencing.       

We consider that it is not the role of the planning system to seek to duplicate other existing regulatory 

procedures. A betting premises licence for the unit will need to be obtained from the Council’s Licencing 

Sub-Committee where concerns such as anti-social behaviour will be thoroughly discussed and 

addressed.  

In granting a premises license, the Licencing Sub-Committee would need to be satisfied that adequate 

procedures are in place to promote the licencing objective of “preventing gambling from being a source 

of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime”.  

2022/0616
Page 261

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



 

 

Pg 3/3 
 

With regards to the impact upon the health and well-being of residents; Betting Offices are an 

appropriate town centre use. It is important to highlight that Chapter 8 of NPPF needs to be read in 

conjunction with the remainder of the policy document, specifically Chapter 7 concerning town centres.  

We consider that the proposed development is entirely consistent with NPPF and its objectives.  

It is clear that the comments by the objector who promotes betting office developments nationally on 

behalf their client, is objecting to this development proposal by a competing betting office operator 

seemingly regardless of the planning merits of the proposal and importantly on the basis of deterring 

competition.  

Summary  

We urge the Planning Committee to afford weight to the fact that the comments by the objector, who 

promotes betting office developments nationally on behalf their client, is objecting to this development 

proposal regardless of the planning merits of the proposal and solely on the basis of deterring 

competition. 

We reiterate our point that the function of the planning system is not to protect commercial interests, 

instead it is aiming to assist sustainable development. We consider the proposal embodies the ethos of 

sustainability by offering an opportunity to bring a long-term vacant unit back into beneficial use. The 

proposals would result in a use that would complement the existing retail function of the centre by 

enhancing footfall and linked trips. This has been evidenced through the application and this response.  

We therefore respectfully request the application is permitted.   

Yours Sincerely,  

Tobias Robinson 
Planner 
 

Enc. 

2022/0616
Page 262

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



50 metres

Experian Goad Plan Created: 30/03/2022 
Created By: Boyle Sports UK Ltd

Copyright and confidentiality Experian, 2020. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS
100019885

For more information on our products and services:
www.experian.co.uk/goad | goad.sales@uk.experian.com | 0845 601 6011

Barrow-in-Furness

Closed Jan 2022

Closed Jan 2022

Opened Jan 2022

2022/0616
P

age 263

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	9 Planning Applications (Booklets attached).
	2022/0603 Barrow Island Rugby Club
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation 

	2022/0616 152-156 Dalton Road 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	2022/0595 13 Harrel Lane 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report
	Recommendation

	2022/0533 9 Risedale Road
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report
	Recommendation 

	2022/0416 197 Rawlinson Street 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation 

	2022/0519 Valley View 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report
	Recommendation 

	2022/0567 Marsh Grange 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	Policy Appendices
	Planning Applications Book 2
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	EXTRA INFORMATION BOOK 1
	Extra Information Front.pdf (p.1)
	Page

	COMM_2022_0616_EXTRA_1.pdf (p.2-5)




PLANNING COMMITTEE 


4th October 2022

Extra Information Book 

		Page

		App. No




		Address






		10

		2022/0616

		152-156 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness 









